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SENATOR RICHARD J. CODEY (Chairman): Good morning. We would like
to get started. The purpose .of today's public hearing is to 1nvest1gate the over-
crowding of our State, county, and city institutions. This hearlng is being con-

ducted by the Senate Committee on Instltutlons, Health, and We ﬁre. Our first

witness this morning is Mr. William Fauver Commissioner of t‘; Department of

' Corrections. Mr. Fauver.

WILLIAM H. FAUVER: Thank you, Mr, Chairﬁgn I have distributed
some material to the Committee, and I would like to talk abuut that, as well as

I would like: to say that I

am pleased the Committee is having this type of hearing bewause the recognition

the magnitude of the problem we are facing.

of the problem has been slow in coming throughout the State. I know, both
myself and the people in the counties appreciate the oppo“tunlty to be heard.

I would also like to invite the Commlttee, or any of the aides,
to visit any of the institutions. Please feel free to call on any of our staff that
you may need now or at a later time. And, I am sure thehsame invitation will
be extended from the county people, SO you can see the institutions, firsthand.

The material I have given you includes a brlef opening statement,
and I would just like to extract from that. I will try to b fairly brief on
a very long subject, and then respond to any questions you may have.

" In the statement, I say that during the last year both the State and
the county institutions have experienced serious and ever-increasing overcrowding
problems. Both the county and the State facilities are operatang well beyond
the capacities for which they were designed. @

Now, the initial question is how did we get there? How did we
get to this problem? I think there are basically three ;rlmary reasons for this.
One is the effect of the new Criminal Code which calls for longer periods of time
to be served. The second is the Parole Act of 1980. andg, ,the third is the speedy
trial system, which has put more .people into the system. So, basically, it boils
down to more people coming in and staying for lenger periods of time and less
people going out. That is a comblnatlon which we in corrections, both State and
county, have had to deal with unllaterally for a long period of time.

_The effects of the Code are most easily seen on the charts that
I have given you 1n this materlal. If you open to page two, it demonstrates. that
the total commitments have risen, from two years ago to now, £from a 6,000 figure
to 8,900. Now, this means that those numbers are actually committed to the State
institutions. These are adult males. Part of the big problem facing us.right
now is -1f you look at the chart to the left -~ the waiting list in the county
jails. As you can see from that, in a perlod of about a year it has gone from
200 to 1077 in January, and -as we 51t here today it is over 1100.

The next column shows the number of State inmates that were trahsferred
out lnto county jallS. We sent people out into the countles to see 1f there actually
was bed space that could be utilized for State 1nmates. Under the Executive Order
I have the authority to transfer people to these countles, and this is the number-
that has been transferred out prlmarlly 1n only two counties -- Sussex and Mercer.

. These were the only ‘two where there was any room. Now, that does not -mean that

on. any glven day, in the court's report or  in thelr own reports 1n the countles,
there aren t any bads there, but we have not shifted people where there are one

0r two beds for many reasons. They might be. far from the county of thelr orlgln,
and it may also be the fact that they have to go to court and the county transportatlon :

¢osts becone 1nvolved — and the fact that we, partlcularly in the shore counties
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in the summer, have an influx, and we wanted to leave some bed space for them.

The basic problem boils down to the commitment of medium-maximum
security beds. Now, I don't mean this to be critical of the Criminal Code. I
think the Criminal Code is doing exactly what it was intending to do: it is getting
the violent offenders off the street and into the institutions. The problem is
just that there isn't space to keep them.

In that regard, I will submit to you some articles for your information.

The = are newepaper clippings, going back to 1976, in which the Department was

asking for more bed space. This was a tough issue to convince people of -~ that
this was really going to happen. Some of the Department's figures were seen as
self-serving in our projections ~- that, for example, it is a Department and we

were trying to create more of an empire by building more bed space. I think that
the opponents of prison construction were listened to; and, as you will see from
the clippings that I will submit to you, that definitely is a problem, because
even with the 1980 bond issue, we are not, at this point, under construction in
Camden with the State prison. One of the reascons for that delay has been the

site and the fact that the money would not be approved for the bond issue until
the site was decided upon. This got bogged down in committees, particularly in
Capital Planning, and was really resurrected by the Legislature because after the
vote was "no" in that particular Committee on the bond iséue, the Assembly Committee,
with Assemblyman Otlowski, asked to have hearings on that, and then the bill was
further pushed and sponsored by a co-sponsor, Senator Hirkala, from this Committee,
and it went through. So, we were able at that point to convince the legislators
that there was a problem, but it was late in coming.

Now, the graphs on the next two pages, if I may call your attention
to them, show the commitments and the types of people that are coming in. Just
to summarize, 70% of the current inmates in the prison system are committed for
violent crimes, and those crimes show on the chart on page 3.

Probably one of the most serious effects of the overcrowding has
been the imposition of mandatory sentences. That shows on page 4, which indicates
that so far there have been 806 people -- these are male adults -- sentenced to
the State Prison System on mandatory sentences, for which there is an ineligibility
for parole. There is no time worked off on that sentence. This is a very large
percentage. This is better than one-quarter, and it continues to rise. So, some
of these figures, as you can see -- 8% of these have mandatory minimums for 20
years or more -~ meaning they are ineligible, up until that point, for release.

On the last page of this hand-out are the releases to parole -from
the institutions, and the dotted line is the prlson complex. The youth complex
is indicated by the top line. Youth, in this case, means indeterminate sentences
rather thar the determining prison sentences. The youth complex sentences, as
you can see, have decreased from what they were normally. The prlson complex
is roughly about what it has been tradltlonally. There has been about a 30% decrease
in those paroles.

The projections that the DepartmenL made were that the effects
of the Criminal Code would hit us in about the spxlng of 1981, or about 18 months
after the 1ncept10n of the Code, and that was because people were going to be
sentenced anyway and would be d01ng the first part of their sentence, but the. \
extra length of stay wouldn't be recognized for about 18 ﬁenths. Those prejections‘
were, at times, also questioned‘and it turned out to be right on the money; in
fact, more severe than the Department, for the most part, prbjectea;
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. of the age of the facdility. At this point, we are going‘to have to teaxr down

This is basically where we are and how we got here. I would now
like to take a minute to discuss some of the things that are being done.

The Department has created, since the inception of the Governor's
Executive Order, in June of last year, a number of beds within the system, and
also temporary kinds of beds. I would like to run over those with you, and then
tell you some of the problem with them. Now, this is on another set of material,
page 3. The first page says, "County Jail Populations", which I will get to in
a minute.

The new bed space is created at the top of the third page, which
is an un-numbered page, and it shows 370 beds created within the system. It shows
28 at Mercer County; 32 in Sussex; 40 in Trenton Psychiatric, which is another
wing that was taken over at the State Hospital; and an additional 25 in community
placements. Anticipated beds show, in February of '82, things that were just
done. One is in effect, that is the Yardville Gymn, which was converted into
a dormatory to house 60 inmates,, and the Bordentown Chapel, which is not ready
yet but which will be in effect this month. This will enable us to take another
60 inmates.

Following on down, within the next three to six months the transfer
of the Juvenile Reception Unit from Yardville to Jamesburg picks up another 29
beds, and that will take effect on March lst. Additional trailers have been ordered
for, and site work is being done at Annondale and Leesburg to pick up the number
shown there, another 128. Then, the bottom two are the two where we would pick
up the most, and I would like to give you an up-date on that.

The first one mentioned is the Mid-State Correction Center at Fort
Dix, with a capacity of 500. The Department and the State, for a number of years,
have tried to get the use of Fort Dix from the military, and it was only the most
recent request, toward the end of last ye:r, that this was okayed. ' Since the
general approval was given, the Department and the Attorney General's office have
been in negotiation - with the Department of Defense, the Department of the Army,
for this use. There have been problems to work out as far as access, as far as
security at the building, which the military wants to be sure of before they will
allow us access.

The latest is that we are supposed to pick up the contract in £inal
form from the Army on Friday -- tomorrow -- and our estimates are that-- Well,
first let me backtrack a minute. The military will let us occupy the building
once we have additional fencing and razor wire put up around the building, and
additional towers. Our estimates on this are roughly 45 to 60 days; they are
from contractors. Once that is done, we can start to put inmates into the facility
and then fix up what has to be done inside at a later date. So, that is why I
think the three to six months at the top of that, as far as the projection is
concerned, is real.

The fourth item on the page, and the next large number, is Trenton
State Prisen renovations. The completion date for now, for phase one of the Trenton
Prison renovation, is June or July of this year. At thdﬁdp01nt, it had been our
intention to tear down the old wings of the prison -- to destroy them because
they were $0 old. One of the reasons for the bond issue for replacement was because
one of the wings because it conflicts with the further renovation of Trenton
Prison, but we do intend to keep two wings open while this kind of emergency exists,
which will give us another thiee hundred beds. That total would mean within
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the system and within the State facilities and the county facilities, fifteen-
hundred some odd beds would have been created since the Executive Order went into
effect; the first one was signed in June by Governor Byrne. . ‘

This would address the issue of the backup in the counties, which
is, right now, at 1100, The problem that I foresee is that that is ?oing to continue
to grow. To give an analogy, when the Governor agreed to the Executive Order,
we were backed up about 400 and something in the county jails. The bed spaceé
that we have added, as of right now, well exceed that, and, vet, the b?ckup 1n.
the county jails has climbed to 1100, and our projections are that it will continue

to climb.

The need is in the medium-maximum security bed spaces. There i?
some room at our minimum security units, as there is room at some of t?e counties
that run minimum security units., The question then becomes one of policy, or
change in criteria to put people in these minimum security units thet are not .
now put there. You know, liberalizing rules to be able to do that, ?r regulations
to be able to do that, is a possibility, but it has to be weighed against
our professional judgments as to track record with the types of offenders and
the dangers that might present to the community.

On the county issue, the counties listed on the next page have
taken trailers also, which the State has purchased, but there are problems with
the counties installing them. Although most counties have been interested, the
urban counties have problems with trailers, just on placing them. They don't have
a spot. - Hookup costs and installation costs are high. So, so far ther? are only
four counties that are involved, and they are listed: Bergen, Essex, Mlddle?ex,
and Ocean, with 160 beds. The only stipulation we put on the use of the trailers -
was that they be for inmates; they couldn't use them for administration.purposes
or for other things, but just to help inmates; and, they are currently in use
in these counties. ]

Above that on the page, you see the number of counties that have
come in and cooperatively, with the money out of the bond issue-- And, let me .
backtrack a minute on that. The 1980 bond issue included $30 million for construction
of the prison in Camden and'$30 million for county construction aid. The advantage
to the State was evident. Here it gives a number of.State inmates that can be
kept in the local county, that the counties would agree to keep, and would meet ‘
the criteria that a number of penologists have set forth on putting people as
close to home as possible to maintain family ties; etc. The advantage to the
county is evident in that this is money that comes in abovektheir c;ps and. many B
of these counties are either under court order to close or court order for construction
of facilities or renovation of facilities. So, I think this is a start and.a

step in the right direction. But, the 270 beds listed here wi;} no? be avallééle
until the construction or the rencvation work is completed in the listed gountles.
I think for the first time, out of that bond issue, there was an
attempt to address the problem as a statewide problem and not just as a stat?~ -
problem and county problem separate. I hope that this is a forergnne% of ?hlngs
to.come, both in this and in other areas, such as probation, parole, juvenile

detention, etc.

Now, the county backup is demoﬁsﬁrated,on page one, which shows
what the capacity of that county jail is on the left, and what the county jail ;
population is in the middle, and then the number of those inmates in that jail

that are state prisoners.

The removal of the state prisoners from the jails is a top priority
of the Governor's. He made commitments to that during the campaign and has indicated
that as a priority. I would point out that even with the removal of the state
inmates, the counties would still be overcrowded, so it doesn't completely eliminate
the problem. There are problems there thaﬁ should be addressed, hopefully, on
4 cooperative nature. But, as an example,\l will just pick one of these. The
first one is Atlantic. When we say manageable population, it is basically what
the county people have agreed upon, and the figures they have submitted to the courts
through the AFC, and the Department concurs with. So, they show a manageable population
of 186, a population on February 9th of 270, 72 of which are in-prison cases. And, then
it runs down. The largest number is Essex County. Probably the three severest
in numbers would be, just because of the percentage of overcrowding, Passaic, Union,
and Camden. So, as you can see from this, if our plans for those othes additional
900 beds basically come to pass by the summer, we would wipe this out for all
intents and purposes, but my concern is that it still continues to grow -- the
count will still continue to grow. So, I think other things have to be done,
aside from just prison construction because the cost of prison construction is
great and I don't think that if the trend continues, even if there were money,
we just can't, practically, build fast enough to meet these kinds of needs.

You have material, which was also submitted. It is the Task Force
Report from December. It was formed by Governor Byrne to come up with immediate
kinds of solutions. Some of these things have been implemented. Most of them
have not been, and part of that has just been because of the transition into a
hnew administration, with the Governor taking some time to look at material supplied
to him by the Department, and I am sure by others, as to broposals and suggestions
about how to do that. But, I know that the Administration will be coming out
fairly quickly with a policy on how to address these issues.

What I have presented to you is basically what we have done so
far, and what we are intending to do, unilaterally. It addresses the immediate
issues, but not really the long-term ones. T +hink that kind of a position paper
on policy will be developed very shortly.

There are a couple of things I would like to address because they
have come up in the past. One is on the issue of double celling. I have been
opposed to double-celling at State institutions, recognizing very well that the
counties are double-celling, and in many cases more that double~celling. The
only institution in which we are double-celling in the State is in Trenton Prison.

In the other institutions we have tried to avoid it by trying, for example, putting

trailers at Rahway to house an additional 80 men behind the wall there. This

‘gives us medium security bed space, but it also does not erode into Program space.

It is my professional opinion that to do otherwise -- to take away all these kinds
of spaces -- would really lead to major disturbances in the institutions. Any
state you can look at where there have been problems within the institutions,
overcrowding is always cited as one of the major reasons, and is exacerbated by
pPutting people into Space used for programs.

I thought about thisg very carefully when we decided to use the
chapel area and the gymn area at Yardville, and weighted it against what has just
become an impossible situation in the counties., I decided to try to give them
some immediate relief by taking in' 100 or SO inmates by doing that. But, that




is the kind of balance that has to be struck all the time, and the kind of decisi?n
that has to be made. It is really not is simplistic as saying, "there is a building",
or, "there are rooms here," oxr, “"there is a warehouse here. to take over and put

a fence around." That doesn't cut it, and would cause, again in my opinion, problems.
I think that basically on that issue, our judgment and our track record over

the last ten years speaks for itself. .

The other issue I would like to address is one that we hit at times
about planning and the Master Plan that was done prior to the new criminal code
being enacted. I don't think that the Department has ever given up on that‘Mésterﬁ
Plan that was written, but it did call for a lot more community based facilities
for inmates. I think the new Criminal Code in itself, with a tightening of the’
sentences, is a clear indication that that is really not what people want. Th?y
want people away from them, and we have really had no better luck in establishing
community home programs than we have with starting with prisons -- trying to get
prisons sited. So, I think it;pan be expanded on. I think it is being thrown
out at times as an answer thuzt is really not an answer.

So, on the planning issue, I think that at times the Department's
planning was really not that the Department wasn't planning -- and I think.our
ability to handle some of this shows that we have -- it was disagreement with
the Department'’s plans, couched in terms of not planning rather than saying, "we
disagree with what you are doing or with what you are planning to do."

What I have tried to do is to highlight a problem. As I have indicated,

we have been cognizant of this for at least five to six years, and we have tried
to do something about it, with limited success. I think the things we have don?
internally, which could not have been done without the cooperation of the ;ountles,
despite the fact that I know the situation they are under and the complaints they

have with us and with the fact that they are stuck with that part of the problem, have helped

the counties and the State, by the accommodations that have been made, to survive
to this point. We certainly intend tc give it our best shot and continue, but

I think we have to go further than just surviving and I would hope this Committee
would address some of these issues with longer term goals, because if we create
all this bed space and alleviate the county problem by July, as an example, and
the rate of commitment continues, and the rate of parole continues, we will be
right back here and we will have run out of miracles to perform to create this
space.

Finally, I would just like to say that I, or my staff, would be
glad to return when you have heard other testimony to answer any questions you
might have, or to forward any other information you may wish. I will be glad
to try and address anything you might need. Thank you.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you. Senator McManimon.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: ' Baged on the statements that the Commissioner

made in the latter part of his presentation, I am going to ask a very direct question.

Do you sincerely feel that this truly a realistic approach in your planning, based
on the fact that you know you are being Subjected to 70% commitments to State
Prisons -- a 70% increase? . '

COMMISSTONER FAUVER: I think it is realistic in the sense that
T think the bed spaces will be available. What I think doesn't show in this f— |
and maybe I should have addressed this‘briefly -~ ig that the reason we have beeén
able to absorb that big increase is becaise we have moved prison cases into the

i

youth institutions, and it is becoming, in a sense, unclear as to what is a prison
and what is a youth institution because there are so many prison cases in the
buildings. Frankly, we don't have any alternative but to do that, but I think
that even from the sense of the court's perspective, when they sentence someone
to an indeterminate sentence, they have already decided that person is not as
severe -~ if you will, for lack of a better word -- a criminal, and they are giving
him that type of sentence with the idea that he is eligible for parole right away,
and he should be involved in programs. Also, they make a judgment as to whether
he has improved himself. It becomes increasingly difficult to provide any of
those things if prison cases continue to f£ill up those institutions. So, I think
that is a problem, but the bed space -- I feel comfortable in saying we will have
the bed space on these dates, or within those dates, or I wouldn't have presented
it, because it would just be speculation then.

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Fauver, it seems to me that what we have today
in our state prisons is a very bad situation that is only going to get worse,
and I am not sure that we are prepared to handle it from what I see at the present
time. It also seems to me that the State has taken its problem and made
it the counties' problem, and now the counties are taking the problem ard making
it the cities problem. I don't know whether it is going to explode in the next
few days or in the next few months, but it seems that it is rapidly reaching that
kind of potential. I seem to feel we have to do something immediate, and it doesn't
seem to be here today -- that answer to doing something immediately.

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, the answer to the immediate is only
a fraction of the answer. I mean, there are only several hundred beds we carn

create immmediately, as I indicated -- and by immediate I mean within the month.
I think for too long basically it has been looked at as a correction
problem. t is not. You know, we do not in that sense, nor do the county jails,

control the intake into the prisons. We do not control sentencing, nor do we
control the exiting through paroles. 'Both of those areas have to be looked at,
as well as increasing the bed spaces. 1In the plans that are being formulated
through the Governor's office, or the ideas that are being talked about I should
say, and the plans that are being formulated at this point, some of that will
address the immediate problem. Whether there are oOthe steps -- whether it is
going to be other trailers or other types of things like that, modulars put down
somewhere -~ I am not certain that decision has been made. But, they are immediate.
Trailers can basically be installed in four to six weeks.

SENATOR CODEY:  Okay. But, as seasons change and it gets warmer,
I would assume you will have more priscners. There is more crime committed, so
it is going to continue to get worse, and we have to address the problem immediately
because it is severe. I went thrcugh Essex County Jail and I saw 80 people in
a space that shouldn't accommodate more than 12, at best. You could feel the
tension and you could see the situation that was coming within that space.

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes. I am certainly aware of that. I think
aside from just the increase in the commitments -- because generally there are
more crimes in the warmer weather <- the living condititions are tougher in the
warmer weather because of the humidity and the heat factor within the buildings.
There i§ no question about that. That is why this figure is estimated at a June
or July date, because we wanted to try to have these moves made before we really
got into the middle of the summer,
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I think the other thing with the counties, as I indicated, the
State inmates are mot the only problem. In some counties there would be con-
siderable overcrowding without the State inmates. I am sure, given their drothers,
today they would say, "Well, great, let us live witlh that. We want to deal with
that." But, the point is, in any county there are a good number of pre-trial
inmates. I know the Administrative Office of the Courts, through the Chief Justice,
has asked the judges to look at that to see if changes can be made in bail. There
have been changes made. I don't think that it can jist be done unilaterally --
and when I say unilaterally, I mean both within the county and the State system.
As you indicated, it is spilling down into ~- particularly in Newark -- the City
lockups because there is a blockage at the top.

SENATOR CODEY: Mr, Fauver, would you agree that the Camden site
is three to four years away?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes. I would say three years at best.

SENATOR CODEY: I have heard that we are so overcrowded that we
have guards making $45 thousand and up, based on overtime. That is not an uncommon
situation. Do we have the capacity to train people? When we house these inmates,
do we have cnough guards available?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, I would like to comment on the first
thing. I don't believe that to be true. It is almost inconceivable that someone
could make that kind of money as a line officer. Now, if you are talking about
a supervisory officer, they could do it. I would say that the most severe problem
with overtime, without a doubt, is in Trenton and Rahway. The problems are'not
just numbers of stéffing, they are the conditions under which they have to work
that cause more absenteeism than other places and a greater turnover. There is
a training academy that trains both for State and the county. It does an adequate
job in the training, but it is not geared to handle the numbers of people that
go through the system, both State and county. There is a backup of quite a few
officers waiting to go through the academy. Under Civil Service regqulations,
they cannot become permanent until they go throughs: But, the training is behind.
In some cases people are on the job a year and one-~half before they can get to
the academy. It is kind of a like a Catch 22 because the places where they need
the training the most, which would be the maximum security places, is where they
generally tend to be the shortest and where they really don't feel comfortable
in freeing people up to go, or if they do free them up to go, they may wind up
working overtime, forcing people to work to cover them.

I think that in raw numbers of officer coverage, within the institutions
with the kinds of humbers -- the kind of inmate numbers they have -- in there
now, I wouldn't say they were short to any great degree. Our request, even in
this year;s budget, does not reflect much in the way of requests for additional
officer coverage.

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Fauver, one more question -- your: document
on new State bed spaces--

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes.

SENATOR ‘CODEY: (continuing) ~--you have listed additional community
placements. Can you just describe for me what that means? \ )

‘ COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Additional community placements mean that
in this.case we have a couple of half-way houses of our own that are -run by the
State, where we place people prior to ~- like nine nionths prior to their release.

The additional spaces that we picked up here were through contract
with Volunteers of America, who run these types of homes, and the New Jersey Association
of Corrections. These are the two prime sponsors, and we contract with them to
take State inmates. That is the additional number that was put out in the last
six months of the last calendar year.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you. Senator Bassano, do you have any questions?

SENATOR BASSANO: Commissioner, can you hear me?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes, sir.

SENATOR BASSANO: First of all, let me thank you for being here
today. We certainly appreciate that. I would like to know with regard to the
1572 new beds that we are talking about for prisoners in our State, where do you
anticipate those prisoners coming from? Are they going to come out of the county
institutions, or are they going to come from some of the State institutions that
are presently overcrowded, or will the majority of those beds be filled by additional
people who are beiny sentenced under our new penal code?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, first, they will not be filled to reduce
the populations at the State institutions. The priority will be to reduce the
county jail backup. The actual transfers may be from, for example, a Leesburg
to. the Fort Dix site rather than from a county to Fort Dix. But, the intent will
be to take in, let's say, 100 people in a given day from the counties, not to
say that we are at over-capacity at Leesburg and we are going to get down to capacity
by using those facilities. We have managed at the capacities we are at and we
will maintain those capacities” and get the reduction from the county.

Now, the other part, as to the sentencing under the new Code, as
I indicated, these plans-- I think that was part of the thrust of Senator
Cody's remarks about even if this-all happens, that is now; but there are still going
to be more people coming in because of things that were stated and because of the Code.
Again, it is projection on that, basically. I don't know the raw figures -
how much that will go up from a backup of 1100. But, it has gone from a backup
of four hundred and about seventy-five in June, to eleven hundred in January.

Now, at the same time, I want to point out that the State has taken in a good
number of people in this time. We have taken in over 2,000 people, and closer
to 3,000. So, it is not that they are not coming in, but it is just that the
numbers are so great. v

SENATOR BASSANO: Based upon the 1572 figure that we have here,
approximately how many of those beds will be made available for pecople who are
presently in county institutions? Can you give us an idea as to how many of those
beds will be utilized for county people?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Yes, all them will be utilized. But, the
county backup will continue because if Essex County shows 160 today, the plan
would enable us to take that 160. I don't know how many more in addition are
going to be added on to that.

SENATOR BASSANO: I think T am still not getting the answer that
I am looking for. Of the 1572, Obviously some of those people are going to come
out of Leesburg or out of some of the other State institutions. Of that number,
how‘many people that are presently State prisoners that are being housed in county
facilities will come out of the county? That is the basic figure I am looking
for. I understand thaﬁaovercrowding still exists, but what can we. look for,k

at least in the form of temporary relief from the State as sgon as those beds ‘k\\
AN
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are made available?
COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Well, again, I think I am answering you.
You can look for all of that bed space to be made available for the counties --
the total number of beds -- because, as I indicated, if we move the people from
Leesburg, it would only be because we think they fit better in the Fort Dix setting,
not to relieve the overcrowding in Leesburg. If Leesburg's count is 1,000 today,
when these bed spaces are open, Leasburg will still have a population of 1,000.
What I am saying is, the county people won't go to any one specific institution. They will
come in and be classified to wherever we think they belong. But, the bed space
would be the bottom figure —- it would be the 957, realistically.

SENATOR BASSANO: On-- Excuse me?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: I'm not sure I am being clear. My aide says
I am not, so I accept her word for it. The count in the State institutions would
go up by this figure. In othexr words, if we have 7,000 in now, we would have
8,000 in, and that would mean that 1,000 would come out of the county. It would
not be-- The purpose of this is not to reduce our populations at all. It is to
aid the county.

When I say aid the county, there are inmates -- the county is
aiding us by keeping them. But, I mean, to relieve that pressure on the county,
that is the purpose.

SENATOR BASSANO: So, what you are saying to me then is that Leesburg,
if it is housing "x" number of prisoners, will continue to house that number?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: That's correct.

SENATOR BASSANO: It is just that if you move someone out from
Leesburg to a new facility, you are going to replace that person from Leesburg
with someone out of one of the county institutions?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: That's correct.

SENATOR BASSANO: On the Camden site, once that facility is in
operation, do you feel that will be a permanent solution to our problem, at least
on the State level, or do you feel we are going to, based upon the statistics
you have, still have a need for additional beds in the State?

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: I don't think it will meet it on the State
level, because one of the things with Fort Dix is, right now the contract with
the Federal government is for three years, and whether there will be options on
that is debatable. We are trying to, but it is up to them whether they will let
us or not.

The other thing is, there are evacuation plans in that in case
of any kind of national emergency. We would then have to vacate. $So, I don't
think we can count Fort Dix as a permanent facility by any stretch of the imagination.
So, therefore, Camden would just kind of offset the Fort Dix loss if, in fact,
there is a loss. ©Our projections are that we are going to need more bed space.

I am not sure, sitting here, whether I would say that means more prisons. It

may. It may mean -- you know, if there are any changes in legislation, for example,
it could affect it. If there are chandes in the rates of parole it could affect

it, and we may not need them. It is not the only answer, but if things continue
with nothing else changing, yes, we are going to need additional bed space.

SENATOR BASSANO: Thank you.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Fauver.

COMMISSIONER FAUVER: Thank you. :

SENATOR CODEY: Our next witness will be Mr. Edwin Stier, Director

of the Division of Criminal Justice.
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EDWIN H. ST IER: Cood morning, Senator.

SENATOR CODEY: Good morning.

MR. STIER: I am appearing here this morning on behalf of the Depart-
ment of Law and Public Safety, headed by the Attorney General, who, as of course
you know, is the State's chief law enforcement officer.

What I would like to do is to address the problem, primarily from
the view of law enforcement. You have, of course, just listened to Bill Fauver,
who is describing to you the conditions in the éystem from the point of view of
the Corrections communitf. As I will point out to you in my remarks, we have
now, and have for some time, been working very closely with the Corrections community
to deal with the problem we are now facing in our institutions, which in our judment
has reached crisis proportions.

The reason we are working together is because we have recognized
that the problems of prison overcrowding are really not separate problems. Historically,
we have dealt with the problems of prison overcrowding and crime as separate problems.
The law enforcement community, when defendants were convicted and sentenced to
incarceration, stopped considering what the impact of that incarceration was going
to be on the Corrections systém. The Corrections people worked independent of
the law enforcement community to deal with their problems in their institutions.

I think the Legislature has historically dealt with the problems
of crime and the problems of prison overcrowding as separate problems. We now
have come to the conclusion that they are really not separate problems; that they
are interrelated and that you cannot deal with one without the other. In effect,
what we are now faced with’is balancing competing social interests. On the one
hand we have crime and public safety to be concerned about -- ever increasing
demand for longer sentences of incarceration, removal of criminals from the community,
particularly professional, repetitive criminals who, statistically, are responsible
for a large proportion of the violent crime that we face. And, on the other hand,
we are faced with the problem of rising costs of incarceration, not just the
dollar and cents costs of incarcertaion, but the social costs of siting institutions --
finding the space within our State to house the inmates.

Over the past several years, we in law enforcement, and the people
in the Corrections system, have been trying to wrestle with this balance -- have
been trying to help to strike this balance -~ and have been trying to make adjustments
in what each of us is doing to find the ultimate answer and the ultimate balance
between how much public safety we can provide, and, at the same time, how much
of the cost of incarceration the community can bear. I assure you that from our
experience we have not found any quick fixes. I am not going to tell you I have
an answer to that problem, that I can tell you either where that balance should
be strhck, or how we cap/addreSS our current crisis situation in our institutiens.

I can tell you something about what we have done and how we perceive
the situation as reaching this level, and try to make some predictions about where
we go in the future, at least from a law enforcement point of view. '

First of all; we have to recognize that in. fact we have had rising
crime rates in this State, as we have had adross the country over the past several
years; The most recent crime statistics -- the Uniform Crime Report for 1980 --
indicate that crime in New Jersey, as it has been across the county, is up 10%
over‘the prior'year. Violent crime in‘NeW’JefseY‘is up 21%, as compared with
13% across the country. Non-violent crime is up 9%, as it is across the country.
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And, the startXiig statlstlc is that 83% of all the indexed crimes -- that is,

those crimes that are generally considered most serious violent crimes, and serious
property crimes -- are not cleared by arrest. That is, those crimes go unsolved,
and the six month statistic for the year 1981 suggests that the rates are continuing
at the levels that have been established in prior years. So, even if we did nothing
but solve crime at the rate at which it has been solved over the years, even if

we did nothing to improve our efficiency in law enfoxcement, the numbers of people
who would be apprehended, prosecuted, convicted, and sent to institutions would
increase, simply by virtue of the fact that we are dealing with more crime.

But, we have made adjustments. The Legislature has made adjustments
and law enforcement has made adjustments in an attempt to use the criminal justice
system to stem the increasing rate of crime in this State. The Criminal Code,
which was enacted a couple of years ago by the Legislature, is generally viewed --

I think this is true not only in law enforcement but in the judicial system ~-

as a more harsh system of punishment than prior criminal law. That's a shift,

by the way, from its originzl intent. If you go back into the legislative history
of the Code, I think you will find that one of the primary elements in the code

as it was originally proposed was the presumption égainst incarceration in an
attempt to reduce the numbers of people who were going to institutions. During
the development of the Code in the legislature, because we were beginning to experience
a rapid rise in crime rates and because of very strong public sentiment in favor
of meeting those crime rates with harsher punishment, the sentencing provisions

of the Code shifted and now we have a Code which is generally considered to, at
least with respect to the more serious crimes, have within it a presumption in
favor of incarceration. . Generally, the penalties for violent crimes -- first

and second degree offenses -- have been increased. Categories for extended terms
have been bréadened; that is, there are more lengthy sentences on repeat offenders
imposed under the sentencing provigions of the Codé than were imposed under prior
criminal law. :

One important provision which I think deserves to be highlighted
seems to have had the effect of shifting the sentencing of those convicted for
first, second, and third degree offenses away from county jail and into State
institutions. That is, statistically, there appears to be a more rapid increase
in the number of people sentenced to State prison than to county jails. I think
the reason for that -- at least the one we have speculated abouF and tried to
analyze empirically——’is'ﬂuﬂ:gmiorﬂto the enactment of the Code, a sentencing judge
had the discretion to seqténce anyone cgnvicted for most offenses, including violent
crime, from zero time in prison up to tﬁe maximum, which was either three or seven
years, generally. Under the sentencing provisions of the Code, that discretion
has now been restricted, and for a first, second, or third degree COnviction,
the choices that a sentencing judge has include sentenc1ng for the statutory texrm,
which is either 10 to 20 years, or 5 to 10 years, or, in the alternatlve, probation.
And, the only way he can place a defendent into a county institution fmr one of
thdse sentences is by imposing a period of incarceration as a condltlon of probatlon,
and the code, limits that to six months. Prev1ously, a judge could sentence someone
to county jail for up. to a year for-a majorlty of these offenses; now, he can
only sentence somecné tc a county jail for up to six months. We believe that
restriction has shifted the prison population to a great extent from the county
jails, where they had previously been going for up to a year, to the State prisons,
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which has led to the serious problem we are encountering at the State level.

In addition to the original provisons of the Code, we have had
several amendments, as you well know: a three-year mandatory, minimum sentence
for possession or use of a gun in connection with certain crimes; parole ineligibility,
extending to every kind of offense under the Code, of up to one-half the sentence
that is imposed. Wevfind that provision is used very heavily by sentencing judges,
even more heavily than the extended term provisions for repeat offenders.

In addition to the Code, law enforcement has responded over the
last several years to public demand to do something about crime. We have, in
all but two counties in this State, full time prosecutors' offices, which every
year become more efficient and more experienced at handling the case load which
runs through their offices. We are in the process of automating the case management
system in every prosecutor's office and every court in the State. Together with
the Supreme Court, a year and one-half ago we launched a speedy~-trial program.
As of that time, that is, the beginning of the speedy~trial program, it took an
average of a year for a case to get from arrest through trial disposition -~ an
unconscionable delay between the crime and the imposition of a penalty. The present
gocal of the speedy-trial program, we are confident we are going to meet
th e reduction of that period of time to 180 days, and there are goals beyond
that for succeeding years.

A number of experiments are going on in the counties at speeding
up the system. For example, in Hudson County, where we have a central processing
system for’everyone who is arrested in the county -- they are all brought before
one judge ~-- a number of cases are disposed of right there, in that court room,
on the day the defendant is brought before the judge for his initial appearance.
I think the speed record that was achieved is something like two hours between
the commission of a crime and the imposition of a sentence in one case in Hudson
County under that system. Of course, we don't achieve that in every case, but
the point is that a number of measures have been taken all over the State to speed
up the system. Of course, the more you speed it up, the more people are going
to come into the system, at least until we catch up with the backlog.

We have career criminal programs operating throughout the State
which target repeat offenders, particularly those who are prone to commit violent
crimes, and fast-track those cases. So, those cases are moved more rapidly and
longer sentences are sought.

' We have an arson program which has resulted in more convictions

for that offensec. And, generally’we have made efforts, and are continuing to
make efforts, to improve the quality of police services all over the State in
an attempt to solve more crime, more rapidly.

We recognlze though, that along with efforts to speed up the system
and 1mprove our eff1c1ency, we have an obligation to weed out those cases that
don't belong in the criminal justice system. So, each prosecutor has a screening
system =- an intake system -- where caseg are reviewed immeéediately upon entry
into the prosecutor's office, and on thgyaverage, about 60% of the criminal complaints
that are filed are either dismissed or/aown graded so they can be handled in municipal
court, So, all of those arrests are mot proceqsed ultimately through the Grand
Jury and trial, with the potential for the 1mp051tlon of a prison séntence.

quaddltlon,pre-trlal intervention programs are in operation throughout
the State and a special procedure, similar to PTI, is in operation with respect

‘to drug cases, so that minor drug’offenses don't have to go through the system,
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and can be disposed of in a suspended proceeding, where over a period of time,
if the defendant hasn't engaged in other criminal activity, he is then released
and his record is expunged. 4

When you analyze who is going to prison, I think you will recognize
that the solutions are not those that have been freely discussed, at least at '
the initial stages of our recognition of the problem -- that is, the assumption
that we can let out some of the petty offenders that are clogging up the prison
system does not seem to hold up when you analyze the State prison population.
Statistics show that approximately 60% of the people who are going to our State
prisons are violent offenders, people who are sentenced for violent crimes. Twenty-
five percent of the people who are going to our institutions are property crime
offenders, but when you analyze that statistic you realize that 60% of those --

60% of the 25% which are property offenders —- are convicted of burglary. Again,
that is the kind of offense that I think most people believe deserves harsh sentences.
And, even when you analyze those offenders who are in prison for either non-burglary
property crimes or some other offense where we'might feel that something other

than a prison sentence ought to be imposed, we have to examine the record of each

of those defendants before we reach a final conclusion, because you may find that

a defendant who is convicted of a white collar offense may have a record for violent
crime and may, based on that record, be a candidate for incarceration in the State
prison system.

In addition to what we have tried to do in the criminal justice
system, we have worked very closely with Bill Fauver and other members of the
Corrections community to try and address the problem. The statistics I have given
you have been generated as a result of a joint analysis of the crime statistics
and incarceration statistics which were done by the Department of Corrections
and the Department of Law and Public Safety, with direct participation by the
courts. Obtaining Fort Dix as a temporary relief wasa joint effort in which the
Law Enforcement community participated -- Attorney General Smith was very instrumental
in persuading the Administration to overcome the objections from the Pentagon,
and finally agree to providing Fort Dix to help relieve our problem. he Kugler
Commission was established and has filed a teport, which I am sure you have, making
several recommendations, the most important of which, of-course, was that some
kind of a legislatively enacted safety valve has to be created in order to relieve
the pressure, if these trends continue, if there is no abatement, and if we simply
run out of space. ) :

We have worked with the courts to try and reduce the population
in the county jails of pre-trial detainees, trying to weed out from the county
jails, to relieve pressures on those institutions, those who can safely be placed
back on the street. Accelerated bail hearings are being held all over the State.
The assignment judges have received instructions from the Chief Justice to review
jail population on a regular basis and initiate bail reduction hearings as early
as possible. : h

‘ We are working on the problem, but obviously we cannot solve the
problem ourselves ~- that is, law enforcement and corrections. We have now reached
the point where the matter has to be dealt with legislatively. ‘How the Legislaturé
deals with it is something that I am not about to suggest. But, I can make one
observation,; and that is that the entire problem, not just the problem in the
correction system, not just the problem of overcrowding in a particular county
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or a particular city, has to be addressed, but the entire problem has to be addressed --
the entire problem of balancing the need of a community for public safety and
for the most effective law enforcement we can provide, and at the same time the
need for humane treatment for those who have been sentenced to incarceration.
Thank you.
SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Stier. Are there any questions?
SENATOR MC MAMNIMON: One thing that concerned me, Mr. Stier, was the
fact that you stressed the concept of balancing the competing agencies with respect
to the cost of incarceration, and also the cost of public safety. It is apparent
that you are doing a hell of a job because people are being incarcerated. But,
you reflected that in the county, sentences used to be for a year and now they
are six months ~- I mean, they are incarcerated in the county for six months and
then they are forwarded on to the State, they become a State burden. If we were
to go back to the intitial intent and then put the burden on the county, we would
have the same or a similar problem with the county that we are presently having
with the State.
MR. STIER: I am not suggesting that that is an answer, except
to this extent: if a judge is faced with the alternative of sentencing a defendant
either to a period of incarceration for five to ten years, let's say, for a second
degree offense, or placing him on probation and sentencing him to a county jail
for up to six months, he may feel that the sentence of up to six months is inadequate,
and statistically this appears to be the way sentencing judges are behaving.  He
may feel that six months is not enough time in an institution, and his only other
option is to then sentence the defendant to five years. If he had more discretion
to sentence to a county institution for, let's say, up to one year, he might feel
that -one is adequate. So, although the defendant would go to a county jail --
and it is true that for that period of time we wouldn't have solved the problem ~—
he would stay for a shorter period of time; he would stay for only a year rather
than the five vears, or whatever the period of time he would actually serve would
be, but it would problably be a shorter period of time. So, the net result over
a longer period of time would be reduction of prison populations.
Judges do not seem to be using that option of sentencing to a county
jail for six months as a condition to probation. They seem to be taking the option
of sentencing to State Prison for a more lengthy period of time.
SENATOR MC MANIMON: Well, the reason why I brought that to your attention
was, just recently our own County Executive went on record stating that he just
can't handle any more. It is also apparent that other counties are having the
same basic problem. I asked the Commissioner -- Commissioner Fauver —- if this
plan that they are presenting on the projected new beds is truly realistic. I
am very much concerned about the fact that I don't think it is. Fort Dix is only
goiné to be utilized as a stop-gap measure. You made a statement here and you
gave us the facts, and if anyone should khow, you should know that 60% of those
State prisoners are presently in there for violent crime. Now, what would Fort
Dix be used for? We are using youth centers and other things to accommodate these
prisoners,; so. I am beginning to wongér if we do have to bite the bullet and bring
the facts out instead of us starting something now only to have it obsolete again
in three years, and you will be right back here again before us.
MR. STIER: I agree with you. All we have been talking about in
térms of increasing bed space are a series of stop-gap measures, to try to solve .

[
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the present problem of overcrowding.  Every indication that we see is,'with-that race
to incarceration under the current sentencing provisions of t?e code, and glv?n .
the crime rate in the étate, and given our rate of solving crimes, t#ose stat?stlcs
will increase: more people are going to go to prison for longer'perlods»of time,
and as soon as we relieve the present problem, the problem is go%ng to bégln tzne
build again. I don't know the answer, but I suggest the answef 1§ not 51?pli
of dealing with the question of providing more bed space, and it 1s.not simp ¥
letting more people out of institutions. There has to be an analysis of wh? is
going to jail, whether those people are going to prison fo? the length of tl:e
they ought tc go, and what the cost of that is to the public. On?y after yo
consider all those factors can you make an intelligent judgmentt 1t.seeTs to me,
about whether the answer is in increasing the bed space in the institutions or
in reducing the numbers of people going into those institutions. ‘

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Stier, you mentioned in your testimony about
getting more State prisoners due to sentencing under the new Penal Code, correct?

MR. STIER: Yes.

SENATOR CODEY: Well, it seems to me that the situation we are
in is that a prisoner is a prisoner and he is caught up in the sy?tem,.whether
he is in county or in state, and that really has no bearing at this pcint because
of the overcrowding.

MR. STIER: Can I respond to that, Senator?

SENATOR CODEY: Sure.

MR. STIER: The only point I wanted to make on that score -- and
I agree with you 100% -~ is that the county and state systems have to be v%ewed
as a whole. We have to look at the entire prison population of the State in ?rder
to understand the problem and begin to deal with it. My only point about mak%ng
a distinction between a county sentenced inmate and a State prison.senfenced inmate
is that you also have to consider not just(the numbex of peo?le g01?g in but th?
length of time for which they are sentenced. One way to relieve prison popu%azlon
is not to send fewer people to prison but to send them there for shorter periods
of time. And, the one provision of the Code that I was talking about, and t?at
I wanted to call you attention to, seems to have had the result of people gélng
away for longer periods of time than they might otherwise be sent away for if
there were greater discretion provided to a sentencing judge. That was the only

point I wanted to make on that. ‘ '
SENATOR CODEY: You also mentioned to Senator McManlmon, in answer to

one of his questions,about the effects of longer sentencing and the cost, and whether or -

not it is justified -- I guess it is justified and that we want to do that. I
can rémember reading, just recently, that the odds are that if you are born and
live all your life in a large American city, yougvchances of being mu?éered are
greater than an American combat soldier's were in World War II. Sof %t seems

to me that the fear the public has here is justified. They wa?t crlmlnals awey
for longer periods of ﬁime, and I think on the bond issue you have s?en that.ls
their philosophy. They are willing to pay for it, as long as we do it the right
way . _ ‘ '

MR. STIER: My own views, of course, are based on my experience .
in law enforcement.‘ I believe we have‘to respond to the problem ?f cr%me by deTonstrat—
ing that punishment is going to be swift and severe,. and that society is not going

to tolerate the kind of lawlessness that we have witnessed over the past several
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years. I think that if we maintain that posture and if we provide the resources
to support that kind of approach, that we will eventually turn the corner. We
are not going to do it alone in law enforcement.

I don't think that law enforcement
is going to solve the problem,

any more than law enforcement is responsible for

the creation of the problem, but I think that law enforcement has an important

role to play in trying to contain the problem of crime. I think that we can be

most effective if the philosophy that I just described is
SENATOR CODEY: Okay.

continued, yes.

SENATOR BASSANO: Based upon your knowledge of the criminal justice
system, in dealing with the new Penal Code and the projections the new Penal Code
is giving off with regard to the number of heds that are going to be needed in
the future, what do you see as the need for the
additional bed facilities —-—-. to meet our needs?
being?

State of New Jersey to have facilities --
What do you see that number as

MR. STIER: I wish I could give you an answer on that. T have
Seen projections that within two years we will need double the bed space we have.

I don't know how valid those Projections are. I don't know how realistic they

are. There are variables that make it very difficult to
I would have to--

pProject a specific number.

I couldn't give you an intelligent answer to that that I would
be satisfied with. I can tell you that given the current trends and the rates
that we have seen, the bed space which is being projected will be inadequate to
handle what we see éoming down the pike.

SENATOR BASSANO: It makes it rather difficulf for this Committee
~to try to make recommendations to the Legislature to look to the future when the
Cfuture is so black in the sense that we just don't have an
we are moving in.-

MR. STIER: I was offered the resources of cur Department to work
with the Legislature, with your Committee,
don't think this is something that we alone

y idea as to what direction

to try to make those projections. I
are going to be capable of forecasting.
I think'it is something we would have to come up with jointly. We do have the

numbers. We do have the raw data, and we would be more than happy to work with

the staff of the Committee to try and give you the information you need to make
an intelligent projection.

SENATOR BASSANO: I would hope that you would do that, because
it would make our job a little easier also.

MR. STIER: Certainly.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Stier.

Our next witness is Mr. Anthony Fuccello, President of the Association
of Wardens. Mr. Fuccello, good morning, )
ANTHONY FUCCELLO: Good morning. I apologize for not having
anything prepared to hand to your Committee. I appreciate the opportunity to
be here today on behaif of the County Jail Wardens. We have approximately 12
to 15 county jail wardens represented here today, along with the sheriffs who
have charge of the county jails.

I have heard statistigs spoken.of here this mornihg that reflect

our predicament of overcrowding in the county jails, but statistics don't really

do our situation that much justice, There are a lot of pecple problems that go

with overcrowding in county jails, and probably that will be the main Focus of
my testimony here today.

It is-an established fact,” f COurse, that we are overcrowded.
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Approximately 70% of our 26 county institutions are beyond their rate of capacity
at this point. The range of that overcrowding is between 81% and 201%. As Mr.
Fauver has said, there ére approximately 1,000 inmates in county Jjails that are
beyond our rated capacities,. of which 1100 are really state prison inmates awaiting
transfer into the state prison system.

Our numbers began to climb approximately one year ago, and have
been climbing at approximately the rate of 2% per month since a year ago today.
Overcrowding in jails can have a very devastatingeffect on the people required
to live and work in those institutions, especially the pre-trial status
in the county jails. Inmates are extra hyper; they ére overactive. Their condition ¥
is unsettled: they don't know what is happening to them; they don't know what
is happening to their fémilies; they don't have that peace of mind of knowing,
"I have six months to serve", or "I have six years to serve." ' Consequently, they ¥
are in a continuous hyperactive state. When you begin to overcrowd people who
are in this hyperactive state, there is a literal lack of personal space. People
can't stretch out. They can't get away from the people they live with, day in
and day out, and in that hyperactive state there is a lot more aggression, there
are a lot more fights, there is a lot more bickering and stealing from each other,
etc. '

Merely by multiplication, the problems that we normally encounter
in county jails are multiplied by our higher numbers. There is more contraband
coming into the institutions. There is more sexual activity in the institutions.
There is more noise. There are more complaints. There is more discipline --
just more of everything because of the high numbers. Our essential services are
taxed beyond their limits -- medical services, food services, social services, 8
and education. Visits are restricted, necessarily; so is recreation. This causes
concern with inmates, that they don't have the opportunity to release their frustrations.
Consequently, the system feeds on itself and they become more hyper, more overaétive, hd
more aggressive.

As a result of all of this, our staff is subjected to stress that
is beyond description. They are more prone, because of this stress, to accident,
they are more prone to illness, they are more prone to sicknesses that cause them
to go off the job. When they are off the job we must fill these spaces with overtime.
That means somebody else is working more. Consequently, there is more stress,
more sickness, and more illness, and, again, the system feeds on itself.

k Our staff gets short-tempered. They begin to write more charges

against inmates. And, again, it feeds on itself.

What do we do with the people we don't have room for? What do
we do with the people who go beyond our rate of capacity? Well, if we are lucky,
we can double-bunk -- and I say that with tongue in cheek, of course. If we can't
double-bunk, we begin to use classroom space and dormitories -- we create dormitory
situations -- we begin to use recreation rooms, or hallways, and they start sleeping
on the floor. When we use classrooms, or recreation areas, that takes programs
away from us, and, again, these programs are designed to felieve some the frustration,
and without that,ywe have more of the same -~ more fights, etc.

One thing that you must bear in mind is that not all county jails
are built the same, and it is quite possible for one county jail that is at 110%
of capacity to be able to handle that. 110%; another county with the same figure
could in no way handle it. It dependskupon where you have to put your people.
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If you have to put them in classrooms, if you have to use gymnasiums, you are
compounding your problem by taking away those program areas. County jails --

as has been mentioned -- should not operate beyond 90% of their rate of capacity.
You need that 10% to move people around, to separate people who cannot be with
each other by reason of the fact that they are co-+defendants, or they may be

in there for assaulting each other and they need to be separated. And, if you
have disciplinary problems, you need places to lock people up. So, you need that
10% room in your jail just to move people around.

I would like to draw an analogy if I can between overcrowding and
a drowning man -- a person who is a non-swimmer and who is in water. The non-
swimmer in water can drown in six feet of water; lhe doesn't need twenty feet.

So, it doesn't matter if it is 200% or 110%, it depends on who you are and what
your physical plant is, and you could be in the same situation.

What are the solutions? I don't know, and I don't believe our
county jail people really know what the solutions are. To over-simplify a very
complicated problem, we need to either loosen up some of the cells that we have
in the State by releasing -~ early releases, etc. -- those offenders who are not
of an assaultive nature, or we need to build more cells. It is as simple as that,
from a simplistic viewpoint. I will leave it to people who are more intelligent
than I am, or who are more experienced in this field than I am, to come up with
the solid answers. I believe my colleagues will stand by me when I say that we
keep sc busy on a daily basis, just trying to keep our heads above water, that
we don't have time to sit back, reflect, and think of long term, or even short
term, solutions, beyond tomorrow.

As I said, there are approximately 12 to 15 counties represented
here today, and I realize they are not on your agenda, but I am sure they would
be willing to come forward and speak if you wanted to hear some particular problems

of other areas.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Fuccello. You are also the warden in
Mercer County?
MR. FUCCELLO: Mercer County, yes.
SENATOR CODEY: It would appear that your situation is not nearly
as bad as some of your collegues.
MR. FUCCELLO: In terms of percentage of numbers, no. We are bouncing
around 120%, but we are one of those institutions that doesn't have the luxury
of double bunking. Our physical plant does not allow us to do that without some
major construction work being done. We are one of the ones who have to use program
space. We are taking classrooms and making dormitories out of them. Our next
step is going to be using the gymnasium. Again, that is not a desirable thing
to do. k
SENATOR CODEY: Do you feel that your colleagues have expressed
the acuteness of the problem to you, that these county institutions themselves
are ready to explode?
MR. FUCCELLO: Yes, they have to some degree. My heart goes out
to Passaic County in particular, who recently experienced a population of over
200%. Because he is facing such sheer numbers, he doesn't det to our meetings
that often, so he can't really relate that kind of information to me. Again,
maybe you might want to ask Passaic County some questions directly.
SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Fuccello.
MR. FUCCELLO: Thank you, Senator,
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SENATOR CODEY: Our next witness will be Mr. Joseph Wagner, Warden
of the Atlantic County Jail. Mr. Wagner.

JOSEPH WA GNER: I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak
today. I want to be brief, but I want to talk to you about what it is like in
the county jail since I have been the warden of the Atlantic County Jail.

The county jail, today, has 255 inmates. We have 186 beds. That
means the rest of the people are sleeping on matresses on the floor. It is that
simple. Sixty of the people in our jail belong in State Prison. According to
the statute, they are to be held only 15 days in the county jail and then they

are to be transferred to the State. That is a very good statute, because the ¥

difference between a person who is sent to State prison and a person who is to
be held in a county jail is great. It is not the same as putting one person here
or one. person there. ®

If a person is awaiting trial, that is the type of person that
was intended for a county jail -- a detention facility -~ until their speedy trial
can be held. A person awaiting trial doesn't know what is going to happen. He
doesn't know if he is going to be convicted. He doesn't know what the future
actually holds. We do hold people for six months, or under a year, who have been
sentenced, but that is still less than a year.

However, the day a person is convicted and especially the day this
person is sentenced to State prison, I would ask you to take just a few moments
yourself and think what would go through your mind if someone said: "vou will
spend the next ten years in State prison." That is the end. That is the end
of hope. That is our most dangerous ending, right at that point. What does he
have to lose? Ten years of his life he is going to lose. And, we are getting
sentences of 20 years and 40 years. When you consider this, you can see it is
not the same. A person who is sentenced to State prison should be quickly moved
to a State facility. We have our own problems with county prisoners -- those €
sentenced to a county jail. Our prison rate has gone up there also. We used
to have 40 to 50 people sentenced to county jail; we have 80 today.

We have put in all the programs in Atlantic County that we possibly
can to reduce the detainees. We have a bail unit. We have the early release,
pre-trial intervention. We have done everything on that end of it, from the courts.

The people I have in my jail today are violent. They should not be on the street.

There is not a warden in this room who is saying that -~ that they should be released.

But, at tﬂe same time, there are many people in this room who knew the problem back in 1974,

when we sat on the planning commissions,. and when they came out with their plan in

1975, 1976, and 1977. During that time we  heard 4,800 beds were going to be needed

by the year 1990. That was reduced to 1200. All right. We have not yet built

one. -

It is a matter of where are you going to place them? No one wants i *
jail. No one wants crime.. Simply put, put one in the north, one in central,
and one in the south, but you must build.

For those who say, "No, we don't need any more bed space;" "We don't
need any more jail space," ask them what they want to do with these people. But,
don't ask the wardens to let them sleep on the floor. It is not an easy task.
Anyone who walks through the jail, as we should and as we do, daily, can see the
tension. One can see the problems. If you were to talk to someone who has been
sentenced to 20 to 40 years in State prison, you would understand why I am so
concerned that they be moved quickly., The answers are very difficult.
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I don't what to take up your time, I just want to let you knqw
that there is a great difference between a person who is sentenced to State prison
and a person who should be housed in a county jail. Where you find the bed space --
there are mental hospitals, there are other camps; there is space around. We
are expecting an increase, as usual, since it is a resort community, of 40 to 60
people during the summer months. I am now 60 over capacity. That will make it
120. You have the figures, I am sure, and I don't want to belabor the point.

But, we do have a problem.

SENATOR CODEY: Senator McManimon.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Yes, I am very much concerned about that report
and that projection back in '76 and '77, when you said 4,000 additional bed spaces were needed.
Am I to assume that is collectively, both State and county, and not just county?

MR. WAGNER: No, it was the Master Plan for the Department of Corrections.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Which would encompass both county and State?

MR. WAGNER: No, just the State, State prison beds.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Just the State? I asked the question, prior
to your speaking, of the other speakers about the realistic approach to be made
on this bond issue, which is only projecting 1572 beds.

MR. WAGNER: That's what came down. But, the projections in the
meetings that we held before -- the general consensus was we would need 4,800.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: That's on the State level.

MR. WAGNER: Yes.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: It is conpletely disregarding the fact that
we have a serious problem already on the county level.

MR. WAGNER: That's correct.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: And we know the serious problem we have on
the State level, and the bond monies are projecting 1,572 new’beds.

MR. WAGNER: We have projected in Atlantic Couﬁty -~ we are about
to build a new jail -- back two to three years ago that we were going to need
the additional beds.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: One other statement you made that concerned
me very rwuch too -- it was apparent from both Mr. Fauver and Mr. Stier -- was
that the overcrowding situation definitely relects back on the new Code of Criminal
Justice and the new Parole Act, and, in conjunction with that, the Speedy Trail
Program. Now, if our already projected increase of those going to State prison
is 70%, and you already have a figure estimated for this summer -- and you are
just mentioning Atlantic County -- if you take the 21 counties throughout the
State and you use the same percentage, I think basically we are going to have »
to face the reality that this whole plan is completely way out of whack. We are
not even going to touch one part of what we should be projecting.

MR. WAGNER: That's correct. The parole has released only half
this year of what they did last year.

SENATOR MC MANIMON: Thank you very much, sir.

SENATOR CODEY: Mr. Wagner, the Kughler Réport of a couple of months
ago -- we now have a little over 5,000 prisoners, and they projected that in nine
years we will have close to 15,000, so you can see the numbers we are talking
about, )

MR. WAGNER: One of the things that should be lookéd into for the
immediate s;lution would be early release. It is a hard thing to accept, but

.
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if a person is going to be released next Wednesday from jail ~- from State prison
he is not going to be rehabilitated in the next week. And, if he has done the
major part of his sentence, that may be a quick stop-gap.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Wagner.

Mr. Thomas Smith, Assistant Public Defender, Department of the
Public Advocate.

22

THOMAS
hearings. As many of you know, we handle about 80 to 85 percent of the criminal calendar

S M I T H: Thank you for inviting our office to participate at the

in the State of New Jersey. ©Of that 80 to 85 percent, you could say over 90 percent
who are incarcerated are represented by our office. So, we have an acute interest
in problems of overcrowding in both £he State institutions and in the county institutions,
You previously heard testimony as to facts concerning conditions in
our county jails; and, 'going into those jails day-in and day-out, we see those
problems. The overcrowding has caused the double-celling in cells that have been designed
for one person. Traditional.areas that we used for recreation, we used for work release
programs, we used for education, are now being used to house inmates. This has increased
tensions and has caused us problems in p:oviding representation to the inmates -- in
getting space to interview them, etc.
I am not going to take up the Committee's time by telling what we call
"war stories", but I would like to relay one story that we came across in a particular
county jail: Two inmates were placed in a cell that was designed for one inmate.
That necessitated that one inmaié would sleep on the bunk, and one inmate would sleep
on a mattress on the floor. The mattress was partially under the commode; so,in
essence, one of the inmates was sleeping under the commode. One of the inmates that
was élaced in this cell was a person who was in jail on a failure to pay motor vehicle
fines and had a slight bail of $500.00 - both of these were pre-trial. The other
person was in on a case of possession of CDS, less than 25 grams - possession of marijuana.
His bail was $1,000.00. Now, theunwritten rule amongst the inmates is that seniority
counts, and if you have been in the ceil long enough, you get the bunk; and if you
havg been there the shorter period of time, you get the mattress. There was an
altércation as to who had the seniority, because one of the inmates had paid part
of his fine and had left but was thrown back in jail in the next couple of days. He
arguéd that he had seniority from his past time. The other inmate séid, "No, your
time jended. It broke. I have seniority. I have beeéen in this cell the longest period
of tf@e on' a continuous basis." An altercation developed. A stabbing took place.

i

One of

the inmates allegedly stabbed the other inmate in the kidney. S0, now we
have % situation where we have two inmates on minor offenses; one inmate now has an
indict%ble offense against him and the other inmate is seriously injured.

Lo These are the kinds of things that develop in the county jails that
exacerbate problems ~-- the overcrowing and the tension, etc. Now, what can be done? What
I would'like to do is pose a few questions. in areas I think the Committee otight to take a
look at when they deliberate on the questions of dvercrowding. I am focusing basically on the
county jails which we are really familiar with and with which we are involved in litigation.
Iwill talk about that later.

The first area to take a look at is "béil“. A number of pre-trial

detainees are in county jails on low baills. They are in on offenses of property crimes,
thefts, motor vehicle violations, failure to pay fines, etc., and these bails run
anywhere from $50.00 up to one or two thousénd dollars, which is a relatively low bail. »
One area which the Committee ought to look at, I suggest, is the gquestion of whether -
these individuals can be released without this bail hanging over their head - possibly on

e et

R & R; or some form of work program, etc. - So that the inmates who go to jail are people
with high bail; people who are facing serious offenses. )
Also the mechanics of bail should be looked at. In one county,
we have a sjituation where if you are going to post bond: using real property, you have
to prove that the real property value is tWice'that of the bail. You also have to
go out and get an.accessor;to come in and do an evaluation of the value of the property,
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and then make a report. All of this slows down tlie eventual release of somebody on bail --
so poscibly the bail mechanics should be looked at.

I think ultimately you are going to take a look at— Given the situation
and given the facts that we have limited space, we are going to have to prioritize who
we lock up - this is both pre-trial and post disposition. The Penal Code, the effect
of the parole statute, and other things have created a situation where many more
individuals are going to jail for longer periods of time and facing more time. We should
take a look at the question of minor offenses - whether in fact they ought to be
susceptible to an incarceration period, the question of whether they ought to be susceptible
to bail at all. It is a question of prioritizing the kinds of offenses with the available
space.

Tne third area I would like to pose to the Committee is the question of
"parole®. Not so much from the standpoint of early consideration of parole - that is
a legislative function and the Legislature took a look at that, and I think the
present mood of this State is that the parole law should be tough. We have a situation
where inmates, both in the county facilities and in the State facilities, have been
determined to be releasible, but they are released sometime in the future. Possibly
we could accelerate that release both in the county facilities and in the State facilities.
In other words, they have gone before the parole board, and the parole board says, "Yes,
we are going to release you, but we are going to release you in one month, two months, three
months down the road". TIf there is proper pre-parole planning, you should be able to
release those inmates within ten, fifteen, maybe twenty days of the final determination of
the parole board.

We also have the problem, that has been exacerbated by having State
prison inmates in county jails, of classification. Every inmate that goes into the
prison system is classified. He is given what is called a "goal date” as to when
he or she can be released from parole. A number of these inmates have been sentenced
to county facilities. The classification process sometimes does not reach them for
substantial periocds of time; therefore, they are not classified or given what we call
a "state prison number" right away. The State Parole Board,to their credit, has made
concerted efforts to try to get those inmates classified. We have come across
instances where inmates have spent time in county jails and have not beén classified;
and at the point they become classified, it is determined that they were eligible for parole
at that time or prior to that. A greater effort needs to be made to classify State
prison inmates in the county jails.

Finally, one of the areas that we think is somewhat exciting is  the
questibn.&f the use -~ I know they have a program in Monmouth County -- of releasing
inmates or not sentencing them to county jail time in order to provide some form of public
service, in essence, sentencing them to a public service.

I am from Monmouth County and I am aware of a program which Judge Shebell
has started in Monmouth County. I think Mayor Scioffi of Long Branch has agreed to
participate in the program where you have a person to be sentenced before a judge who
really does not need to be locked up but needs something, and maybe probation is not
enough. Possibly working for a local municipality in the interim -and not taking up
bed space in the county jail would be better. I think that is an area that this Committee

could take a look at.
The last area that we have been involved in is the question of litigation.

The Office of the Public Defender's position is that they do not like to see the
Federal courts operate our county jails or state prisons. We have been forced, and we
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were forced to file litigation in Union County, whereupon. we were able to achieve a
consent decree with the County putting a cap on the number of inmates that can be

housed in that facility - both state inmates and county inmates. 1In fact, this morning
one of our attorneys was before Justice Mountain. They are having an evidentiary hearing
on the implementation of that consent decree. We do not want to be put in the position

of having to file litigation, because we feel that the State shoﬁld control its own
institutions. But where the institutions have become so crowded that constitutional rights
either have been violated or about to be violated, then one of the only solutions available
at that point is litigation. That is another area which we do not like to talk about

we only do that as a last resort, but that is one the solution areas that we have used
in the past. .

We have also instructed our attorneys to pay closer attention to the jail
and to make as many bail hearings as possible so that we can get inmates that we feel
should be on the street that can make bail. fometimes we run into a stone wall where a
judge will not lower the bail. We can make two or three bail motions and they still will
not lower the bail.

One or two of the things that I have talked about are really not the
solution. It is probably a combination of both or somewhere between the two extremes
Of releasing individuals or locking them up. The corrections' policy and the penal
‘policy are "out of sync. " This Legislature passed a bill which has had the effects
of locking up more people for longer periods of time. Obviously)as we have heard today,
there just wasn't any space for that. I would also caution the Committee to really
pay attention to the effects of mandatory-minimum sentencing. We have not seen that
effect yet, and that will probably exacerbate the problem even more because more and more
of our clients are being sentenced to mandatory-minimum sentences, which means that
where a’bed turned over in a certain time frame, it is not going to turn over for five,
maybe ten, fifteen, or twenty years. That will also exacerbate the problem. These two
elements, the penal policy and corrections! policy, must become more “in sync" so that
if in fact the policy judgement is made by the legislature to pass new statutes which have
the effect of locking up more individuwals, then that space will be there.

That concludes my comments and I will answer any questions. I would also
add that if we can be of any assistance to you, we would be glad to help you in any way
that we can.

SENATOR CODEY: Are there'any questions? (No response)

Thank you very much.

MR. SMITH: Thank you.

SENATOR CODEY: Next, we will hear from Mr. Donald Phelan, Chief of
Pre-trial Services, Administrative Office of the Courts.

DONALD PHELAN: Our agency wishes to thank the Committee for the opportunity
to share with it some of the things that we have done in the area of jail overcrowding.
My remarks and presentations will deal almost exclusively with the county jail over-
crowding issue, and some of the functions that the court has with respect to the
operations within the system at the local level and some of thihgs that we have done in
the pre-trial area.

We began to look at this problem very closely in late 1980; and in January
of 1981, we conducted a comprehensive survey of the county jail situation. We were
particularly interested in the'categories of offenders who were detained if facilities
awaiting trial either in the municipal courts or within the superior courts. The core
of the info;mation-ghatwe gathered during the survey was done through the cooperation
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of the State Warden's Association - WardenJFucdellolnade his presentation this ﬁorning -

as well as the cooperation of the individual wardens and sheriffs of the twenty-five

local facilities. The information zeroed in on a review of the yearly higls and lows for

the facilities covering the last decade, how the institutions handled thé administrative
bail and pre-trial release, and adetailed analysis of the facilities' population for

a day selected by the facility in the month of January. The only restriction placed on

that was the facility had to select a day - midweek ~ so that it would be more representa-
tive of an average rather than looking at a Monday, or 'a Friday, or over the weekend when the
facilities were generally a little inflated.

As I mentioned, we looked at the whole facility and concentrated primarily
on the pre-trial population. As Warden Fuccello has indicated as well as Warden Wagner,
the situation in the local facility is guite different than in the state facility. Their
population is perhaps a little bit more dynamic. In the pre-trial area, there are a number
of different classifications that the local people have to contend with - some of those
are what we call "a whole population", which is a commitment before an arfaignment takes
place. This generally takes place in the evening or in the morning hours when courts
are generally not in session. There is a classification called a "temporary commitment",
which takes after the arraignment where the offender may be awaiting a scheduled hearing
within a day or two in one of the courts. There is a committed population which generally
relates to those individuals who have been arraigned in the municipal court on indictable
offenses and the matter has been referred to the Grand Jury. Then you have your sentenced
population divided by those serving sentences in county institutions, inmates
awaiting transfer to prison, and then special population, such as weekend offenders, offend-
ers serving weekend time, work release programs, and the like.

A further stratification was made in the pre-trial area to see how
many were committed without bail conditions being set, Falling within this
category were the population where a municipal court judge has the authority to set the
bail in the first instance. The second category was where individuals were committed where
bail had been set <~ for some reason they could not post it. The third category was
those committed where bail conditions had been set, but detainers had been filed -
either there was a probation revocation filed, a parolekviolation, or a detainer from
another jurisdiction. And the fourth category was where an offender was committed where
no bail had been set because the bail setting authority was not within the province of the
municipal court. There are, under rules of the court, special categories of offenders where
only superior court judges can set the bail or pre~trial release conditions. These are
generally in the more serious crime categories - first and second degree offenses.

The overall goal of our endeavor was to isolabe possible problem areas
by dividing and taking a look at the population and seeing if there were disproportionately
high counts in any segments which could be viewed as problem. areas that should be attended
to. Some of our findings I think are Very informative and some of them are displayed
on the charts. The chart that is displayed now gives the median ranking in the facilities
~ the various twenty-five facilities - some of them are not included in the January column
because the information was not available at the time the charts were put together-
however, their information has subsequently been factored in, and the percentages that
are displayed really do not change substantially.

In Jaﬁuary, overall, the median was 105 perceﬂt of the rated capacity for
the county system, broken down in a range of anywhere from 27 to .158 percent. You can
see that in May, the median remained about the same, however, the range had increased
between 33 and 166 percent. As of last Thesday, a little over a year after the January
information was collected, the median had increased to 121 percent and the range had
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increased to 63 to 213 percent. In January of 1981, we discovered that 71.8 percent of
the county jail population were pre-trial detainees. Sixteen percent of those were
temporary commitments, and the remaining 84 percent were committed to waiting further
processing either in the muniéipal or superior court.

A closer look at the bail status of that population revealed the fact
that three percent were being detained without having bail set, generally falling into the
category of those waiting to go back to the municipal courts; 18 percent had detainers
filed on them - bail had been set, but there were detainers filed, and if the detainers
were not lifted, the defendant could go nowhere - seven percent were awaiting action in
the superior court on the more serious offenses for bail setting purposes.

Compared to the entire faegility, about half of the facility then repre-
sented defendants who were in a pre-trial category. We also set forth some of the
information on the sentenced population, which you can see 29 percent of the population
were sentenced, 62 percent to county terms, 18 percent to work release programs and weekend
sentences, and 20 percent awaiting transfer to state prison.

The final segment of that survey included some candid observation by
the administrators of the facilities as to what had caused the problems, I think
generally most of those have been covered this morning, most notably among them
the penal code, the state overcrowding situation, the general economic conditions
related to increases in crime, and the shrinking resources available in the health
service system that services the county facilities, such as the drug and alcohol programs
in mental health.

Following our analysis of that information, we met with the assignment
judges and the Chief Justice, and discussed the situation and looked at various things
that could be done immediately to perhaps impact on the local jail situation -
especially in the bail and the pre-trial release area. A series of recommendations were
agreed upon and adopted by the assignment judges at the urging of the Chief Justice.
Some of those recommendations included the following: Judges and staffs of pre-trial
release programs were to be available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. In most
counties there are pre-trial release staffSon call in every county. There is a list of
emergent judges who are available twenty-four hours, seven days a week for bail and
pre-trial release setting purposes as well as for other court related matters.

Emphasis was placed on trying non-indictable cases more quickly than
it had been done in the past. The municipal judges were asked to accelerate the number
of court schedules they had, and to try the non-indictable cases sooner than perhaps
were scheduled in the past. Of course,we have to appreciate in this situation that the
majority of the 500-odd municipal courts are all part time. It is difficult for
them to meet more frequently than they are now. A lot of them are meeting very
frequently, and in some cases, although they are only part time, they are really
functioning full time in their capacity. :

’ Another action that was taken was an immediate notification on No Bills

and remands from the Grand Jury so that if an offender was incarcerated in the county
institution awaiting action by the Grand Jury if the Grand Jury returned a No Bill,

there would be an immediate release. If therewas a No Bill Remand, whichis adowngrade,then the
matter could go back to the municipal court. Actions were instituted to give immediate
notification to the municipal court so that they could schedule that matter.

The fourth recommendation which was implemented was the adoption of the
‘ten percent cash bail program throughout the State; and as of last month, the program
is now operational in each one of the twenty-one counties.

A fifth step that was taken was a process to immediately review bail and
pre-trial release conditions of all offenders incarcerated in the count& jails. Even
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though a municipal judge may initially set the bail the day following the commitment

to the county facility, a superior court judge now reviews the condition; and if the

situation warrants it, the conditions are lessened or the defendant is released in

his own recognizance.

The last recommendation that was made and implemented was that the

assignment judge, himself, take a more active, closer role in the monitoring of the

jail list and jail cases to make sure that the judiciary was doing everything that it

should do in light of the situation.

As a result of the action in these steps that I have outlined for the

Committee, we have noticed .a significant decrease in the pre-trial population in the

county facilities. As I mentioned, in January of 1981, the pre-trial population stood

at 71 percent. As of last Tuesday, the pre-trial population stood at 57 percent, and

it has been at that figure for about the last six or seven months. We havé also

noticed a slight decrease in the number of county sentences, and they have decreased

by about three percent. Unfortunately, and I think as everyone knows and can appreciate,
the number of state prisoners held within the county institutions has dramatically

increased; and between January of 1981 and Tuesday of this week, there was an increase

of one hundred and thirty-one and a half percent. Basically that is what our agency

has done in cooperation with the judiciary. I am not sure that I can present any

miracle solutions to the problem, but I can assure the Committee that we will continue

to do everything within our power to help alleviate the situation and,as the others

have indicated, we certainly are more than willing to work with the..Committee in. any

way that you feel will be helpful.

Thank you.
SENATOR CODEY: Are there any questions? (No respadnse)
Mr. Phelan, it would appear to me that you have been or top of the

problem and all I can say to you is.  you have to keep on top of the problem because

I am sure as you heard this morning, it is only going to get worse. You have to do

your part in your capacity to help it.

problam.

MR. PHELAN: < We do, and I think the judges are very sensitive to the
They are also very sensitive to the community; they will release those that

meet the conditions, according to the standards that have been set forth,

taking into consideration the seriousness of the offense, the offender himself, the

possible consequences of the actions and all the other things that go into trying to

predict what condition would be proper and insure the defendant's appearance when

the defendant is scheduled to appear.

jail.

SENATOR CODEY: It wouldn't be a bad idea to let them go through the
We are goiﬂb to take a recess and come back in 45 minutes.

{Recess for Lunch)

28

L e ¢

SENATOR COLIEY: Our next witness will be Lucy McKenzie from the

New Jersey Association on Correction.

LUCY MC KENZIE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Lucy McKenzie, Director

of the Citizen Action Division of the New Jersey Association on Correction. The
Association is a citizens' organization, concerned with the enormous economic, social, and
human cause of crime in New Jersey. We have been working for more than twenty years to
improve the effectiveness of New Jersey's criminal justice system through our Citizen
Action Division, and to provide services to offenders and ex~offenders which will help
them return to their communities as self-sufficient citizens through our Moral Projects
Division. These services include: half-way houses in Trenton and New Brunswick, whose
residents are state prisoners nearing parole, and county prisoners sentenced directly to
the house upon conviction.

Mr. Chairman, with your approval, I will skip some of this which tells
you about how horrible the conditions are. I think you fully understand that.

In answer to Senator Bassano's question guoting the task force on
prison overcrowding, the population of the state prison complex alone, which is the maximum
and medium security facilities, will quadruple by 1990. The additional cost to incarcerate
these people will rise from 20 million to 151 million. Capital needs for bed spaces
could be 480 million, not including the inflation factor, the renovation of existing
substandard facilities or debt service. The interest on bonds alone would double the
the 280 million figure.

another crucial factor is the virtual impossibility of finding prison
sites acceptable to both the state and the community involved. No one imagines that the
State of New Jersey, faced with increasing needs and diminishing resources, will spend
this amount of money for prisons and jails. Other solutions must be found.

First, however, we must understand the cause of this dramatic increase
in the incarcerated population.-- without belaboring the point, I point to the Criminal
Code. Still to come is an additional population increase resulting from the 1981
law, requiring both extended and mandatory terms for certain crimes involving the use
or possession of a firearm.

On January 31, the editors of the Bergen Recoxrd said the unsayable.

That day's editorial stated, "There is one thing that can be done right away - repeal
or suspend those laws that call for mandatory and minimum sentences for certain crimes.
What has happened here is a breakdown in the system.~ as shocking and as predictable
as the collapse of an overloaded bridge or watermain. To ‘deal with the crime wave,

we pass toughér laws. It seemed logical and even necessary at the time, but few of

us stop to think what would happen when these laws started putting out more prisoners
than the system could handled. Now that day has arrived, and it is time to face a
painful truth: until the prisons are no longer full to bursting - until the State has
found other ways, like work release and community-service sentences to punish criminals
we are going to have to do without mandatory sentences. It is that simple.

The Association on Correction finds the Record's logic unassailable, and
we support its recommendation. It is time for a reappraisal of sentencing in the cold
light of reality. With or without the repéal or suspension of mandatory sentences, common
sense requires that other measures be taken to deal with the emergency. The Task Force
on Prison Overcrowding , whose report we support, makes the following constructive
suggestions: , ‘ )

First, an estimated 500 individuals are being denied parole, only because
of the lack of suitable residential and non-residential mental health and substance
abuse programs. That is more than the projected population of the new Camden prison.
Every effort should be made to locate and appropriate funds for more community facilities.
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Two, the Legislature should appropriate funds for the establishment

of alternatives to incarceration. I am quoting from the report: "A strong argument can be
made that if practical alternatives to incarceration are created, judges may feel that
Additionally, the cost of handling

an offender on probation or parole is much less than the expense of incarceration."

they can responsibly make more use of probation.
Among the most widely used alternatives are: first, community service and restitution.
Restitution requires the offender to reimburse the victim for damage done, while
community service requires the offender to perform work, free of charge, for public
and private agencies in the community. This kind of sentence can serve several purposes:
to compensate the victim; to provide community services which otherwise would go undone;
to link the punishment with the crime; and, to save taxpayer dollars and relieve over-
crowding.

Good programs now exist in a few counties, but most are federally funded
and in danger of elimination.

Second, half~-way houses. There are presently available, 150 to 200
half-way house beds located in Trenton, Camden, New Brunswick, and Newark, with the
State, the counties, and the federal government competing for the spaces.

The per diem cost at a half-way house is far less than the per diem in
the county jail. The half-way house alternative helps to smooth the transition from
prison to life outside for the offender. A survey conducted by the Association in
mid 1981 revealed that the operators of existing facilities are willing and able to
expand their operations. They cannot do so, however, without assurance that the
additional beds will be filled.

The present state budget allows the Department of Corrections to spend
175,000 dollars for community half-way house beds. Many other states depend heavily
upon this alternative. Ohio has 21 half-way houses for 625 offenders, with a state
appropriation of$3.6 million; Michigan has 2,200 offenders in 100 half-way houses
across the state.

Other alternatives, such as intensive supervision and house arrest,
are now under examination as part of a statewide study of probation initiated by the
Chief Justice. Recommendations will be made at a June conference.
Third, parole should be available for inmates serving less than one

year.  Legislative action is needed to implement this recommendation.

Fourth, the Legislature should pass a statute which would permit the
early release to prisoners nearing the end of their sentences in the event of serious
overcrowding. Such a statute which would be triggered only by a declaration of
emergency by the Commissioner of Corrections and the Governor, upon a finding of serious
and protracted prison overcrowding, would dccelerate parole eligibility by 90 days.
Eligibility would not mean automatic release — the existing standards for parole would
still have to be met. Such a statute has been adopted by several other states. 1In.
Michigan, approximately 800 prisoners were granted early release in May, 1981, without
adverse public reaction. ‘ '
This is a very reasonable response to the problem of the gross over-
crowding. Overcrowding is not a temporary, mildly uncomfortable condition - it
gives rise to problems and circumstances so horrible as to be unimaginable to those who
only read about them. The public cannot imagine the strain upon inmates and correctional
officers which results from such conditions as now exist in many of New Jersey's prisons
and jei1ls. We have no right, either legal or moral, to inflict such conditions upon
the keepers or the kept. Those in the best pqsition to know have said repeatedly that
we are living on borrowed time. Under the circumstances, early release seems eminately

sensible. There is much more to be said about overcrowding than time permits. It would
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make the task of this Committee easier if the 120 members of the Legislature were wellj
informed about the crisis in Corrections. To this end, I have suggested to the Assembly
Majority Leader that a briefing be held for legislators with the assistance of the
Department of Corrections and AOC. He likes the idea, and I now make the same suggestion
to you with regard to the Senate, Mr. Chairman.

) This Committee hearing, we hope, is a sign that the State's resources
will now be brought to bear upon the problem of overcrowding. The Association on
Corrections is anxious to share the informatibn we have acquired over the past year,
and we look forward to working with the Committee in the months to come. We thank you
for the opportunity to share our views with you today. (See appendix for Ms.Mackenzie's full statement)
SENATOR CODEY: Thank you very much, Ms. McKenzie.
Mr. Peter Shapiro, County Executive of Essex County.

Our next witness is

PETER
Committee.

S HA P IRO: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and members of the
My name is Peter Shapiro. I am the County Executive of Essex County,
and,as such, I am the chief Administrative Official responsible for the

operation of New Jersey's largest county correction system.

New Jersey

I am here today to plead for immediate relief from a situation that
becomes more critical and life-threatening each day. I appreciate this Committee's
understanding and concern for the problem of jail overcrowding, and particularly that
you put this as one of your first official acts and made it such a high priority area.

The level of overcrowding in Essex County's Jail and Jail Annex reached
emergency levels one year ago. In February 1981, the County sued to compel the New
Jersey Corrections Commissioner to accept state inmates being held in the county jail,
contrary to past procedures. At that time, we were consistently holding a level -
this was a year ago - of 40 state inmates. Judge Arthur Blake ordered the state to
accept its inmates initially on a scheduled basis, and thereafter, on a timely basis.
When we had 40 state inmates, we called the overcrowding a "powder keg" situation.
Shortly afterward, there was a major disturbance in the Jail that has not known until
our correction officers used tear gas - by the way, they didn't even have gas masks
when they did that - and physically forced inmates back into their cells. It was a
truly perilous situation at time. ,

We now are holding anywhere from 160 to 180 state prisoners daily -
many more times, obviously, than the 40 of a year ago. To again call the situation
a "tinder box" would be a ludicrous understatement. The fact that overcrowding has
not already caused significant bloodshed, is sheer luck, and the blame, should a
tragedy occur, must be placed squarely with the State, which has created a riot-
prone atmosphere that is a threat to public safety.

New overcrowding records are reached and then broken as quickly as they
are established. The Essex County Jail, which was built to hold 550, routinely holds
over 700 today. It is averaging about 720. Every single cell is taken, inmates also
sleep in the dining and dayroom areas which have no shower and limited bathroom facilities.
Cots are set up at night and removed during the day to prevent their destruction and
ultimate use as weapons. The second floor has a dormitory’ capacity of 70. Now,.
we are holding about 170 in that space. The hospital ward and protedtive custody ward,
located on the twelth floor,under_normai conditions would house 20 inmates. That
floor now houses 60. , i B '

We haven't been lax in our own efforts to try to ddal with the problem
Invoking emergency procedures, we have prepared sites for housing 48~ .

prisoners in state-provided trailers, which involve 200,000 in county expenses.xiThOse

ourselves.

_trailers are open and occupied today. - Also under emergency rules; the county ordered

pre-fab units costing us 1.5 million dollars which will house an additional 68 inmates.
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Those have yet to open, but should open very shortly. All of that space, thdée necessary
only to account for the overcrowding created by the state prisoners. Jail personnel

are currently working through their scheduled days off as well as working double shifts.
Overtime of the two facilities last year cost us 1.9 million dollars. The personal

toll on the correction officers and'their families because of overtime demands, cannot

be calculated in that kind of dollar figure. They are called upon to make hard sacrifices
because of the increasing demands in their job, and I know you are going to hear from at
least one of their representatives later.

The Governor's June 1981 Executive Order has caused a constant growth in
the number of state prisoners in county jails. Inevitably, this has created a. "trickle-
down effect" to the municipal prisons - basically the short-term lock-ups, which are
only intended to hold people for a very short period of time —causing a particular
hardship which I am sure you have heard about in the State's largest city. As a result,
Newark filed suit several weeks ago to force Essex County to take the detainees that
we both recognize are rightfully ours. Those prisoners are our responsibility, but we
can't accept them until the State takes its prisoners out of our facilities.

It is useful, I think, to point out a little bit of history, because we

were involved in the court cases here which brought about the Governor's Executive Order.
k When the Executive Order was first adopted, the Governor was faced with a series of
court orders that had sprung up from a variety of counties, requiring the State to

accept custody of a large number of state prisoners then being held by the counties.
Had the court orders been implemented, the State, it appears, would have been substantially
over capacity at approximately 112 percent of their system capacity, while the counties
would have been just nominally above their capacities at 101 percent. That was the
situation that the Governor found intolerable, and that was the disparity in overcrowding
that the Governor found that required alleviation. '

The Executive Order was designed to prevent that disparity by requiring
the Commissioner of Correctionsto make a fair and efficient allocation of prisoners
bétween State and county institutions; Instead,; what has happened - instead of reducing
the overcrowding disparity between the State and county facilities, the Commissioner
simply reversed it. WNow it is the counties that are grossly overcrowded, and it is the
State which is just at or slightly above capacity. The latest statewide figures we have
seen from November 1981 show that the counties are at an average of 121 percent of
capacity, and the State at an average of 102 percent - hardly a fair and equitable
situation.

' Some counties - like Essex and Passaic - are in even worse shape. _
Essex is now at 140 percent of capacity, and if we took in all the prisoners in Newark
and the other municipal lock-ups, as we really ought to, we-would be at 170 percent
of capacity. ' '

In short, instead of fairly allocating thé burden, the state has simply
attempted to exempt itself from the problem by placing its concerns foremost ahd ignoring
the needs of the counties. The point of the Executive Order was to reduce the disparity -~
the resilt has been simply to reverse it. " C ’ :

: Immediate stepg must be taken to alleviate the emergency situation that
presently exists. I urde that the State take the following actions: '

First, to invoke emergency procedures for purchasing and contracting -
the kinds of procedures that normally make these things'take a long - time to get accomplished
but which we have procedures foéjgetting around. In order to open the Fort Dix prison
within two weeks, State law provides for emergenéy procedures to avoid the inevitable
bureaucratic delays. There is enough eviderice that an emergericy exists at this point
for the State to invoke this rule. ' ' | ‘
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Number two, the immediate use of armories and vacant state institutions
for prisoners. This has already been,I understand, put forward by the Commissioner
this morning, and I will support that plea.

Third, the purchase df an adequate number of trailer and pre-fabricated
jail cells to hold the overflow prison population in its emergency circumstances. In
Essex County, we have placed trailers on the county property near the jail annex in
a fenced~in area; we have not, however, put them inside the jail compound. So, if the
Commissioner comes back and says there is no room within the jail compounds, that is
simply a false argument, and it ought to be recognized as such. There are thousands
of acres of state-owned land that the trailers or pre-fabricated units could be placed
upon, we have put them on land apart from our prison facility, surrounded it by high
fences with barbdd wire on top at least to take care of what is an obviously urgent
situation right away.

I think it is also wise of Governor Kean to examine the merits of
selective sentence reduction for non-violent offenders or the acceleration of parole
eligibility as was just earier mentioned by one of the previous speakers, in oxder
to further alleviate overcrowding conditions.

Also to add to my prepared text here, I think it is impoxrtant that
we can push ahead with efforts toward community based corrections - an area that could
yield an awful lot of benefits, but which has frustrated us repeatedly locally. There
is one important poiﬂﬁ I think needs to be made about both community corrections and
about state facilities, and that is that there needs to be a change in the way
in which we site these facilities. The long and laborious process for siting state
facilities, for siting community-based corrections facilities, is so long and becomes
so politically involved, we ought to find a way of doing it so it can happen more
efficiently. I would recommend at the very least that the power to do this be placed
strictly in the hands of the Commissioner of Corrections and he taken out of the hands
of the legislature. As a former member of the Legislature, I realize it is a serious
kind of suggestion to make as it would be a relinquishing of some control, but I think
it is the only way we are really going to get around the tremendous complications that
have arisen over the past few years.

If the State takes these steps to secure additional prison space and
free up some of the existing space, there should be no state prisoners in county
institutions. Although the counties would still face some overcrowding, in fact, we
would still be over capacity in that case, it would be at a far more tolerable level.

We could conceivably be able to handle that without the kind of danger that exists
today.

The State has been aware for more than five years that this problem
was brewing. The failure to act is inexcusable. The likelihood of violence erxupting
in our jails increases with each day's delay.

Thank you for permitting me to testify on this crisis of overcrowding.

I will be happy to answer any questions you might have.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you very much. Our next witness will be Christopher

Dietz, Chairman of the State Parole Board. ‘

CHRISTOPHER DIET Z: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee.
My name 1s Christopher Dietz, I am the Chairman of the New Jersey State Parole Board.

The purpose of my testimony is to address the correctional system overcrowding,; and in
particular, to describe the relationship between parole policy and institutional
populations.
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Others who have studied the issues in depth can better describe all
thg'trendg leading to the current situation. It becomes clear that population growth
was not an unforeseen or an unpredictable occurrence, although the magnitude of the
problem may not have been obvious. There are a Variety of options that are available
to the Legislature to deal with the current situation. Many of these will be discussed
here today. I urge that parole not be used as a tool to regulate population. However,
while we can, and have,and will continue to assist in seeking solutions, it is clear
to us that parole policy must focus primarily on risk assessment rather than the
management of institutional populations.

Our role in the criminal justice process is established in the Parole
Act of 1979. We consider inmates for parole after the punitive aspect of their
sentences have been completed and then for establishing whether the inmate may safely be
released to the community to complete his or her term under community supervision.
However, considerable attention is focused on the impact of parole policy on population.
The Board has attempted to analyze what, if any, is discernible. Findings indicate -

that parole policy has had a neutral impact on population overall, despite the fact

that parole policy has influenced the distribution of population to some extent over i
the past several years. 1

You have probably noted that there have been cyclical trends in population,
April 30, 1980, there were 6,618 inmates confined in state facilities. By September 30,
1980, however, this had declined to a population of 6,039, a decline primarily due
to an interim impact of the implementation of the Parole Act as I will further explain.
However, by December of 1981, the total population had risen to an all~time high of
8,478 inmates. During 1980 and 1981, institutional populations rose as the impact of
the new Penal Code began to be felt. The proportion of all defendants receiving prison
terms doubled, while those receiving youth indeterminate sentences remained roughly
constant at about 10 to 11 percent. Thus, a huge increase in prison admissions occurred.
During the first six months of 1981, the State courts sentenced as many defendants to
state prisons as they would have normally sentenced within an entire year.

Statistics of the Administrative Office of the Court indicate this
trend will continue. Although the proportion of indeterminate sentences remains roughly
the same, an increase in the number of defendants sentented resulted in soniewhat more
indeterminate admissions. As a result, New Jersey now faces a major problem in its
ability to house inmate populations, a problem it shares with a number of states across
the nation.

I would like to examine the parole release levels in New Jersey over 1980
and 1981. Parole release levels in New Jersey were relativély constant in the period
from '75 to '79. During this interval, approximately 3,900 to 4,000 inmates were
paroled annually from state correctional facilities. By 1978, this level had risen to
4,100 inmates. However, in calendar year 1980, 4,743 parole releases occurred, a i
significant increase over previous years. This release expansion was experienced almost
exclusively in the prison complex.

We have examined monthly statistics, and they demonstrate that the .
rise in parole releases was particulayly significant during the months of May, June, July,
August, and September of 1980. In fact,; even the small rise experiencedoutside the prison
complex during this time is likely due to the prisonkinmates housed in the youth corrections
complex. :

You should note that this rise in release levels occurred immediately
after the effective date of the new parole Act on April 21, 1980, and appeared to be

related to several provisions of the act noted below. Rather than recite them as I did i'
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in my statement, I will just breifly explain them to you, Senator. One provision was, under
the old system, the Parole Board could set parole dates as far away as one year from
the date of the hearing, but it would be a date actually given to the individual at

the time of the hearing. The new provisions of the Parole Act of '79 required that

the Board, upon making a determination that the individual was safe for return to
society, mist immediately set a date. So, there was an acceleration of those dates.

It wasn't that they were getting released early, it was to the earliest point that they
were allowable by law, when the punitive aspect of the sentence was over.

The Legislature then in another provision said to all multiple offenders,
because the 2C provisions of the new code wiped out the offenders status concept and
gave the judges other means of imposing extended terms-- It said to all multiple
offenders that were then existent in the prisons, -if the prosecutor and the judge concur
that this will not affect their concept of the punative aspect, and will satisfy the punitive
aspects, specifically, you can get a full step reduction. If they don't axmur,jf-aﬁher
the judge or the prosecutor were to say they oppose the reduction, there would be a half
step. This was recently tested in the courts, and the Appellate Division upheld the
constitutionality of this legislative provision.

The next point that came to the attention of the Board was not within
the Parole Act, but the effect of the three-judge sentencing panel. What had happened
was 2C decriminalized offenses and lowered the penalties for some offenses and changed
the degree of crime for some offenses. For individuals who had been stringently
sentenced under the old code, they could appeal to a three-member panel -- I believe they
sat in Newark -- and the judges had the authority to reduce the sentences, Yo the deqree
that there was a reduction there, this accelerated. What happened, Senator was,
imagine 100 -- as a point of example -- people in prison. If during the normal course
of events, ten people would have been released every month, in ten months the 100 people
would have been exhausted. What happened was, there was an acceleration. So, as that
acceleration came up, there was no means to fill it, so that the statistics that fol-
lowed showed that the very next year we payed the price. If you were to take the
4,700 we had in 1981, and then’take what Commissioner Fauver talked about, the 3,300, and
mean average Lhem oul, You golt Lbe 4,000 that is normally released evegy year. What
he did was he got all the strawberry shortcake at the beginning of the meal, and when it
came time for dessert there nothing left. 8o, we are paying for that type of problemright
now.

In summary, several distinct factors produced a one-time rise in release
levels in 1980. A normal rate of 4,100 would have been expected. Instead, the implementa-
tion of thenew act increased this by 650, as I pointed out, and the parole rate was expected
to drop again in 1980, which of course it started to do in October.

“While this was partially attributable to the expected dec¢line in former
levels, other trends were observed. Available data indicated that the prison complex
release began to stablize in 1981, but a decline, again in paroles, was experienced in
the youth complex. Statistigs suggest-that-a.number of releases were running at about
éxpected levels,based upon historical data. Inthe §outhcomplex,the levels in 1981 declined.
The reason for this temporary decline can be determined. Under the new Parole Act, the
State Parole Board, ratherthan the institutional classification departments and the boards
of trustees, now has jurisdiction over all youth cases - indeterminate sentences.

The Board published a schedule -- I am going to divert from my testimony here for a

second and try to condense it for you -- and in publishing it, they increased the amount of time
a person would have to serve. No longer would-a person serve roughly ten to twelve months
for armed robbery. The mood of our communities, the intent of the courts, and obviously

o SR oA A A ik




the prosecutor, and in the best interest of making sure the individual c¢ould be returned
and given an opportunity, the Board toughened those .standards. We published them, and we
knew there was going to be an impact, and what happened, again, is there was a period of time

when the young adults that would have normally been almost in a revolving door

situation, in and out -~ the revolving door stopped and there was an accumulation of young
folks that had to do more time to understand that society simply was not going to tolerate
their shenanigans. This carries over, and I am diverting from my testimony.

This also caried over into our parole revocation decisions. There is
no question that the Board has toughened the parole revocation. But that is so funda-
mental to the integrity of the parole process. The Board has consistently said, before
other committees of the State Senate in other years, that parole is an earned trust.

It is. a privilege, not the forgiveness of a sentence. It is the privilege of serving
the remainder of your term in the community as a law-abiding, productive citizen. Last
year we had under our supervision, 13,500 people. Of that number, we brought badk 1,375
Of the 1,375 that we brought back last year to prison, a little more than 500 had
committed new crimes. That is roughly 4 percent of the parole population that was out
there with the privilege of serving the remainder of their term under community
supervision. A little more than 800 were brought back on technical violations. Now,
someone could say: "Why Jdo you haveto be so tough on that?" Those are the individuals

who are no longer tolerable risks. We are not going to wait until they go out

and hurt somebody. We are not going to wait until they do something. When

they have demonstrated their return to their former 1life style, they have demonstrated
they are no longer worthy of the trust of society. Not to have the Board bring that
type of person back would critically disable the paroling Process in New Jersey, and
probably irrevicably damage the trust of the public. Some counties recently, one in
particular, issued an Executive Order, that no parole violators will be allowed

into their facilities because of this overcrowding. Nothing cripples the integrity

of the criminal justice process in New Jersey more than that.

It is my understanding this morning from the Deputy Attorney General
assigned to advise the Board that steps are being taken to correct this. We understand
the problems of £he counties, and again, speaking apart from my testimony, the -

Board has put a team of three people out in the field. Both the executive director and
myself have made ourselves available to any county institution. We are identifying people,
we are holding hearings, and we have assigned hearing officers. The Bureau of the Budget
certainly has been cooperative in allowing us the necessary staff to go out and do this
work as quickly as possible. The work of the Parole Board is not to relieve overcrowding,
it is to identify, by the standards set by the Legislature, those individuals who are
worthy of trust. As was pointed out earlier, at this very moment in our system we have
approximately 1,300 people that already have affirmative parole decisiogns. We have already
made the determination that they are safe for society. The statistics shows that we

have not been that bad. v

Four percent for new crime is not =~ I realize if there was a victim in
the foom, they would say it happened to me, you should do some about that. Every effort
is made to refine that down. But to the degree that you could say an earlier release of
those individuals whe already have the parole, could instantly resolve this; you could
get your 1,200 people almost within ten to fifteen days if appropriate legislation were
to be sponéored with the Govenor's support. It is-wi"option. "I think of all the options
available to us, in the years that I have been in %he criminal justice process as Parole
Board Chairman , and the 40,000 casés that I have now -- last year it was 35,000; every »
yeér it increases by 5,000 —— it does theleast damage to the credibility. The individual
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that we would be considering has already earned the trust determination - that determina-
tion has been made not because a gun was at the temple of the Parole Board, or the temple
of State Government of the Executive Branch or the Criminal Justice process itself, because
of a court intervention it was because we determined that these People could be released.
There is no reason in the world-- I can assure you that if these people were to be released within

a ninety day period or earlier -—— and, we are not talking about forgiveness of sentence, we
are not saying we are cutting the sentence short 90 days, all we are suggesting is that

a provision allow us to accelerate eligibility — it would have a dramatic impact and

could provide relief, but, again,as the New Jersey Association of Corrections and other speakers
have pointed out, these are interim measures. Something has to be done to look at the over-
view.

One of the other things, and the last point-- And, I am going to completely
abandon even going back to my statement; I will leave my statement to stand as a matter of
record, Mr. Chairman. I was recently at Essex County, and an individual appeared for
a parole hearing. The individual had originally been sentenced to a 364 day term. As such,
he would not have been eligible for Board consideration, or subject to the Board
jurisdiction. But because he smuggled drugs into the institution, and a municipal judge
gave him a 60 day consecutive sentence, he suddenly became eligible for parole considera-
tion. Parole has got to be something that you do not get because you are doing something
wrong. Eligibility even should be something. I think that is an inane concept.

I think if you are going to have parole, you might as well bring it right
down to the individuals under one year. There doesn't seem to be any rhyme or sense to
cause an individual to have to commit another crime to become eligible for parole. Needless *
to say, the Board is not granting paroles to people who commit crimes to get eligibility.
It seems almost ridiculous that that is the way the system is structured right now.

Are there any questions, Mr. Chairman?

SENATOR COLEY: Senator McManiman?

SENATOR MC MANIMON: This is quite interesting.

SENATOR COLEY: Very interesting testimony.

MR. DIETZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you.

Our next witness will be Senator Hamilton from National Countil on
Crime and Delinquency.

SENATOR WILLIAM J. HAMIL T O N: Mr. Chairman and members of the

Committee, at the outset, let me take this opportunity to thank you for the privilege
to appear before you, and to commend all of you - particularly you, Mr. Chairman,
for the leadership you are displaying in calling this hearing, and attempting to come
to gripswith what is one of the most serious problems facing New Jersey today.

The problem of prison overcrowding is a persistent one, and probably
will become a much greater problem before any real relief is forthcoming. It has set
branch of government against branch of government, level of government against level of
government. It is emotional; it is expensive. There are no easy solutions, there are
no quick=solufions, there are no inexpensive solutions, and there are no risk-free solutions.
You deserve our thanks and commendation for the effort you are undertaking, and you already
have that. You also deserve the assistance and the constructive criticism of members of
the public sector and the private sector interested in correotions' matters, and that is
why I am here today and undoubtedly why others representing a variety of interests and
perspectives in the private and public lives of this State are here today.

Mr. Chairman, I am hére on behalf of the National Council on Crime and
Delinguéncy, -a national, hon—profit organization, with its headqguarters in Hackensack
in this State. The National Council on Crime and Delinguency, NCCD, is an organization of
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tens of thousands of professionals and concerned citizens, having as a principal goal

to foster community based programs for the prevention, treatment and control of
delinquency, and crime. NCCD has spoken out in the past on corrections policy in

New Jersey, but the problem you and I, and New Jersey face today, is probably more
weighty and more difficult than any that NCCD has addressed in New Jersey in the past.
It implicates the safety of our citizens, it implicates the ex-enditure of our limited
resources, and it implicates, as well, the manner in which we handle or correct those
who violate the laws of our State - the overwhelming number of whom will someday, sooner
or later, better or worse, resumeé living in society.

The way in which one defines the problem of overcrowding is probably
based mainly on one's perceptions and value judgements; one's philosorly of corrections,
if you will, rather than on some neat, analytical matrix. Those perceptions and
judgements will probably color, more than anything else, the solutions proposed. A few
objective facts do stand out. State correctional facilities - maximum security, medium
security, and minimum security - looked at by any measure of capacity, are seriously -
no, dangerously - overcrowded. County correctional facilities -~ the county jails and
county work houses - are also seriously and in many cases dangerously overcrowded.

In the case of county facilities, it seems clear that the major problem
is the presence of large numbers of state prisoners already sentenced, who are being
held in county facilities for a lack of cells in state facilities. Thus, if the problem
of overcrowding in state facilities were to be solved, the problems of the several counties
would be greatly reduced, if not eliminated.

The Report of the Governor's Task Force on Prison pvercrowding indicates
that nearly 13,000 persons, a 28 percent increase, were sentenced in the first nine
months of 198l. To some, that 28 percent increase is an appropriate and justifiable
response to a perceived wave of crime and lawlessness. To others, the increase
represents an overreaction to legitimate concerns about criminal activity and the
minimal absence of, or under utilization of, other resources for handling those convicted
of crime.

Whatever viewpoints we may take, I suggest that an examination of a number
of basic facts, preliminary to the question of what to do about overcrowding, but
directly relevant to the fact of owercrowding, is appropriate. Most observers have
related the problem of overcrowding directly to the adoption of the New Jersey criminal
code, which became effective on September 1, 1979. Enacted on August 16, the code had
been discussed and debated in New Jersey since as early as 1970. If the code truly
represents a major cause of overcrowding - and I think it does - we ought to be able
to measure that from experience of the past two and one-half years. What has happened
since Title 2C became the criminal law of New Jersey? Well, the Task Force report tells
us that the rate of incarceration, the percentage of convicted offenders who receive
confinement sentences, has increased 42 percent to 55 percent. Itself, an increase of
31 percent. The average term of incarceration has increased from 2.2 years to 3.6 years,
an increase of 61 percent. Those numbers are dramatic. They suggest that unchecked,
the problem of overcrowding will increase and exacerbate.

I think it is appropriate to ask, and most appropriate to .ask in this
legislative forum, whether these increases are the result of c¢onscious policy decisions
to dramatically increase rates of incarceration and average sentences. If so, were the
implicatiens of such policies on prison space reguirements ever contemplated? As some-
one who participated in the process, I suggest that no such conscious policy was developed,
and that implications of increased prison capacity were not perceived. At hest a
visceral "get tough on crime" attitude was probably present. No f£iscal note was sought,

and no planning process was undertaken in response to +he visceral decisions made.
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Indeed the need for additional cell space was never mentioned in Trenton, until
Commissioner Fauver arrived at a Capital Budgeting and Planning Commission meeting
in May, 1980, requesting a bond issue to provide the funding for one, 400-bed prison.

If I am correct in my assessment that preciousilittle conscious policy-
making was present in the enactment of the code, some reassessment is in order now.
For the Legislature makes policy, whether or not it makes it consciously, and the
absence of attention to conscious policy-making, if forgiveable in the first instance,
is certainly not justifiable now when it is possible to sece clearly the product of
past visceral decisions.

Without a change in sentencing policy, more mandated sentences and
increased gradation of offenses are going to flow, and today's overcrowding will next
year seem like a tea party. '

The Governer's Task Force reports the following projected prison populaﬁion
for our New Jersey system: January, 1981, 7,785; two years latexr, 1983, 7,780; two years
after that, 1985, 95,480; and Januvary 1, 1990, eight years, not ten years from now,

14,400 convicled and incarceratced persons. At the present rate, during 1982,

the prison population will increase by roughly 635 prisoners every three months. That
is one and a half, 400~bed prisons, four times this year, or 6, 400-bed prisons needed
this year. ILooked at on the basis of capital cost, a total of 480 million dollars for
construction will be needed between now and 1990 if costs were to be 60,000 dollars

a bed - a figure that I submit is demonstrably already Jlow.

And what of capped operating costs? The Task Force projects additional
costs from 1982 to 1990 at the present rate of 14,000 dollars per inmate per year as
follows: 1983, almost 57 million additional dollars; 1985, 81 million additional
dollars; 1990, over 151 million additional dollars.

Does anyone really think that the taxpayers of this state are prepared
to pay these sums for prisons that they do not want anywhere near their homes in the
first place? Are yourcolleagues prepared to impose taxes to pay for these capital and
operating expenses in this economy and at a time when social service programs, student
loans, housing, transportation, and other worthwhile programs are being decimated?

I believe the answer to both questions is a resounding no.

I suggest to this Committee, perhaps alone, perhaps jointly with the
Judiciary Committee, with or without the corresponding Assembly Committees, you undertake
a review of the criminal code, with respect to mandatory sentences, presumptive sentences,
the degree of some offenses, and similar matters ~ and that you make a conscious re-—
appraisal of the policy decisions and implications in the Criminal Code. Some of these
things you should change, others you undoubtedly will leave intact. In either event,
both you and the public will have a greater appreciation of the meaning and consequence
of those provisions and of the prison and other corrections resources your decisions
require.

In the same vein, I suggest that Supervisory Treatment or Pre-trial
Intervention, which is a pre-adjudicative, non-custodial program for least dangerous
offenders, is employed with great disparity as among the twenty-one counties. PTI
is a state-wide program. Some prosecutors and some courts employ it broadly and
achieve prompt, sure, and most often, effective justice, at the same time conserving
vzluable court, prosecutor and juror time for more serious cases or hardened offenders.
In other counties, PTI is rarely used. Data that would identify the counties in which
PTI is working and why it is widely used may suggest to other counties that PTI be used
and ugsed offectively to handle some number of additional offenders. L urge that you
either undertake the accumulation of such data or that you require that it be gathered
and presented to you.
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The inquiry into and assessment of Code sentencing provisions can affect : % 

the overcrowding problem on the intake side. Other thin the intake side, there are at ' B i . ] . ]
: a governor's emergency overcrowding order. This could provide some fiscal relief to

the counties and some additional motivation to state officials to act to resolve
a overcrowding with rational measures.

least two other elements in the overcrowding eguation: capacity and release. iﬁ:
Others who have testified or will testify today, have or will, I am

i ainst ssive construction as the answer to overcrowding. ] ) ) .
confident, arque strongly agal nassy * g Mr. Chairman, my final comments relate to the third element in solving

i i t ith that testimony. £ . .
I will not duplicate those arguments, nor compete with that testimony < the overcrowding equation-release. Here I suggest the establishment of a statutory

I believe, based upon having been around this Legislature, that some

. . . . . A system to provide for release of selected prisoners — I know other witnesses have
increase in capacity by construction, aecquisition, expansion, or renovation, 1is likely -

. . mentioned this - prisoners suitable for early release, and that would occur when the
to be sought and obtained regardless of what anyone may think of the wisdom of such

Prison system reaches or exceeds a certain percentage of rated capacity.

icy. ithi onses, there are some that, from the point ' ) ‘
policy Within the broad array of such responses, ¢ There are those who will attack such an approach as soft or resist it

of view of cost and policy, are sounder and wiser, both short-term and long-term.

) ] ] # as unworkable. On the contrary, I suggest it is appropriate, practical, humane, and
Two such options bear mentioning. The first is the use of o

v g 7 necessary.

ix - t that you alreadyheard comments on that today. o
Stockade at Forc pix -~ and T suspec hat ¥ Y Y The Governor's existing clemency power can be used to release prisoners

i i well. A supplemental appropriations ; & . e .
Planning has begun and pexhaps construction as we PP PpEoR : on certain conditions. Indeeéd the Emergency Overcrowding Executive Order, proclaimed

bill has been passed. While there are problems of capacity and visitation, and

= . [ :EQ by Governor Byrne, more recently by Governor Kean, is a form of release or cap control.
concexrning the location of the armory, the Fort Dix Stockade does represent available ;

. ort & I suggest that such a measure is far more appropriate for legislative fashioning than
e - - i i shor o]

spacze - up to 536 beds - capable of renovation at relatively low cost for a for executive edict. The legislature enacts the criminal laws and appropriates the

funds for the operations of the prison system. It is the legislature that should provide

the safety valve when a dangerous overcrowding situation, such as now exists, occurs.

mid-term response.

The use of Fort Dix will avoid a more costly commitment to building a
capacity that may not be needed long-term, but would likely be used if available

. . Z Moreover, it is not the inaction of the legislature in the face of the
then,at the expense of less restrictive and community based rehabilitative programs. : 8

i . S exercise of the executive power that is the likely area of conflict, it is the power
I urge you to monitor closely the development and use of Fort Dix, using your legislative - -

of the courts to order release when overcrowding exists that should concern this Committee

: :ﬁ and all of your legislative colleagues.
The second existing resource worthy of serious consideration is Tr¥enton i o

and budget oversight powers.

- Make no mistake that the courts - State or Federal - will act when - I
Psychiatric Hospital. The Vroom Building,on the Trenton campus, now houses some of the o

4 1 1 ] say "when", not "if" -~ requested to act and the circumstances require. We witnessed
i i obabl, ill be used exclusive 4
most violent and dangerous of state prisoners, and probably w Y i 1S last year, a federal court order the release of Alabama State prisoners because of
i an Services departs. = . . . .
by the Department of Corrections when the Department of Human P . G overcrowding, and our own Superior Court order release to remedy overcrowding in the

i i ould be used for housin . . . . . .
But, a second resource at Trenton Psychiatric cou € g 2 Union County Jail. IFf the executive and legislative branches fail to act, the message
b 8 is clear, the judiciary will not similarly fail to act. Yet, the legislature is the part
i i tes who o . , .
The Governor's Task Force reports a Parole Board estimate of perhaps 500 inma - I of government best able to Ffashion compromises and balance competing interests. Thus,

it is the legislature that should act.

what I think is probably the most unfortunate segment of the prison overpopulation.

are or would be parvle reudy, but [or the absence of suitable community-based mental

health and substance abuse programs to assist in the transition from incarceration to Your willingness to hold this hearing indicates that you and your

Commi.ttee are prepared to do so. As I suggested earlier, a form of cap already exists.
It éxists onthe state system by virtue of the Governor's Executive Order, and near

freedon. 3
What better use of the McCrae Building at Trenton Bsychiatric than to

house former alcohol and drug dependent prisoners and those with other mental health { chaos in the county system is the result. Now is the time for a legislatively designed

8 safety valve ~ a release mechanism, a capping bill. Such legislation has been enacted
‘f in other states that face severe prison overcrowding, and it has worked. It matters
; little or not at all whether such legislation is patterned after Minnesota, or Michigan,

problems? McCrae is slated for closing, perhaps as early as July of this year. It is
sturdy, it is secure, and many of the Department af Human Services personnel who might
lose their jobs if McCrae is merely closed as a psychiatric facility could be retained

and/or retrained as corrections aides. or Delaware. All have functional cap legislation. The details as to how it is triggered,

This use of McCrae should be examined, not only for the 346 beds it could and who should be eligible for release can be developed in your committee, taking into

provide, but more importantly for the inmates who can be afforded an opportunity for account past criminal record, sentence remaining, and other relevant considerations.

timely parole release with the counselling and support they require to make it on t@e I believe there is no greater legislative priority than a corrections

system cap and overcrowding release bill. I urge you to act now. On behalf of NCCD,
our sources are available to assist you with such legislation, and with respect to all
aspects of overcrowding.

outside. ”

One final capacity-related idea should be mentioned. The Governor's
Emergency Overcrowding Executive Order has resulted in some 1,100 state prisoners being
jammed into county jails. As I said earlier, transfer of those prisoners to state -

I thank you for letting me share these thoughts with you, and I wish you

facilities would greatly alleviate the problems of the counties, If the State cannot good luck.

cure the problems @f its own making, it can at least compensate the counties for the SENATOR CODEY: Senator McManimon?
SENATOR MC MANIMON: I would just like to take the opportunity to
compliment Senator Hamilton on this presentation today, and I would definitely urge
every member of the Legislature of both houses . redeive a copy of this testimony. I

think you attacked it directly,’Bill. You went right to the heart of it, and it is

danger and expense to which the counties are put. I would urge that most serious
consideration be given to imposing an additional, if you will, penalty ox surcharge
on the State for each day that a state prisoner remains in a county facility under

W
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our responsibility-- I am very happy that our Chairman has called this session today
because I think he realizes our responsibility; and by putting this message in the hands
of evé§§ légig;ator, if he really reads it, he is going to give some serious
thought to ité”

SENATOR HAMILTON: Thank you, Senator.

SENATOR CODEY: Thank you very much. Our next witness will be
Mr. George Conk, Public Interest Lawyers of New Jersey.

N
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GEORGE C O N K: I would like to thank the Committee for allowing us

the opportunity to testify today. I would like to thank the Committee for calling
this hearing. I think it is important and commendable that an initiative on this
duestion was taken at such an early date, really at the first possible opportunity.

I am George Conk and I am Chairperson of Public Interest Lawyers of New
Jersey. I am here today with Neil Cohen, who is the Legislative Coordinator
of our Criminal Justice Task Force. I would like to take the opportunity to associate
ourselves with the recommendations of Senator Hamilton. We also were impressed
with his presentation and have to confess that his participation in our recent
Criminal Justice Conference helped us clarify and form our own ideas. We see that
in the last three months he has further developed his ideas. We are very pleased
that the Vice Chairman also responded so positively to what we agree was an impressive
presentation.

We appreciate that the Committee and many others have been here for a
long time. We have a rather lengthy prepared statement which is accompanied by a
National Crime Survey Report from September 1980, called "Criminal Victimization
in the U. S." We would appreciate it if those two items could be placed in the record
rather than burden the Committee with a full recitation. (See appendix for items
submitted by Mr. Conk.)

Let me comment briefly on our perspective. We agree with Sena*“or Hamilton
and with Peter Shapiro that the direction we must move is toward a county community-
based correction system. We also support the recommendation of the Governor's Task
Force on Prison Overcrowding. We think they did an impressive job and underlined the
fact that if we don't act in a plamned and careful way, we will be forced to act by
agencies outside with less sensitivity to our needs.

We have two fundamental propositions, each of which is addressed to the
basic perspective that we should not bs investing heavily in new prison capacity. It
is expensive and I think that the results of the referendum on the prison bond
in New York State have demonstrated that it is not even very popular politically.

It is particularly going to be unpopular politically for ledgislators and for the
Executive to propose massive new gpending given the budgetary crisis which the State

is facing and which it appears as a result of initiatives of the national administration
is going to grow graver rather than less.

There is a problem of crime in our society whose gravity no one will
dispute. There is a prison crisis in our society and we have to ask whether we have
a prison crisis because we are responding to a crisis growth in crime in our society
or whether it is a result of changes in the operation of our criminal justice system
and our laws. "'

We believe that the crisis is as a result of the new Criminal Code. Our
organization is substantially made up of defense attorneys: Public Defenders, private
attorneys, former Public Defenders, persons who work in each phase of the criminal
justice system. We know the system. We know what is happening on the street. We
know what is happening in the jails. ' And we know what is happening in the prisons.
None of us has any illusions about what is happening. But we have undertaken a
study that surprised all of us.  Most of us with a general liberal perspective
assumed that crime was correlated somehow to unemployment rates and things like that.
What we have discovered, using ﬁhe best available data, is that it is simply non-

- responsive to.economic fluctuations or anything else that seems to be going on,

including the operation of the criminal justice system. The study that we have made
available to the Legislature is a National Crime Survey Report from the Bureau of
Justice Statistics of the United States Department of Justice. The surprising result
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is that if any trend can be discerned from 1973 to 1979, which was the last long-term
study for robbery, assault, rape, larceny, household burglary and motor vehicle

theft across the country, that one.is a slightly downward one. We are simply not
contending with a dramatic increase in crime or, in fact, any increase in crime at
all. We have obtained from the United States Census Bureau, whose statistics
corroborate those of the United States Department of Justice, statistics which
indicate that there is no significant difference for New Jersey at all. So the notion
that we are in the midst of a national crime wave in which New Jersey is facing an
increase which exceeds that of the national rate simply doesn't have any basis in
fact when we use that form of statistic which we think is most reliable, that is,
victimization studies involving close scientifically designed guestioning of randomly
selected groups of the population. These are studies which are being conducted every:
three months over a period of twenty years. We would be happy to make available

to you and any interested persons copies of those statistics and facts.

We have, therefore, come to conclude that the criminal problem in our
socity - the problem of crime - is essentially beyond the capability of the criminal
justice system and that we can more readily make things worse than we can make things
better. We have been forced to confront the fact that Title 2C has made things
worse in that it has created the prison overcrowding crisis without having a measurable
impact on crime. As a result, we have a series of suggestions for amendment which
are detailed in our prepared statement. Let me just summarize them briefly.

First, the Criminal Code created a series of presumptive sentences and
ordinary terms of imprisonment. In practice, judges have treated them as nearly
mandatory norms. So if there is a conviction of a second-degree robbery, the
customary sentence is 7 years and rarely less. If there is a first-degree, the
presumptive term is 15 years and rarely less. What discretion is exercised - and judges
here believe they are responding to the public's cry and the Legislature's command -

is discretion in favor of longer terms, specifically the use of the minimum-mandatory

sentence, the parole disqualifier, which we feel should be abolished and should be
abolished forthwith. '

The result of the system is that rather than decreasing sentencing
disparity it is increasing sentencing disparity. We feel there has to be a return
to greater use of judicial discretion in sentencing.. Therefore, we have proposed,
first, an elaboration by the judge to be made at the time of sentencing of the nature
and role of each defendant's participation in a crime. I am talking here from the
practical experience of an attorney who has tried a number of armed robbery cases in
the last year. If you have three men involved in an act, one is invariably a by-
stander, one has the gun and the third has some intermediate level of involvement.
Those three people should be assessed differently because juries and people at large
assess the degrees of culpability differently. What we have now typically is that
all three would receive the same presumptive sentence and, varying widely from judge
to judge, a minimum-mandatory, which can be up to one-half of the maximum sentence
permitted for that degree.

So, we have large numbers of people who are im jail for 5 years, 7 years
parole disqualified, and the message to them is: "Nothing you do while in prison
can affect your parole date. If you avoid committing a crime in prison, you are
going to get out on that set date." There is mo incentive to study. There is no
incentive to work. There is no incentive to participate in any programs. We think
that is counterproductive.  We think that the use of that is particularly counter~
productive because it varies so widely from county to county, from judge to judge,
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from case to case, that it has created tremendous disparities in the system. It is

a shock if in Morris County a 7- or l0-year minimum-mandatory parole disqualifier

is imposed. For those of us who practice in the criminal justice system in Newark,

it is routine. We don't even notice. We are surprised to learn it is differept some-
where else. The result of that minimum mandatory creates a class of prisoners with

no interest in cooperation once in the system and is a key element in the increase

in the prison population. And you heard Senator Hamilton and others speak about the
use of the minimum mandatory. It is simply the one single mechanism in the Code which
is most responsible for the increase in the prison population.

To eliminate the minimum mandatory is to allow greater discretion to the
Parole Board. And I think that we can all agree from Mr. Dietz's presentation and
from our knowledge of his performance as the Chairman of the Parole Board the serious-
ness and rigor with which that Board takes its work. If we eliminate the minimum
mandatory and we allow the parole system to function in its normal way, what we will
find is large groups of prisoners coming up for parole eligiblity at, say, 2 1/2 years
for a second degree, 3 1/2 or 4 years for a first degree, rather than serving out the
5 or the 7. That period of time between 2 1/2 and 5, say for a second degree, or 3 1/2
and 7 for a first degree, is the time period within which the Parole Board, based on
the conduct of the prisoner inside the system, can make an individualized determination
about the likelihood of that person committing a new crime.

So we feel that to eliminate that one mechanism, the minimum-~mandatory
sentences, will reduce the number of people being pressed into the system and will
allow us to judge more wisely and individually the release dates of those who are in
the system, because sentencing has always been and it should return to being a two-step
process; the judge, based on his knowledge of the facts of the case and the pre-
sentence recport,can make a determination for now, for today. Then sometime later
down the road, that prisoner's behavior within the institution and his adjustment
can again be assessed by the Parole Board. Right now, by using the minimum mandatory,
we have eliminated that individualized assessment that the Parole Board makes.

Our third fundamental proposal is, to begin to move toward a ccunty-based
system and a community-based system, that there should be a presumption enacted by the
Legislature of non-imprisonment in the State Prison complex for third and fourth
degree offenses. Those primarily involve drug-related burglary or non-violent property
type offenses. If incarceration is necessary for those offenses, it should be in the
county system. The State Prison should essentially be reserved for those who have
committed violent crimes and used deadly weapons.

Further, we believe that all custodial sentences in the county systems
should presumptively, not without exception, but presumptively ——— the ordinary pattern should
be that they are served on weekends or inwork release programs in order to minimize the
disruption of emplovment, education, family and other social factors. We have simply
seen too many times as defense attorneys a man cames in- and it is a typical story - with
a drug problem and a job, who is at the airport stealing luggage. The numbers could go
on forever. It is simply pointless to take a man who is managing to hold a job and
put him in a custodial setting that requires him to lose the job. It is one thing
to say the man should be in jail on weekends or at night. That can very, very often
be supported and justified. But to take a man out of a job when he is coming from
a sector of society where jobs are few and far between, we think is counterproductive.

We also feel that increased reliance on the county institutions is very
valuable because they can best coordinate with the existing county-based health,
vocational and educational systems. The kinds of programs that Peter Shapiro will be

down here every day trying to defend can utilize and coordinate with county correction
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centers, whether they are drug programs, half-way houses, county hospitals, or
county colleges. Each of them can coordinate with the Probation Departments and

the County Prisons to move us toward a cheaper, possibly more effective and certainly
more desirable community-based correction system,

Finally, I would just like to add that we, of course' , endorse the recom-
mendation of the Governor's Task Force on Prison Overcrowding for an early release
bill. Chairman Dietz pointed to a population in the system that is appropriate for
such a bill. Senator Hamilton underlined that. And we feel that the feasibility and
necessity of that are so clear that action on this should be at least nearly immediate.

Thank you very much. Neal.

NEIL M. C O HE N: What we have been trying to do is suggest non-budgetary
solutions to the problems. The political atmosphere is such that sectors of society
are requiring that money not be thrown after problems. What Senator Hamilton has
provided in terms of solutions and what we are proposing are non-budgetary solutions.
You can have six Fort Dix facilities and it is very expensive, as Senator
Hamilton pointed out. You can build new State facilities and they would cost about $60,000
a bed. What should be implemented are such solutions as changes in Title 2C. That
doesn't cost any money. As soon as a facility, I promise you - Mr. Conk and I know
the system as defense attorneys --- as soon as that 600-bed facility is built, there
is a word that goes out to all the criminal judges in New Jersey and they say to
themselves, "Well, there are more beds now. So I can sentence and incarcerate more
people and I can give them longer terms." So six months after you open the Fort Dix
facility, it is going to be overcrowded. Courts are going to use the Persistent Offender
Act more frequently because it only requires that someone have two convictions. The
Code doesn't require or set forth whether those two convictions be violent offenses.
The court is going to use the mandatory minimum more often. It is going to use the
Persistent Offender Act more often. Because as soon as the new Code was implemented,
the courts said, "Now we can put more people away." BAnd they did. That is why
there has been an increase in the length of terms and the number of people going
to State facilities. But you can have six more State facilities and those beds will
be used up within six months.

Therefore, the more beds we provide, the more people are going to be
sentenced. People who should probably not go to jail for such long terms will now
go because there is more bed space. It is like a Catch 22. So then, look at the
Code. It doesn't cost any money to modify the statutes or the sentencing procedure.
That is a method to reduce prison population.

When 2C was enacted, a three-judge panel was implemented to look at
sentencing disparities between people sentenced under Title 2A and people sentenced
under Title 2C. That might be an alternative, as well as utilizing the Parole
Board as a method of reducing prison population.

PTI was mentioned by Senator Hamilton. That is another non-budgetary
solution. PTI can be greater utilized to take people out of the system before
they get into the system. As Senator Hamilton pointed out, there is great
disparity from county to county as to the number of people being qualified and the
number of people getting into the system and being accepted into PTI. You can
utilize the money which you would use for bed space by providing counties with
more funds for probationary supervision. Then more people can be accepted into
PTI, standards can be reduced slightly, and the money can be used to monitor PTI
people - first offenders. That is also a non-budgetary solution.

What essentially we are saying is: You have a choigce. You can respond
several ways. You can say we need money to build bigger institutions because the
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voting populous believes a lot of people should be in State Prison. But that
causes several problems; one is, within the political entities of the counties,
who is going to have the State faciliity - who wants it in their county?

Therefore, what we are suggesting is that a review of Title 2C take
place because I guarantee you - and it is a realistic and an in-court situation
I have faced all the time as a Public Defender - as soon as you provide more space and
you provide judges with a sentencing mechanism that is stricter, they are going to
use that because that becomes the new norm. They forget how they sentenced under
2A where there was essentially presumption of probation unless you could show that
the person should go to jail. Now, essentially there is the presumption of imprison-
ment unless you can come forward and show a reason why that person shouldn't go
to jail. The courts are going to utilize anything that the Legislature provides
for them. If it provides stricter sentences, the jails are going to be crowded
as they are now. The more beds you build, the more beds that are provided, will not
help the situation.

I remember being at a meeting of Freeholders in a particular county. They
were talking about prison overcrowding at the county level. There was a discussion
as to whether we could place two more beds in this portion of the building or three
more beds here,or knock out a wall and add six more beds, which didn't deal with
prison overcrowding because as soon as those beds go there, they are going to be full.
S0, whatovor thoso sleps are to increase Lhe bed facility in New Jersey, Uiey are not going
to help the situation. It is going to continue to exacerbate it.

What we are also suggesting is that money be utilized, if it is to be
utilized --- gfter you go through non-budgetary solutions, if money is going to be
utilized, it should be utilized at the county level to provide more services at
the county level for inmates for mental health and for education. There are a number
of people in county facilities, not all county facilities, who should be on work
release, who should work during the day and come back to the cell at night. That is,
on the one hand, punishment because someone is being deprived of liberty, which
is a punishment to anyone from any segment of society, losing a piece of liberty. At
the same time, they work. If there is restitution somewhere in the person's sentence,
they are starting to pay back the county or pay back the victim. At least something
is being done there. The person goes back to the cell at night, but he still
develops some kind of responsibility working during the day and providing perhaps some
money to his family who may have to go on welfare because he has been taken
out of the community and placed in jail. 'The family has to survive one way or the
other. Sometimes that survival is not just welfare.

What we are suggesting essentially ~ and T will be very brief -~ 1s that there
are certain solutions that the Legislature can take under consideration that do not
require an immense expenditure of money. That can be done by a serious revision
of the Criminal Code. I know that it took a long time for the Criminal Code to
come into effect. I was down here. I was an aide to Senator Menza. It took a
long time to get the Criminal Code together and have everyone agree on it. But
there should be a continuing review. There should be a standing committee, I would
say, in the Assembly and Senate Judiciary Committees to monitor the Code, review how
it is beipg implemented, and find out what are the benefits and negative aspects of
certain of its provisions, so you don't run into problems 10 or 15 years from now.

I think that is the essence of the rolé of the Legislature, to try to come up with
answers prior to a crisis developing. Thank you.

SENATOR McMANIMON: "I don't know whether you had the opportunity to hear
Edwin Stier, the Director of the Division of Criminal Justice.
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MR. COHEN: We did not. i

SENATOR McMANIMON: I think he hit the nail right on the head when he
stated that when they were first doing work on the projected new Code, there was
a shifting that took place. That has generated the multiplicity of problems that .
we have because it seems that now they are stressing incarcaration m?re ?han anything
else. All this ties in with some of the philosophy that you are per?Ctlng and that
Mr. Hamilton has projected. I thank you very much for your presentation, ggntlemen.

MR. CONK: We will be happy to be of any assistance we can. .

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you. " If we need anything further, we will get
in touch with you.

John Richard. -

J O HN R I CHARD: Thank you for the opportunity to appear before you.

Let me state at the outset that these views are my own and that they do
not necessarily reflect those of the United States District Court. . .

I would like to make two points. The first is that the situation in my
opinion in the county jails is far worse than it is in t?e.State penal systeﬁ.
And, second, I have some guestions about the present policies of the Corrections
Department, certainly as they affect Atlantic County. The problems aré YOfse because
of the different missions of the jails compared to the State penal facilities.
In the county jails, you have a mixture of population. You have people who are N
charged - not convicted yet - charged with minor offenses who cantt get out on.ballép
Also you have individuals who have been convicted of the worst crimes o?e-c?n imagine.
From a management point of view, this is very difficult. The State facilities, on

contain convicted felons.

e ot Zzzjédfn;iils of course are short-term facilities. Under the circumstances,

. . a
once again it is very difficult to provide educational programs, recreational programs an

contact visits. All of these things exist in the State penal facilities. Indeed,
in Atlantic County, we have a situation now where inmates riot so that they Cén leave
the County Jail and go to State Prison. It strikes me as rather absurd, but it does
peppen: Third, the State has an extensive classification program. Hard—c?r? inmat?s
go to Trenton, etc. Because of the present overcrowded conditions in thé jallé, th%s
is impossible. So once again, we have the person in there on a moto? vehlcl? violation
next to an individual who has raped seven people., This is not only immoral in my
inion; it i : ry dangerous.
o l; Z:'iiiz ::mi que:tions also about the policy of the State Departm?nt of
Corrections, certainly as it affects Atlantic County. Commissioner Fa?ver Fhls
morning noted the good record of the Department of Corrections. That %s.q?lte true.
But some of this has been accomplished by passing the buck. State facilities are
not as overcrowded as the jails. Jails are much more overcrowded. We have the
situation in Atlantic County, for example, where as part of the feder?l cou?t oxder,
the county has agreed to produce a constitutional jail., ‘But they can't do 1? because
of the State's policy. Indeed, ‘the State Supreme Court recently ruled on thl?
particular issue. I don't think that this policy is fair to th? county. It is
certainly not fair to inmates who sleep on the floor next to ?rl?als, people who .
~face sexual assaults every evening, etc. I am not sure if this is prudent governmen
o evezz.conclusion, I would like to state this: The transfer of sentenced felons
is the State's statutory responsibility. Let me point to the r?cent Supreme Court ) t,
decision. Justice Pashman in his opinion urges legislative action. He also notes tha
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the Excvcutive Order which the court upheld is temporary.
It cannot be viewed as such.

It is not a permanent solution.

As far as building new facilities is concerned,

I have no particular 6pinion
to offer on this,

but Atlantic is coming up with a new jail ~ $14 million. and I
will betray no national secret if T tell you that local officials would rath
the money more productively than spending it on a jail.
and they came up with the money.

er spend
But they found the space

It is also my opinion that if the Legislature changes the rules of the game,
the new Code, it must also provide the means to tho

laws by providing ways to implement the new policy.
me talked about litigation, quite clearly I think,

se charged with carrying out the
Since two of those who preceded

the further involvement of the
federal courts - the courts are involved in two of

cannot be ruled out. This is simply my view,

the State to solve its own problems before int
anyone else.

the counties at the present time -
but I think it would be better for
erference by the federal courts or

Let me state in concluding, the problem should have been addressed a
long time ago; it wasn't. The situation is critical.
And I strongly believe that the situation ought to be a
Thank you very much.

The situation is explosive.
ddressed now - right now.

SENATOR McMANIMON: Very good. Thank you very much.
Mrs. Canright.

WINIPFRED CANRIGHT:

I appreciate the fact that the common citizen
is allowed to talk to you and that yo

U are willing to listen to us. That is the
real privilege of democracy and I thank you. Sorry that I can't talk to more.

My name is Winifred Canright. The reason that I dare speak on this very
complicated subject is this: Ever since Attica and Rahway riots,
prison systems and have been a volunteer,
in State prisons in New Jersey.
Council on Corrections.

I have studied
physiotherapist and teacher-counsellor
I also speak as a representative of the Quaker

Quakers value the privilege of independence. Yet for 300 years, their
attitudes have been influenced by George Fox who was fre
beliefs. Addressing judges in 1651, he said,
confined for long periods for all they learn i
Years later in America,

quently jailed for his
"It is harmful for prisoners to be
s to do more wicked things." Thirty
William Penn in his Great TLaw outlined a new avenue of
corrections based on work programs rather than corporal punishment.

Today's leaders in correction say similar things.
Director of the Federal Bureau of Prisons, stated: "IFf a man is not a criminal when
he enters prison, he will be when he gets out." When Bob Mulcahy was Commissioner
of Corrections, he remarked that if he were to hire an
to design an environment that would imbitter people,

Norman Haroldson, the

architect and a psychologist
£ill them with hate and
rebellion, they would come up with something very like a prison.

Lt would be easy to pile up a huge stack of quotations from. expert

penologists, all admitting our prisons are failures. They neither reduce crime

nor reform inmates. I spare you that. Instead I simply ask:
ways to cram people into our prisons?
be there. Let's try to keep non-

Why look for more
Reserve space for the dangerous who must
violent people out of our jails by giving them
sentences severe enough to meet New Jersey's official policy of just deserts, but
which can be served outside the prison walls.

The New Jersey Correctional Master Plan of 1977 wisely recommended:

"The leasl restrictive of the range of increasingly severe disposition should be
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utilized. Incarceration should q? seen as the last resort when no other alternative
is likely to achieve the aim of déterrence and incapacitation."

I am going to speak brfefly on ways that can be used. They may seem piecemeal
and a little at a time - a woman's way of thinking.we have got to do the small
things. There may be some speééacular things that can be done to reduce the
populations of the prison quickly. But I think that the Senate is farseeing enough
to know that the problems will be with us and we must look for solutions that will
affect the populations two or five more years in the future.

Halfway hcuses: We believe that an effective way to cut prison populations
is to gquickly develop a network of specialized halfway houses, some for the treatment
of alcoholics who have committed crimes or treatment centers for drug addicts. We
need halfway inn houses, work-release houses, study-release houses, and most of all
pre-release houses.

Here follows a short description of what we have in New Jersey. Integrity
House at Lincoln Park in Newark is an extremely well run establishment. One section
is for long-term residential treatment of drug addicts, another is for pre~releasees
from the State Prison. The benefits to the community are these: After six months of
counselling, participants acquire growth in decision-making, develop job skills and
experience, accumulate clothing and capital, and gradually adjust to normal living.
These men are far more likely to become productive, crime-free citizens than their
counterparts who come out of prison with minimal assistance and enough cash to last
for two days if they eat sparingly. Parolees without help are almost always forced:
to get money the only way they know. Crime pays because nothing else pays. The
financial advantage to the State is this: Instead of paying approximately $39 a
day to maintain a man in prison, the State pays only $22 per day for the men it sends
to Integrity House. Some of this is refunded when the man gets a job. These men
have also become taxpayers to the State, to the Internal Revenue and Social Security.
The annual savings to Corrections for the transfer to Integrity House, freeing one
bed in the prison for the year, is $6,205, plus a refund for room and board made by the
pre-releasee plus taxes. We can take a few savings like that. - Putting one man in
that halfway house can save us a big pile of money as well as be of benefit to the
man and the safety factor for the society that he is going to re-enter within a few
months anyway.

Newark House is the only State operated halfway house for male offenders.

It is a clean, well~run residence for 50 men. One evening when I visited there, an
inmate recognized me as an 0ld friend and came over to chat. I asked him what he
thought of the place. He considered: "It ain't as good as being home. But I am sure
glad to be in here. They have done a lot for me."

Yesterday, I called to update statistics for you, but could not get complete
figures because it was the day the new Director was replacing Mr. Stevens at
Newark House. I found out that in November 1981, residents working, most of them
at minimum wages, earncd a gross of $27,500. The net was over $20,000. On an annual
basis, they are earning about $330,000 a year, instead of sitting in prison cells, with
payroll deductions of $18,000. Workers paid $2,692 in November for room and board
at Newark House, saving the State for the year they pay in Corrections $32,204 plus
taxes -~ all this instead of costing the State for their incarceration in prison.

. When Corrections announced that they had acquired and renovated the X
property - that is at Newark House - and would use it for a halfway house, the neighbor-
hood was shocked and angry. Belatediy, Ehe State met with them and some compromises
were worked out. The block association of neighbors was invited to have representatives
on the board and the situation was improved. One evening, I was there as a guest
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at a party involving neighbors and residents of the house and the staff. 1In
conversation with the president of the block association, I asked, "Do the neighbors
mind having the house here?" "Oh, no," he answered. '"We feel very much safer

now that they are here. There is always a policeman around. One evening a woman was
being mugged and one of the fellows from .the house saw it, came out and saved

her."

The cooperation continues. Five block associations have meetings there.

It is like a social center for the community efforts. They even have health lectures
and community planning things that are headguartered in the house. It has become a
great asset to the community.

I stress that because the excuse that I have been given from the Corrections
Department who at one time had $2 million assigned to them to develop halfway houses
and none have been developed --- and the excuse they give is that the communities
won't accept them. T know it can be done }f it is worked at properly.

‘ There are several very good priﬁaﬁely owned houses. Lucy told you about
some of them. They are very good and very profitable to the State to send inmates
there, plus a great asset to the men.

_ These pilot projects have demonstrated success for years. They help the
offender, reduce the likelihood of future crime, save the State money during the
last six months of imprisonment, and empty prison cells. Isn't that just exactly what
you are looking for?

To put a dozen halfway houses in different cities, each holding 35 men,
would empty 420 cells. This would give you more spaces than Mr. Fauver has been
asking for in a new prison at a tiny fraction of the cost. Elderly buildings can
be used and renovated for very little, particularly if the State will buck the unions
and let the men remodel theixr own places as they have done at the house that I
described first on Lincoln Place - Integrity House. The inmates have done a beautiful
job. Things can be done economically if it is really wanted.

Restitution is an old idea that is gaining acceptance. It seems reason-
able that an offender should work to compensate a victim for his or her losses.

When this is not possible; community services seem moxre rational than the fiction
that a man pays a debt to society by sitting in a cell. I am attaching a report of
the successes and failures of a restitution program in New Jersey prepared for the
Coalition of Penal Reform by Jeffrey Alport.

The Quaker Council on Corrections is also giving you a copy of a fascinating
book, titled "The You-Earn-It Society," to each of the Committee. I will give them
to you as I leave. We hope you will really enjoy it. It gives you a picture of
what c¢an succeed and what is being done in Massachusetts where the program is
really having an impact.

Pre-trial intervention has been mentioned by several people. I add only
a paragraph: The then Chief Justice Richard Hughes in the late '70's recommended
increased use of pre-trail intervention. If a person is stopped when he is first
involved in crimes, he is much less likely to enter a criminal career. "The Chief
Justice pointed out that pre-trial intervention in New Jersey has a per capita cost
of $351 compared to $13,000 for a year in prison. Those figures are a few years .
old perhaps.

Concerning probation and parole, both departments should be strengthened.
Use both to open up prison space. One small suggestion - and I don't know whether
this should go through the Legislature or not. One step that would make for much
better acceptance of Probation and Parole Officers by the people involved would be
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to change the name from Officer to Parole Counsellor. Then change the function so
that the idea of counselling predominated over the police functions that are
attached to the name Officer, which can irritate, aggravate and.turn off the street
kid that is involved. .

My last paragraphs are on changing the habitual criminal. An important
Correctional Officer told me that 75 percent of prisoners are repeaters. With real
effort that number could be reduced, leaving more space. Recently I asked a
class of prisoners: If you could change two things about this prison, what would
they be? Don't bother to tell me that you wish you could go knock the front gate
off its hinges. Surprisingly, 17 out of the 20 answers came in with the wish for
better prepared food taking a slight lead over the other answer. A desire for
rehabilitative programs and more education and vocational training came in as a strong
second. They had not been coached or prepared for this. It was a spur-of-the-moment
question. There is a hunger for rehabilitative programs. There is a hunger for
education and for job-training in our prisons. If those things were granted and used
to their fullest capacity, we would have less people who go out on the street, fail,
get back into crime, and come back into our prisons, £illing them up.

Corrections puts these things on a very low priority. When any space
restrictions or budget cuts come, they are the programs that suffer. Red carpets can
be afforded, but rehabilitative programs are another matter.

I worked with Dr. Frances Cheek who developed and teaches a wonderful
course in stress control and self control and leads the men to look deeply at themselves;
for many of them it is the first time they have ever really thought of what they
are and what they could be. During the course, some of them changed so much that
we could see the difference even in their physical aspects. One of the men asked
me, "Where have you been all this time? I have been here for four years wanting
to get a course that would really help me and there was nothing."

There are many men who want and need help to change their lifestyles, but
rehabilitation has gone out of fashion. So good programs are cut off. This program
of which I have spoken is an example. Dr. Cheek and one secretary are the only paid
employees. She gives stress training to Correction Officers, to staff, to inmates,
to management officers, and supervises a course of volunteers who are working in
all the prisons. Her work will end in June for the lack of funds. This is false
economy. If this course that she is teaching and supervising and keeping going influences
one man in each prison to go straight rather than to repeat his crimes, it would save
enough in prison costs to pay for the course many times over. To keep parclees
from returning to prison is a good way to cut prison populations.

When your Committee finishes its deliberations and chooses which ones of
the many methods to follow to relieve both present and future crowding, we ask
that you do more than produce the best legislation. We believe that a project, for
instance, a restitution program, neeéds not only legislation, but funding, advice and
supervision by somebody, in which both citizens and professionals participate. These
things cannot function simply because they are legislated. They have got to have
push. They have got to have strength - some financing - but they can save many times
their costs. Thank you very much. :

SENATOR McCMANIMON: Thank you very much, Mrs. Canright. I really appreciate
your input. ZListening to your remarks, I reflected on one particular paragraph. of
Senator Hamilton's presentation, which was: "Without change in sentencing policy,

today's overcrowding will next vear seem like a tea party.” So we know we have a
serious problem.
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MRS. CANFIELD: We really Go. We have to look at the future and these
slower, long-term thinés.

SENATOR McMANIMON: Very good.

Charles Schultz.

CHARLES SCHULT Z2: Senator, first I would like to thank this Committee
for inviting me, I see the hour is growing late, so I will be brief.

I am a Correction Officer at the Essex County Jail. I am the PBA State
Delegate. I have been employed there for nine years. I have listened to many
distinguished speakers today. They all have some very good ideas.

As of this morning at 8:00 A.M., the count of the population at the
Essex County Jail was 1,045. Seven hundred and eighteen are being housed in the
Essex County jail. Fifty~three females are being house in the Women's Section at
the Jail Annex and 274 males are being housed at the Jail Annex. Out of that, 172 are
awaiting transfer to State facilities. I say that if the transfer was to take place
today, Newark would fill us up by six o'clock this evening. BAs of eight o'clock
this morning, Newark had 50 people in their holding facilities waiting to come to
the Essex County Jail, another 80 in court, of which we usually get about half,
and then there are those that we receive from the other municipalities. In one day
we would be back up to 1,045.

There has to be some solution to the overcrowding. Taking away the State
prisoners is not the only solution. It will be a help. But ever since the new
Criminal Code has been in place, the daily population has gone up. The Essex County
Jail has suffered two major disturbances due to the overcrowded conditions. One was
in March 1980 and one again in May 1981.

We have heard from my boss Peter Shapiro that it is a tinder box. It is.
The pressure, the stress,:is unbearable on the inmate population and on the Correction
Officers. It is only a matter of time before it explodes again. It may be happening
now. It may happen tomorrow. But it will happen. There has to be some alternatives.
The Essex County Jail is supposed to be a holding facility for detainees that are
unable to post bond. They are awaiting trial. We are housing approximately 873
awaiting trial this morning. Maybe it is the court system. Maybe they are too slow.
That is a large number of men awaiting trial.

I have heard as an alternative community-based corrections. But that
is all after you are found guilty. There is nothing dealing with the holding facility,
itself. You cannot build an additional 1000-bed jail in Essex County. Financially,
the county could not stand for it. But the overcrowding situation is not all due
to the State prisoners. It is due partly I would say to the new Criminal Code.

I heard about the judge who released the inmates from the Union County
Jail due to the overcrowding. Also in the last week, a. judge ordered the release
of 72 inmates from a county jail in Florida. So it is not only a New Jersey problem;
it is becoming a national problem. There is overcrowding in all the states - down
South and out West. It has become a national problem and it also has to be dealt
with on a national level.

In closing, I would like to again thank you for this opportunity. If there
is anything the Essex County Jail PBA can do, we would be glad to help you in any way.

SENATOR McMANIMON: I appreciate your being here today. It is becoming
more and more apparent that we are going to have to really discuss the violent and non-.
violent crime structures and maybe the whole sentencing policy is going to have to
be completely reviewed as to what steps we might take with respect to the non-violent
crimes. We realize the new Criminal Code has generated a hot potato for us, to be
very frank. The State already projects a 70 percent increase in incarceration.
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If this happens and the State is already overcrowded and now the counties are being
overcrowded, we have to find an avenue to pursue. I think you are going to find
that the Legislature realizes it is their problem and we are going to have to tackle
it very shortly. Thank you.

John Farrell.

JOHN M. FARRETLL: Mr. Chairman, I too want to express my appreciation to
you for the opportunity of appearing here today. I represent a very important segment of
the community and I think they have something that they would like to say to you.

Many of the things we want to say are in this statement and some of them have been

_expressed before. Because of the shortness of time remaining, I would reguest that

if this could be copied or repeated in your summary ---

SENATOR McMANIMON: It will be so recorded.

MR. FARRELL: Thank you. Then I will just very briefly go over the front
page to tell you who we are and also give you the recommendations at the end.

My name is John M. Farrell. I am Senior Vice-President of Beneficial
Management Corporation. I am speaking today as the Chairman of the New Jersey Executives'
Committee of the National Council on Crime and Delinguency. The Executives' Committee
represents a broad array of New Jersey corporations, which seek to improve the effective-
ness of the State's criminal justice system.

The primary program objectives of the Executives' Committee are two-fold:

First, to encourage the use of cost-effective alternatives to incarceration
for non-dangerous offenders, thereby lowering the continuing budget burden of the
State's corrections system to the taxpayer.

Secondly, to encourage the development of community-based crime prevention
programs to reduce the incidence of criminal and delinquent activity that create
enormous losses to the State's residents and businesses.

Now, the rest of the material has been brought to your attention before,
except I would like to repeat one sentence that I have in here so you know the gist
of it. That is in relation to the cost. I say here that money is among our scarcest
sources at present. That is one of the reasons why we have to save a little bit.

These are our four suggestions to you:

The Legislature should pass a statute similar to one which has been
utilized by Michigan to successfully defuse their prison overcrowding crisis, without
enoxrmous financial outlays and without endangering public safety. Such an emergency
overcrowding statute would accelerate parole eligibility by three months, allowing
the reduction of the incarcerated population in an orderly fashion while selecting
for release those inmates who would shortly be released in any event. As business
people, we support the concept of a planned reduction of the overcrowded population.
Given the magnitude of the problem currently facing the State, such a mechanism
appears to be the only rational immediate response to the problem at hand, and there
seems to be no grounds for the often expressed fear that releasing those who are
near release anyway will present any increased danger to the public.

Secondly, within the State's prison system fight now, there apparently
are an estimated 500 individuals who have been denied parole release, for the sole
reason that no suitable residential or non-residential mental health and substance
abuse programs are available. Funding of these kinds of community programs should be
accomplished to eliminate this problem in the future, thereby eliminating the need
for one entire new prison.

Third, we further recommend that the Legislature appropriate funds where
applicable for the purpose of establishing viable alternatives to incarceration

54

et

s

for those who do not require imprisonment, and who are currently eligible under the
Criminal Code for non-incarcerative sanctions. We understand the AOC is now investi-
gating the feasibility of instituting intensive probation supervision programs in this
State, as well as a statewide program of community service sentencing. If these
practical alternative programs are created and adequately funded, the State will have
gone a long way towards a planned response to its correctional needs.

Fourth, while we understand the Legislature's reluctance to consider the
possibility of revising the mandatory sentencing clauses of the Criminal Code -~
although we would contend such a re-examination is essential given the Criminal
Code's disastrous impact on the prison population - we urge you, most emphatically
not to give any credence to any further call for increased sentence lengths or additonal
mandatory sentences. The impact of 2C's harsher provisions is all too evident in the
current crisis of overcrowding. To increase the severity of those provisions in the
light of current experience would only exacerbate disastrously an already impossible
situation.

That is the gist of this paper.

Let me add one more recommendation. This will take one minute. About a

year and a half ago I wrote to Governor Byrne and also to Attorney General John
Degnan, suggesting to them that as interested business people we should put together
a committee of businessmen who would have no purpose whatsoever in getting to the
bottom of the overcrowding, what constitutes it, why it is there and what can be done
to correct it, except to save themselves tax money. I think that is still a good idea.
It would cost the State of New Jersey nothing. These men would give of their time
and the work necessary to give you a report of that kind. I am a member of enough
organizations that I could say to you, we could give you these pecple of the strongest
calibre that would give you a report that you could work with, that would be founded
in fact, where there would be no biases and where there would be no personal aggrandize-
ment of any kind whatsoever, except serving the State of New Jersey. We live here.
We love New Jersey. We work here. We support it. We would like to see it get its
proper place in the sun instead of being pointed to, as we are, as 40 years behind
the times in our criminal justice system - and we are 40 years behind the times. I
suggest to you that we would be very happy to do that for you. Thank you again.

(See appendix for complete statement submitted
by Mr. Farrell.)

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you very much, sir. It is quite apparent that
you and Senator Hamilton have a great deal in common. You both seem to be going
down the same path.

MR. FARRELL: I admire him. He is a tremendous individual.

SENATOR McMANIMON: I kind of think so myself.

Sheriff Lanzaro.

WILLIAM LANZARDO: Senator, good afternoon. My name is William
Lanzaro. I am the Sheriff of Monmouth County. I know the hour is late and I am
only sorry that more of the Committee couldn't be here to hear probably the last two
speakers today, myself and Sheriff Englehardt.

I have sat here since quarter of ten this morning and listened to various
speakers tell us what is wrong with different parts of the system. Correct me if
I am wrong. But I understood that the meeting here today was to address the over-
crowding of the county and State prisons. We have heard various people tell us
that 2C doesn't work and various other reasons why we are having overcrowding and what
we should do about it, whether we should build additional prisons or should not build
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additional prisons. But the need is now. T think Senator Hamilton put it best. He
said it is a State problem. The State has imposed a problem on us. When I took
over as Sheriff of Monmouth County last year, we had about 30 State-sentenced inmates
awaiting transfer to State Prison. Now, as of eight o'clock this morning, I have 92
and I am down from 120 of last week. I have 104 inmates sleeping on the floor. I
have feedback today that could result in my having a riot on my hands tonight. We
can't look down the road. We have to look at today.

There are alternatives. Commissicner Fauver says that he doesn't want
double bunking in the State facilities. But how about the bunking in the county
jails? I have them double bunked. I have dormitories built for 12 with 24 in there.
I have them sleeping in the shower area. T have them sleeping in the reception area.
What am I supposed to do? -

Do you know the immediate solution to the 1000 or the 1100 that are in the
county jails? Double bunk them in the State Prison. Let them accept their responsi-~
bility and take them off the backs of the counties.

There is an alternative. A year ago, I proposed a workfare program.

In Monmouth County, we have appreximately 30 weekend-sentenced inmates, sentenced to
consecutive terms by the municipal courts. These are people who are working supporting
their families, your neighbors and mine, that are out in society and are no threat

to anyone. The municipal judge sentences them to consecutive weekends. They come in
our jail on Friday night. Also Friday is sentencing day in Monmouth County. So we

get roughly 15 to 20 new sentences each Friday. We get our 20 to 25 weekenders.

Now I don't have to tell you what happens on a weekend in our jail. Of course, the
thought of going to jail on a weekend makes men half slopped up. So by the time they
sober up it is Saturday afternocon and they are released on Sunday. This is at a

cost of approximately $50 a night to the taxpayers of Monmouth County. I have said,
and the Assignment Judge in our county has now concurred, that there is an alternative.
Let's put them on a workfare program. Let's encourage the municipal judges to sentence
them to a county workfare program to be administered by the County Sheriff and it
would work as such,as I proposed it. We have a county court house where we had 8

CETA workers we recently had to let go because of the cut in CETA funding. We could
put them in the county court house on weekends working 9:00 to 5:00 where we already
have the insurance and the supervision. We could put them in the county park system

in the season, weather permitting, where we already have the insurance and supervision..

By the way, the park system is very receptive to this. It would not replace anybody
that is presently working in the park system because the park system has many trails
that they would like to clean up and clear. Therefore, I woul@n't have those 25 or
30 in my jail on the weekend. They would work from 9:00 to 5:00 Saturday and Sunday,
brown-bagging it, and that would be their sentence.

There is only one problem - and this is where the Legislature comes in.
Two-thirds of the weekenders that we get in our jail are mandatory type sentences.
When you say mandatory, that sounds serious, but not really. An individual is caught
driving without insuranﬁe;because of the economics in these times he couldn't afford
it. So his license is fé&pked. He has to support his family. He continues to
drive and now he is caugh£ driving on the revoked list. He is sent to the county
jail. You can't call that guy an outright criminal. Is it a crime to want to support
your family?' Why can't we put him on a work program? We could also use him evenings.
There are many areas. Our Assignment Judge this past week came out in favor of a
community type program because with the exposure that my proposed program has been
getting, I have had many requests in Monmouth County from municipalities who are
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hard pressed for funds about cleaning up their municipalities. Mayor Scioffi, who
was mentioned earlier, in Long Branch will not be able to clean up his beaches this
summer because of budgetary restraints. He has asked me for help. Judge Shebell
met with the Municipal Judges' Association lagt week in Monmouth County and instructed
them, when possible, to sentence these Pecple to a community type project which
will be administered through the Probation Department of Monmouth County under

the Chief Probation Officer and with the help of the Sheriff's Department.

Already one municipal judge, as an alternative means, sentenced a defendant last
week to eight consecutive Sundays washing the police cars in that municipality

as punishment for throwing a rock through a window. This is the immediate answer.
This is what we have to do: community service, workfare, etc.

If I could get rid of those 30 on the weekend and the municipal judges
cooperate and have the discretion to put these people on workfare instead of putting
them in the jail, this would help.

We have heard mentioned early release. You know it was never the intent of
a sentencing judge for somebody to be released early. But if it is found after a
series of meetings that this could be beneficial, why not release them? We heard,

I think it was Mr. Dietz who said it takes roughly three months from the time it is
said they could be released until they are released, because of the clearing stages.,
Why not when a date is set for release send them back to the sentencing county

and put them on a workfare program while they are being processed. They are three
months earlier out of State Prison. You can now utilize that bed. They will make
a better adjustment back in society.

I, as the Sheriff of Monmouth County, am against just taking three months
of their sentences and letting them go. If the judge meant that in the beginning,
he would have set the sentence that way.

Another thing that the State is doing to us --- you know after 15 days,
we get a per diem on every inmate. Tt was only in the past year that they have made
that uniform throughout the State. We now get $39 and change for each inmate after
15 days, except parole violators. If we have a paroie violator and he has had his
probable cause hearing and if he is there after the 15th day, we get nothing. Now
it used to be --- and when I took over I noticed we had about $80,000 coming on
parole violators. So when I inquired about it, I got a letter from the Department
of Corrections. If you read it in depth, it said, look, dummy, if you don't have
enough sense to send those parole violators at the top of the class, that is your
problem.. That is just what I started doing last March.

Usually we send inmates by the length of time they have been there. Now
we put the parole violators at the head of the class. With the Governor's order
last summer, that has stopped. Now the State comes in and they do the classification
in the county jails. They pick at random who they want. So where we should be
getting rid of the long-term sentences, it is not necessarily so. They pick whom
they want to go. We should have the say. It is our county jail. They are not our
inmates. But the State is continually making their problem our problem.

I must say in all fairness to Joe Call and .Gary Hilton and some of
the others that the Department of Corrections has been most cooperative. I under-
stand they have a job to do. Each week they try to take a certain number of inmates
from you. Two or three weeks go by, then you have to get Strong with them and say,
"Look, you have to get them out of here." Aand they give you, "Well, we don't have
any beds." Then we say, "Well, we are going to shut the jail dewn." all of a sudden
they find beds. I don't understand this. This goes on and on. Take in Monmouth County,
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with 104 sleeping on the floor. How much longer do you think I can stand it before

I shut my jail down? Forget about 2C right now. Forget about building new prisons
right now. Forget about rehabilitation right now. Let's address the immediate pyoblem.
It is unfortunate this notice - and again I would like to thank the Senators of the
Committee who are here --- but it is unfortunate that a notice didn't go out to every
Sheriff. I would like to see another meeting of this Committee with all of the
Sheriffs that have jails and even the ones that don't and the Wardens. Get to the
grassroots. Let's hear from the guys who are in the trenches who have to deal with
this problem every day. We are the ones affected. We had to reduce our feeding because
we are afraid of a riot. That is the input that you need. That is when you will get’

a better handle on this and better ideas.

Obviously, you are concerned because you called this hearing. And, obviously,
we are concerned because we sat here all day long waiting to speak. We need your
help. We realize it is a serious problem. We realize Fort Dix is only a stop-gap
measure at best. We could sit here all day long discussing whose fault it is and
look back. That is not going to cure anything. I think we just have to take a good
look at where we are coming from and where we are going.

. It is very nice of Commissioner Fauver to sit here and say, "I don't want
double bunking." It's wonderful. I don't want double bunking either, Commissioner.
But maybe we have to give and take a little bit. If he just took half of our
population and double-bunked a little bit, it would help. It is Jjust going to be a
never-ending problem. We must work at it and work at it together. But I think
community restitution, putting some of these people out in society, is one of the ways
that we can reduce the population coming into the county jails.

I want to thank you very much for the opportunity to speak to you. I know
the hour is late. If there are any questions, feel free to ask them.

SENATOR McMANIMON: Very good, Sheriff. You can rest assudred I will discuss
with Dick Codey, the Chairman of the Committee, the possibility of having a meeting
with all the County Sheriffs throughout the State.

For your own personal information, I would like to clear the air with
respect to workfare. You are talking to an individual who moved the Workfare Bill,
which put welfare recipients to work,in the lower House last year. I have no gqualms
whatsoever about workfare.

MR. LAZARO: Senator, with 25 to 30 coming in each weekend in Monmouth
County alone, we computed it would save us a quarter of a million dollars, not to mention
the stress it will take off the officers and the institution. I think this is a good
approach. You know some of these municipal judges have to be educated. They just
can't use the county jail as a dumping ground. I think that is another thing that
has to be addressed.

SENATOR McMANIMON: Thank you.

Sheriff Englehardt.

EDWIN ENGLEHARDT: First of all, I want to thank this Committee for
inviting me here today to explain to you what some of our problems are in the Passaic
County Jail. I will try to make this as fast as I can. I appreciate the fact that
you are extending the time beyond four o'clock. I appreciate the opportunity to be
here.

I am here today, Senator, to for the record tell this Committee what some
of the problems are in the county jails of the State of New Jersey, but more particularly
Pagsaic County Jail because as the Sheriff of Passaic County, I am totally responsible
for the operation, custody and control of that jail.
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Our Passaic County Jail is the most overcrowded county jail in the State of
New Jersey. We have a jail that was built 25 years ago to house 227 inmantes.

Our population today is 487. Of the 487, 149 are sentenced State prisoners, 82 of
which are sleeping on cements floors and mattresses. We have a situation - and you
have heard this coxpressed by others — that is a powder keg. You heard Peter Shapiro
say that and you heard the President of the PBA of the Essex County Jail say that.
But our situation is even worse because we are more overcrowded.

It is a serious problem and I feel that some action has to be taken now,
not three years from now.

What I would like to do now is give you my feelings on how this problem
came about and not just be here to complain for the record, but possibly recommend
what I consider a rather immediate solution.

The law specifically states that the State Department of Corrections shall
accept their sentenced prisoners in 15 days. Because of the overcrowding in the State
institutions, our former Governor last June declared an emergency, authorizing the
Corrections Commissioner to force the counties to hold back shipping their State
prisoners to State institutions. Also that emergency order authorized the Commissioner
of Corrections to transfer any inmate from any county jail that is overcrowded to
another county jail that is not overcrowded. To this day ~ and that emergency was issued
last June - not one prisoner was transferred from the Passaic County Jail to any other
county jail in the State of New Jersey, in spite of the fact that my population is 210
percent of capacity, the most overtaxed jail in the State of New Jersey. Also in
that order, it gives the Commissioner of Corrections the opportunity to immediately
take over any building anywhere in the State to provide beds to ease the overcrowded
situation. I don't know of any single institution ~ building, factory, armory, or
whatever - that has been taken over or even acted upon since that emergency order.

Not one single bed that I know of has been made available as a result of that order.
That order was nothing more than to protect the Commissioner of Corrections and

the former Governor of this State from having a tremendous riotous situation on
their hands in the State of New Jersey.

I think it is disgraceful and I think it is criminal that because of that
order the Corrections Commissioner can keep his population at about 100 percent
of capacity, which is manageable,; and force the counties in this State to increase
their populations - Passaic County particularly - by 210 percent. I don't think
it is fair. The least they should do is bring their population up to 150 percent
and bring mine down to 150 percent. If my population, Senator, was 100 percent;

I wouldn't be sitting here today.

We don't have any problems in Passaic County housing Passaic County prisoners.
We can maintain control. We always have. And two years ago, we began negotiations,
we broke ground and we are in the process of constructing a fourth floor on the
Passaic County Jail, giving me 200 more beds. But the way the State has been operating,
the $7 million that the County of Passaic has appropriated to satisfy Passaic County's
needs ~~ the State of New Jersey is going to force Passaic County to hold their State
prisoners. State prisoners are very, very difficult to handle. You must understand
that county jails are not medium security prisons; county jails are not maximum
security prisons; county jails are nothing more than holding facilities. They were
never built or never intended to act is maximum security facilities. When you have
150 sentenced State prisoners, some to 40 years, some 30 years, Some 25 years, forced to
live in the county jail that is not equipped to handle that type of prisoner, you
can imagine what kind of a problem I have and the kind of problem my warden has
and what kind of a problem my men have.




Something has to be done and it has to be done quickly because these State
prisoners are the ones who are giving us the problems. Those that haven't been
sentenced yet are no problem. Those who are awaiting trial are no problem. Those
that are sentenced to the county jail for under a year are no problem because they
are mahageable. They are not going to cause any problems before they are sentenced
or tried that may affect the outcome of their trial. -But those scntenced for long
periods of time have nothing to lose. They want to get out of the Passaic County
Jail and they want to go to State prisons . Why? Because they have programs and they
have opportunities in State prisons that I would never allow in Passaic County.

The Passaic County Jail is the most dreaded jail in the State and that is the way I
want it to be. I feel that jails are places of punishment, not places for vacation,
They go down to State prisons where they can get college degrees, have weckend furloughs
- they go home on weekends and commit the same kinds of crimes they were convicted of ~
take day trips down at the shore, have elaborate rehabilitation programs. There

are millions and millions of dollars going down the drain and rehabilitation doesn't
work. Our residivism rate in Passaic County is 80 percent in spite of the millions

and millions of dollars in rehabilitation. We have to have more jails, not country
clubs.

I think it is disgraceful the State of New Jersey, Department of Corrections,
is considering building a new minimum security facility in Camden at a cost to-the
taxpayers of this State of $35 million for approximately 200 prisoners - $35 million
for an institution they haven't broken ground for yet, which is going Lo take Lwo
years to build, for 200 priscners. Why do we need tremendously expensive institutions
for prisoners? My suggestion is to utilize the existing facilities that are not being
fully utilized today. When Governor Byrne issued that order last year, I made a
suggestion - and if they had followed my suggdestion, we wouldn't be faced with this
problem today - that they appropriate two or three million dollars and I willltell them
the location. I pointed this out in the past. I will tell you why they refused it.

I say, take the Armory in the City of Paterson. It is in the most crime-ridden

area in the City of Paterson. They talk about the poor relatives visiting the prisoners.
They can walk to the jail. Utilize the Armory. The National Guard only uses that
Armory for one weekend a month. Take three million dollars and convert that in six
months and they could place 500 maximum-security prisoners in there. They don't need
65 square feet. They don't need a $35 million complex. That doesn't discourage
prisoners from committing crime, They are not afraid to go out, commit crime and

go back to jail. They are better off in jail than they are at home. Utilize the
existing buildings and facilities. If prisoners felt they were going to be very, very
unhappy and dreaded going to jail, in my opinion, they would think twice before they
committed a crime.

The State is responsible for the problem today. In 1975, Governor Byrne
appointed a committee and Commissioner Fauver was a member of this committee. The
committee spent many hours and God knows how many thousands of dollars. They submitted
a report in 1977. On page 91 of this report, it specifically states that by 1980
the State will be 1200 beds short. It is 1981 and the State of New Jersey hasn't built
one bed. All that money went down the drain. The money is there. The buildings are
available. Eliminate these $35 million country clubs. Utilize the existing buildings,
That's what we need.

The Legislature is also partially responsible. I am very much in favor
of mandatory sentencing to get these criminals off the streets. The public demands
it; the public deserves it. We need those mandatory sentencing laws. But that is only
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part of the problem. The Legislature should take the initiative and have the courage
to pass the companion legislation appropriating funds or finding beds where these Sheriffs

and Wardens can plgce these inmates once they are sent to jail as the result of mandatory
sentencing.

What I say is: Forget about these $35 million institutions for 200 people.
Utilize the existing emergency order. Utilize the powers that the Commissioner has.
Appropriate a fraction of the funds.  Open up these armories and put these people who
are in these overcrowded jails in them. Then you will have plenty of room for the
criminals who are on the streets about to be incarcerated.

SENATOR MCMANIMON: Thank you very much, Sheriff.

I would like to make just one statement. Earlier this morning I asked the
specific question: 1Is the program being presented by the State a realistic approach
to the problem of securing those beds which are so sorely needed? We have heard from
professionals this morning. We have heard from professionals this afternoon. It is
rather ironic that you sit here and hear differences of opinion expressed by sincere,
honest people. We are looking to those with expertise to guide us. That is the purpose
of thie public hearing. It is quite apparent that we are all not going to agree in
the final analysis. But it is also apparent that some positive action has to be taken.
I think that is the intent of the Chairman of the Committee, Senator Codey, and the
Committee. That is the sole purpose of this hearing.

I sincerely appreciate all those who have appeared here today. I believe
that this will not be the last meeting because I have a feeling that we have a lot of
homework to do and we are going to have to do it Ffast.

MR. ENGLEHARDT: Thank you very much.

SENATOR McMANIMON: - Thank you.
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PUBLIC HEARING - FEBRUARY 18, 1982
SENATE HEALTH, INSTITUTION AND WELFARE COMMITTEE

William H. Fauver, Commissioner
Department of Corrections

During the past year, New Jersey's Correctional Institutions have been
experiencing a serious and ever-increasing overcrowding situation. Both State
and County facilities have been operating well beyond the capacities for which
they were designed. Current population projections, mutually developed by the
Administrative Office of the Courts and this Department, indicate that the

overcrowding problem will not be alleviated in the immediate future.

There are three primary reasons for the overcrowding situation: 1) The
effects of the New Code of Criminal Justice; 2) The effects of the new Parole

Act; and 3) The impact of the State Speedy Trial program.

The new code of Criminal Justice, which appears to be viewed by the
sentencing courts as a more harsh and‘severe sentencing code, has resulted in
more offenders being committed to state institutions and for longer periods of
time. Compared to commitments under Title 2A, the former criminal code,
commitments to the State Prison System were up by a staggering 70%. Moreover,
the median term imposed by the courts also increased from five to seven years.
In addition, the imposition of mandatory minimum parole ineligibility terms
will increase an offender's actual length of 1ncafceratioﬁ, further contributing

to the overcrowding situation.

Similarly, commitments to State Youth Correctional institutions and
County correctional facilities have also increased by 10% and 16% respectively

under the new Criminal Code.
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Besides more offenders being sentenced to custodial terms, the overcrowding
situation has been further exacerbated by a significant reduction in the
number of parole releases from the Youth Correctional Complex. Since the

enactment of the new Parole Act of 1979, Youth Correctiona]_pafo]e releases

have dropped by 30%. Moreover, additional increases in correctional populatione(

can be partially attributed to the State Speedy Trial program which acts to

move cases more expeditiously to disposition.

Resident Population Trends

During the last sixteen months, state correctional commitments have
‘1ncreased by 2721 inmates from a total of 6,199 on September 30, 1980 to a
record high total of 8920 on January 31, 1982. This‘forty—fourgﬁhrcent
increase is reflected in corresponding increases within each of the major
categorxes of inmates in the Prison Complex (determinate sentences), Youth/Adu]t
Comp]ex (indeterminate sentences) Juvenile Offenders (under 18 years of age),
and offenders awaiting entrance into the state reception unit {county jail

waiting list). Reference is made to page 1 of the attached report.

'CommiiméhtiOffense

As of Febhuary, 1982, approximately seventy percent of a]lgprlson offenders
resident in state facilities were convicted of cr1mes against person including

Murder, Rape, Assault, Robbery, and Sexual Abuse. ‘Reference is made to page 3

. 0f the attached report.
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Mandatory Minimum Terms

Since the enactment of the new code of Criminal Justice, 26% of all new
prison offenders have beén received with mandatory minimum parole ineligibility
terms. Parole ineligibility terms are not reduced by "good time", work or

minimum custody credits and can be imposed for up to one half of the maximum

term.

O0f the 806 prison offenders received with parole ine]igibility‘terms,
almost eight out of ten were sentenced with minimum terms in excess of three
years. A three year parole ineligibility term is comparable to a 12 - 15 year
term under Title 2A, the former Criminal Code. In many instances, the actual
amount of "time served" will almost double. Instead of being considered for
parole at one fourth or one fifth of their maximum sentence, most offenders
with mandatory minimum terms will stay in prison until one half of their

maximum. Reference is made to page 4 of the attached report.

New State Bedspaces

In order to help alleviate the severe overcrowding problem, the Department
has created almost 500 temporary bedspaces through the use of trailers, classrooms,
and recreation areas. The detailed breakdown of these temporary measures has
been provided in material already submitted to the Committee. ‘within the next
three to six months, over 1,000 additional bedspaces will be‘brought into use.
Long term plans, which may require both extensive capital expenditures and/or
the development of systemw1de a]ternat1ves to resolve this problem are now

being formulated.
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MANDATORY MINIMUM TERMS IMPOSED UNDER THE NEW PENAL CODE:
(BASED UPON 806 OR 26% OF NEW PENAL CODE COMMITMENTS)

N.J. PRISON COMPLEX, SEPTEMBER 1979 THRoUGH JANUARY 1982
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3 YEARS

OR LESS 8% HAVE
MANDATORY
MINIMUMS OF
20 YEARS OR
MORE

.- 179% OF THE MANDATORY MINIMUMS IMPOSED UNDER
| THE NEW PENAL CODE ARE FOR FOUR YEARS OR MORE
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TESTIMONY BEFORE THE
SENATE INSTITUTIONS, HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE
HEARING ON PRISON OVERCROWDING

February 18, 1982

I am Lucy Mackenzie, Director of the Citizen Action Division of the New
Jersey Association on Correction. The Association is a citizens organi-~
zation concerned with the enormous economic, social and human costs of

crime in New Jersey. We have been working for more than twenty years to
improve the effectiveness of New Jersey's criminal justice system, through
our Citizen Action Division, and to provide services to offenders and ex-~
offenders which will help them return to their communities as self-sufficient
citizens through our Morrow Projects Division. These services include half-
way houses in Trenton and New Brunswick whose residents are state prisoners
nearing parole and county prisoners sentenced directly to the house upon

conviction.

Because the problem of prison and jail overcrowding in New Jersey must be
faced immediately, the Association regards this hearing as extremely important.
During the past year, we have been involved in the efforts of many agencies

to devise strategies to meet the growing emergency. We have consistently
advocated a comprehensive approach to the overcrowding problem, rather than
the single solution of new prison construction. We were therefore pleased
with the methodical approach taken by the Task Force on Prison Overcrowding,
and we support most of the recommendations contained in its December report.

It offers several short-term solutions which merit the closest attention of

the Governor and the Legislature.
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The most significant sentence of the report states: 'The present problem

is not a temporary aberration; it is overwhelming and profound, and all
information presently available indicates that it is permanent in nature."

The situation is truly overwhelming. Although corrections facilities should
operate at no more than 92% of operational capacity, for reasons of safety

and efficiency, the medium and maximum security facilities of New Jersey are
now operating at 102% of capacity. If state inmates housed in jails are
included, the figure is 124%. At the same time, the county jail population

has reached 121% of operational capacity, including more than a thousand

state prisonmers. County officials, trying desperately to cope with an impossible
situation, are seething with resentment against the state, which is spending

a million dollars a month to keep its prisomers in the county jails. Meanwhile,
at the bottom of the pecking order are municipal jails such as the Newark
facility, where a cell in police headquarters measuring 4} by 7 feet is being
used to hold up to nine prisoners, and where inmates are forced to go days

on end without bathing. The majority of these prisoners have not been con-
victed; they are in this hideous situation only because they cannot afford

bail.

The population of the state prison complex alone (maximum and medium security
facilities) will quadruple by 1990, and the cost to incarcerate these people
will rise from $20 million to $151 million. Capital needs for bed spaces

could be $480 million, not including the inflation factor, the renovation of
existing substandard facilities, or debt service. The interest on bonds alone
would double the $480 million. Another crucial factor is the virtual impos-
sibility of finding prison sites acceptable to both the State and the community

involved.

No one imagines that the State of Néw Jersey, faced with increasing needs and
diminishing resources, will spend this amount of money for prisons and jails.
Other solutions must be found. TFirst, however, we must understand the cause

of this dramatic increase in the incarcerated population. Analysts from the
Administrative Office of the Courts point to the Code of Criminal Justice
which became effective on September 1, 1979, resulting in a dramatic change

in statewide sentencing practices. The impact of this change has been profound.

Simply stated, more offenders ave being sentenced to jail, and they are going
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for longer periods of time, producing what Senator Codey has correctly

described as "a powder-keg situation."

Still to come is an additional population increase resulting from the 1981
law requiring both extended and mandatory terms for certain crimes involving

the use or possession of a firearm.

On January 31, the editors of the Bergen Record said the unsayable. That

day's editorial stated:

"There's one thing that can be dome right away; repeal or
suspend those laws that call for mandatory and minimum
sentences for certain crimes.....

What's happened here is a breakdown in the system, as shocking
and as predictable as the collapse of an overloaded bridge

or water main. To deal with the crime wave, we passed

tougher laws. It seemed logical and even necessary at the
time, but few of us stopped to think what would happen when
those laws started putting out more prisoners than the

system could handle. Now that day has arrived, and it's time to
face a painful truth: Until the prisons are no longer full to
bursting...until the state has found other ways, like work-
release and community-service sentences, to punish criminals...
we're going to have to do without mandatory sentences.

It's that simple.” .

The Association on Correction finds the Record's logic unassailable, and

we support its recommendation. It is time for a reappraisal of sentencing,

in the cold light of reality.

With or without the repeal or suspension of mandatory sentences, common
sense requires that other measures be taken to deal with the emergency.
The Task Force on Prison Overcrowding makes the following constructive

suggestions.

1. An estimated 500 individuals are being denied parole only because
of the lack of suitable residential and non-residential mental
health and substance abuse programs. That is more than the
projected population of the new Camden prison. Every effort
should be made to locate and appropriate funds for more community

facilities.
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The Legislature should appropriate funds for the establishment

of alternatives to incarceration. "A strong argument can be

made that if practical alternatives to incarceration are created,
judges may feel that they can responsibly make more use of probation...
Additionally, the cost of handling an offender on probation or

parole is much less than the expense of incarceration."

Among the most widely used alternatives to incarceration are:

. Community service and restitution. Restitution requires the
offender to reimburse the victim for damage done, while community
service requires the offender to perform work, free of charge,
for public and private agencies in the community. This kind of
sentence can serve several purposes: to compensate the victim;
to provide community services which otherwise would go undone;
to link the punishment with the crime; and to save taxpayer
dollars and relieve overcrowding. Good programs now exist in
a few counties, but most are federally funded and in danger of

elimination.

0
- Halfway houses. There are presently available 150-360" halfway

house beds, located in Trenton, Camden, New Brunswick and Newark,
with the state, the counties and the federal government competing
for the spaces. The per diem cost at a halfway house is far less
than the per diem in a county jail, and the halfway house alter-—
native helps to smooth the transition from prison to life outside
for the offender. A survey conducted by the Association in mid-
1981 revealed that the operators of existing facilities are willing
and able to expand their operations. They cannot do so, however,

without assurance that the additional beds will be filled,

The present state budget allows the Department of Corrections

to spend $175,000 for community halfway house beds. Many other
states depend heavily upon this alternative. Ohio has 21 halfway
houses for 625 offenders, with a state appropriation of $3.6 million.

Michigan has 2200 aoffenders in 100 halfway houses across the state.

13x




Other alternatives, such as intensive supervision and house
arrest, are now under examination as part of a statewide study
of probation initiated by the Chief Justice. Recommendations

- will be made at a June conference.

3. Parole should be available for inmates serving less than one year.

-+, Legislative action is needed to implement this recommendation.

4. The Legislature should pass a statute which would permit the early

release of prisoners nearing the end of their sentences, in the

event of serious overcrowding. Such a statute, which would be-
triggered only by a declaration of emergeuncy by the Commissioner
of Corrections and the Governor upon a finding of serious and
protracted prison overcrowding, would accelerate parole eligi-
bility by ninety days. Eligibility would not mean automatic

.. release; the existing standards for parole would still have to be
met. Such a statute has been adopted by several other states, and
in Michigan approximately 800 prisoners were granted early release
in May, 1981 without adverse public reaction.

“This is a very reasonable response to the problem of gross over-
crowding. Overcrowding is not a temporary, mildly uncomfortable
condition; it gives rise to problems and circumstances so horrible

as to be unimaginable to those who only read about them.

The public canmot imagine the strain upon immates and correctional
1 of§iqers which results from such conditions as now exist in many of
‘New Jersey's prisons and jails. We have no right, eith?r,iegal or

moral, to inflict such conditions upon the keepers or the kept. -

... Those in the best position to know have said, repeatedly, thgt-we'

"Téfb'living on borrowed time. Under the circumstatcesg, early telease

seems eminently sensible.

Theré i more to be said about overcrowding than time permits.: The Admihis#

trative Office of the Courts has devoted a great deal of time and éttantibn to

the'éubjéct, and has initiated such programs as thé State Speédy'Triaertqgnam'

and the fen'Petcent Bail Program. I would suggest that the; committes meet
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with the AOC to learn the Full extent of their work in this area. This

agency probably has the best overall view in state government of the problem

of overcrowding and of possible remedies.

It would make the task of this committee easier if the 120 members of the
Legislature were well informed about the crisis in corrections. To this end,
I have suggested to the Assembly Majority Leader that a briefing be held

for legislators, with the assistance of the Department.of Corrections and

the ACC. He likes the idea, and I now make the same suggestion to you with
regard to the Senate.

This committee hearing, we hope, is a sign that the State's resources will
now be brought te bear upon the problem of overcrowding. The Association
on Correction is anxious to share the information we have acquired over
the past year, and we look forward to working with the committee in the

moniths to come. We thank you for the opportunity to share our views with
you today.
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STATFMENT OF CHRISUTOPHIER V. DINIZ
CHATRMAN, NEW JRRSEY S1TATE PAROLE BOARD
PRESENTED 1O SENATE COMMLI'IIE
ON INSTITUIIONS, HIFALTH AND WELIARE
RICHARD CODEY, CHAIRMAN

February 18, 1982

My name is Christopher V. Dietz and I am Chairman of the New Jersey State
Parole Board. The purpose of my testimony is to address the issue of correctional
system overcrowding and, in particular, to describe the relationship between parole
policy and institutional populations.

Others who have studied the issues in depth can better describe all the trends

leading to the current situation. It becomes clear that population growth was not an

unforseen nor an unpredictable occurence although the magnitude of the problem may not

have been obvious.

There are a variety cf options that are available to the Legislature to deal
with the cinrrent situation. Many of these will be discussed here teday. I would
urge that parole not be used as a tool to icgulate population. lowever, whiie we

can, have, and will continue to assist in sceking solutions, it is clear to us that

parole policy must focus primarily on risk assessment rather than managemen£ of institu-

tional populations. Our role in the criminal justice system is established in the

Parole Act of 1979. We consider inmates for parole after the punitive aspects of their

gentence has been completed and then for establishing whether the inmate may safely
be released to the community to complete his or her term under community supervision.
However, considerable attention has focused on the impact of parole policy on
population. The Board has attempted to analyze what, if any impact is discernable.
Findings indicate that parole policy has had a neutral impact on population overall,
despite the fact that parole policy has influenced the distribution of population to

some extent and over the last several years.
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You have probably noted that there have been cyclical trends in population.

On April 30 of 1980 there was 6,618 inmates confined in state facilities. By
September 30 of 1980 however this had declined to a population’of 6,039, a decline
due primarily to an interim impact of the implementation of the Parole Act as we
will further explain. However, by December of 1981, total population had risen

to an all time high of 8,478 inmates.

During 1980 and 1981, institutional population rose as the impact of the new
Penal Code began to be felt. The proportion of all defendants receiving prison
terms doubled, while those receiving youth indeterminate sentences remained roughly
constant at about, 10% to 11 % of those sentenced. Thus, a huge increase in prison
admissions occurred. During the first six months of 1981, the state's courts
sentenced as many defendants to state prison as they would normally sentence in an
entire year. Statistics of the Administrative Office of the Courts indicate this
trend will continue. Although the proportion of indeterminate sentences remained
roughly the same, an increase in the number of defendants sentenced resulted in
somewhat more indeterminate admissions. NAs a result, New Jersey now faces a méjor
problem in its ability to house inmate population, a problem it shares with a number
of states.

I would like to examine parole release levels in New Jersey over 1980 and 1981.
Parole release levels in New Jersey were relatively consistent in the period from
1975 to 1979. During this interval, approximately 3,900 ~ 4,000 inmates were paroled
annually from state correctional facilities. By 1978, this level had risen to about
4,100 inmates. However, in calendar year 1980, 4,743 parole releases occurred, a
significant increase over previous years. This release expansion was experienced

almost exclusively in the prison complex.

§

\
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§ for parole as close to actual eligibility as possible.

Under previous practice, the Board generally established
pParole release dates approximately three to six months
(sometimes longer) after a parole hearing. Since hearings
were scheduled one month prior to parole cligibility, this
Provision, resulting in reduction of an average of 2-3 months
EXHIBIT ; in time scerved, resulted in 3060-400 additional parole

- ; . relcases in 1980.

|
w
1

Parole Release Rates - Prison Complex |
i : Multiple offenders, comprising approximately 25% of the inmate

1978 1979 - 1980 ’ ; P bopulation under Title 2A, received a minor reduction in
. : . their eligibility dates under Che provisions of N.J.S.A.
Total 4,100 4,092 4,743 l ' 30:4-123.51(3). 'The Board implemented this provision during
' | May and June of 1980. A review of hearing caseloads indicates
Prison Complex 1,359 1,271 1,835 . that approximately 100 additional parole relcases resulted,
Other Institutions 2,741 2,821 2,908

. During 1980, the three-judge resentencing Panel resentenced
a significant number of prison inmates under Title 2C. The
precise effect of this action on parole relecases is not
available. However, a number of inmates were made eligible
for parole release in 1980 that would normally not have been
eligible.

We have examined monthly statistics and they demonstrate that the rise in

parole releases was particularly significant during the months of May, June, July,

August, and September of 1980. In fact, even the small rise experienced outside the The implementation of the monitoring system generated the
, identification of parole-eligible inmates, and as a result, a

prison complex during this time is likely due to prison inmates housed in the Youth ; 10% increase in Lhe parole of those eligible occurred. It is
% , estimated that perhaps 100-200 additional paroles were affected.

Correctional Complex. Figures in my report indicate this. f R o
. . In swmmary, scveral distinct faclors produced a one-time rise in
EXHIBIT - E\ : -
oot ¢ : relcase levels in 1980 above and beyond the norm. A normal rate of
1980 Release Rates . )

4,100 paroles would have been expected; instecad, the implementation of

Monthly Averages (1980) ;
% the new Act increcased this by approximately 650. However, each factor

Jan.-Apr. May ~ Sept. Oct. -Dec.
contributing to this increase was a "one-shot", and the parole rate
Total 336 490 317 ;
| was expected to drop again in 1980.
Prison Camplex 105 218 109 ;
During 1981, overall parole relcase levels did, in fact, drop from
Others 231 272 208

the previous 1980 levels. While this was partially attributable to the

. ) ) ] ) ‘ expected decline to former levels, other trends were observed. Available
You should note that this rise in release levels occurred immediately after the

effective date of the new Parole Act on April 21, 1980 and appear to be related to - 3 data indicate that prison complex releases began to stabilize in 1981,
: ’ ;
L ; ons of the Act as noted bel . but that a decline in release levels was noticeable in the Youth
several provision n ow: o P .
- ; Correctional Complex.
Under the Act's provisions, parole release{ if approved by the ; EXHIBIT
Board, must be effective "as soon as practicable after the é ——=
(parole) eligibility date" (N.J.S.A. 30:4-123.55(b) and (4d). i P 1 ‘ _
This required the Board to facilitate release of those approved | arole Release Rates - Youth Complex
: 1978 1979 1980 1981
é e =297 =2¢L
; i} Prison Complex 1,359 1,271 1,835 1,278
18x . - | 3 Youth Complex 2,270 2,276 2,171 1,550
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Statistics suggest that a number of releases were running at about
expected levels based upon historical data. In the Youth Complex,
however, the level during 1981 declined.

The reasons for this temporary decline can be determined. Under
the new Parole Act, the State Parole RBoard, rather than the Institutional
Classification Departments and the Board of Trustees, has parole
jurisdiction over youth cases. Current Board policy favors a significant
increase in the amount of time served for young adult sentences.
Consequently, the number of parole releases has declined and will continue
to remain low until the average time served by indeterminate cases has
stabilized. It currently appears that the typical youth inmate will
serve about 14-15 months.

Since no comparative data for the period prior to the newAParole
Act exists, it is impossible to determine the absolute reasons for this
increase. It is clear, however, that the Parole Board is treating
aggravating factors such as prior record, weapons, or parole/probation
failures more seriously than previously, and time reductions for program
participation are realistically applied. Evidence also exists that
sentences have increased in length due to new presumptive terms and
that defendants' records and offenses have gradually grown more serious.

Overall, it appears that current parcle policy has impacted on
population distributions, particularly where the Board is responsible for
establishing eligibility terms, but the impact is temporary. Increased
overall population figures appear to be more directly related to
sentencing f;ends rather than parole release rates. The major trends :
have included a slight decline in the average time served in the prison
complex and an increase in average time served in the youth complex. An
additional 650 inmates were released in 1980, but trends were adjusting
to their former levels in 1981. Inzgg}ms of policy implications, the

formerly large gap between time served in the prison and in the youth

complex has narrowed, althouygh the gap is still present.
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The overall conclusion that we draw from this analysis is that
Board policy, in general, has had a temporary impact on population
that will be neutral over the long run. This is not to suggest, however,
that we, as a public agency, are insensitive to the grave issues we
face together. I would like to describe several pro-active initiatives
we are currently undertaking. We think ways do exist that would enable
us to increase releases and yet maintain public safety;-but we cannot
do this alone.

The Parole Act of 1979 contains several provisions of note. The
Board has the authority to parole inmates directly to residential
facilities funded directly or indirectly by the State. This would
hypothetically occur in the case of an individual who has served the
punitive aspect of his sentence and who might be safely released if some
type of institutional placement might be found. Given the serious
conditions of overcrowding and the fact that a significant number of
individuals are likely candidates for release to residential facilities
insuring public safety, the Board had placed a high priority on
exercising this option.

The major problem, however, is that the resources to implement such
an initiative are lacking. In cooperation with other public agencies,
the Board is attempting to identify the specific resources to insure that
the parole to residential facilities process becomes a reality in the
near future. Our first focus has been on those inmates who appear to
require placement in mental health facilities. Planning with the
Division of Health and Mental Hygiene has been underway for the past
several months. Even more advantageous possibilities should be consi-
dered as in the development of sheltered workshop placements for others.

The Parole Act also authorizes the Board to provide early release
in a limited number of cases. Inmates who have made "exceptional

progress" or adjustment during their period of incarceration oftern go
21x
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unrecognized. The Board is authorized to recognize inmates who have
made exceptional progress for the purpose of early release consideration.
The development of an exceptional progress initiative was postulated as
a goal for fiscal year 1982, and the Board has taken the necessary steps
to develop procedures for exceptional progress reviews. We are
presently reviewing applications for the exceptional progress cascs.

Some of you may also be familiar with a concept termed "contract
parole". The basic concept is that the Parole Board, the Department of
Corrections, and an inmate may enter into a contractual arrangement
providing for an early release date if the inmate agrees to achieve
certain goals by some pre-determined time. This "earned parole” concept
could prove to have great utility, and we have asked the Department of
Corrections to enter dialogue with us to determine if such a program
might be developed. -

As you are aware, there has been some discussion of utilizing early
release as a mechanism for temporarily easing the overcrowding situations.
In fact, the Governor's Task Force on Prison Overcrowding chaired by
former Attorney General George F. Kugler, Jr. had recommended this
approach. While this concept deserves your consideration, it is a
decision I am sure you will weigh heavily. I would like to assure you,’
however, that the approach would only work, as was recognized by the Task
Force, if the same stringent requirements wecre used in the granting of
parole as are currently employed. Reduction of time would only occur for
those approQ;d for parole, and then only for 90’days.

There are also other options that deserve your consideration. You
have examined the very serious and potentially dangerous backup of state
inmates in county facilities. All indications are that the situation
will become worse instead of better. Some of these state inmates housed
in county facilities are parole violators who have either violated the

22x
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mistake to assume that temporary relief could be realized by cutting back
on the return of the pgrole violator to custody. To do so would
jeapordize the very foundations of parole and undermine the credibility
of the criminal justice system. A far more suitable alternative might

be to extend some type of parole eligibility status to county inmates

who are serving short terms for relatively minor offenses. While this
might involve modification of existing law and development of a review
mechanism at the county level, the approach makes some sense.

In summary, I come not with the answers to prison overcrowding, but
only with some indications of the options that deserve discussion.
Overall, I think that the Board has reacted to the challenge of
overcrowding by assuming a practical stance, yet one which assures that
the legitimacy of the parole process remains intact and public protection
remains paramount. We applaud your eifforts to deallwith this most
difficult situation and welcome an opportunity to assist in any way

possible.
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ﬁ’“&'" ss'?;'i?s the elimination of paverty, on the reform of a prison

orton ¢« a5 e
James A. Terella system that apparently guarantees recidivism, and on ;
Nadine H. Taub its ability to bring peace to an interracial society.

Stanley Varon

J 8. Ventantonio . . . .

Barbara 5. Wecker The problems of crime and corruption in our society - in our h;m:iz'i

Jaceb Wolsalman in our public places, in relations among and between businesse

?::: '?‘%‘3'3325'“ consumers and even by public officials are grave and deep—rootedun

e Today's hearing and the prison system which is today under scrut ly

focus on “"street crime"; those crimes of property or personal violence
which comprise the overwhelming majority of the cases processed in ocur
criminal justice system.

i i i f our criminal
We are attorneys experienced in the day to day workings o
justice system. We see it all - the pollcenar:l on the beat, t':he county
jails, the criminal trial courts the state prison carplex. We have
learned this: the prablem of crime in our society is far beyond ttge
capacity of our criminal justice system - police, courts, prosecutors
ard priscns ~ to solve.
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The persistence of the problem is due not to hamstrung courts because

our courts are not hamstrung; it is due not to lenient judges because

our judges are not lenient; our Jjudges have strictly adhered to what

they believe is the legislature's camand and the public's cry for severity;
it is not due to policemen whose hands have been tied because the police
have all the . force, authority and cooperation from out officials
and our citizens which they require. The problem of crime in cur society
originates in social, econamic and cultural structures so deep that

the changes necessary to begin to reverse the problem are not on the
immediate political agenda.

We must therefore face the fundamental fact: The problem of crime in

our society will not be solved by tinkering with the operations of the
criminal justice system. We can more readily make things worse than

we can make things better. It is ocur contention that the present crisis

is a result of such tinkering which has made things worse, without impacting
in any measurable degree upon the underlying problem.

We must also make clear two fundamental premises: (1) The notion, so
widely trumpeted at the highest levels of our naticnal and state governments
and in our media, that we are in the midst of a crime wave growing stead-
ily in intensity acioss our nation is simply false. The United States
Department of Justice Study, Criminal Victimization in the U.S., Sep-
tember 1980, demonstrates that there is no increase in the mumber of
victimizations across the countxy in the period 1973 to 1979 for those
crimes about which public concern is the greatest: robbery, assault,

rape, larceny, household burglary, motor vehicle theft. In fact, the

only trend that can be discerncd for those offenses is a slightly dowrward
one.

We must therefore accept this fact: our prisons are bulging because
we have changed our laws, not because we have suffered a great increase
in crime.

This brings us to the next essential assumption: (2) Neither more prisons
nor more police can solve our problem without prohibitive expense or

the creation of an apparatus of repression so fearscme that it would
fundamentally undermine the civil liberties upon which democracy depends.
As Judge David L. Bazelon, Senior Circuit Judge of the United States
Court of Appeals for the District of Colunbia, last week declared at ;
Vanderbilt University, only a garrison state "akin to martial law" or !
acceptance of reforms in our scciety amounting to "a revolution if the i
way we govern ourselves" could reach the roots of crime in "the culture
of poverty and discriminaticn still tolerated in every American city."

We believe that the Legislature mist consider in its comming term ways
to ease the crisis which we have seen developing in our prison system.
We therefore propose that the legislature make the following changes
in the Code of Criminal Justice:

I Every Judge at the time of sentencing a defendant to a custodial
term in state prison camplex shall make a detailed statement, in open
court, elaborating how he/she applied the criteria for withholding or
imposing a sentence of imprisomment, set forth in the 2C:44~1, which
should be amended to camel the Judge to take into account the nature
and role of each individual defendant's actions, including: (A) whether
the victim actually sustained physical injury whach was intended by
the actor; (B) whether the defendant personally was armed with, used
or wielded a weapon or personally used physical force; (C) whether the :
defendant threatened to use force, verbally or by display of a weapon; '
(D) whether the defendant merely aided and abetted the crime; (E) whether

the defendant provided the means for commission of a crime; (F) whether

the crime was campleted or merely attempted or abandoned prior to cample-
tion.

The legislature should make clear its intent that customarily sentences
should vary fram person to person; in order to demonstrate to all -

the victim, the public and defendant - that society's judgment does
depend on the individual culpability of the defendant and the nature

of the hami actually inflicted. This will help to restore the proper
exercise of judicial discretion which has been unduly restricted by

the way the criminal code is camonly understood by criminal trial judges.
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We know as defense attorneys that juries make the kinds of distinctions
which we are encouraging. People understand that a crime in which
violence is actually used or a weapon is fired differs from and should
be sentenced differently fram those in which violence is merely threat-
ened or possible.

IT Minimm Mandatory Sentences ~ commonly known as parole dis-
qualifiers - have aggravated arbitrary disparities in sentencing. The
legislature, in enacting the Code, hoped to eliminate disparities in
sentencing not based on the specific facts of each case. It was hoped
that "presumptive sentences" and "ordinary terms" of imprisonment would
accanplish this.

In fact, the use of parole disqualifiers, which allow a Judge to sentence
a defendant to up to one-half of the maximum sentence for first and

second degree crimes without possibility of parole, has aggravated the
sitvation. The use of this mechanism varies so widely fram judge to
judge, fruam case to case, from county to county that we now see a disparity
in sentencing far greater and far more arbitrary than that which the
legislature sought to reduce in 1979. The message to a prisoner is

that no matter how he spends his time in prison, his time served will

not be affected. If he studies or not; if he works or not; if he shows
positive social attitudes or not, he will serve the same sentence due

to the use of mandatory minimum. The prisoner in the next cell, serving
time for a similar crime, without a mandatory minimum has an incentive

to work, to study, to learn improved social relations. Such arbitrariness,
such disparity, encourages recidivism, not correction.

We therefore call for the elimination fram the Code of the mandatory
minimam, parole disqualifiers for first and second degree offenses.

The now inconsistent, often casual reliance on its provisions should be
eliminated and the more cohsidered, carefully articulated, individualized
sentencing process sought by our first proposal should be enacted.

Sentencing must be a two step process - the first is a carefully tailored
sentence by the trial court, informed by the facts known at the time

of conviction; the second staje of sentencing is conducted by the parole
board, after the opportunity inas been given to the priscner to demon-
strate, within an institutional context, such favorable factors as would
persuade the parole board, (the independence of which must be assured)

of his favorable adjustment and the likelihood of return to society without
repetition of the criminal behavior which sent him to state prison.

We propose as a means of eliminating any inequity that any prisoner
currently serving a mandatory minimum, have that minimm lifted and

his case, if his otherwise earliest parole date has already been reached,
immediately reviewed by the parcle board or by a special parole panel
similar to the resentencing panel established when the Code was enacted.
A post-sentence report should be routinely prepared by the probation
department or the parole authorities and provided to the prisoner, his
attorney and the resentencing authority.

III A presumption of non-imprisonment in state prison for third
and fourth degree offenses should be enacted. To the extent that cus-
tocdial sentences are warranted in third and fourth degree offenses (and
we feel they should be markedly reduced in favor of greater reliance
on probationary remedies), that time should be served in county insti-
tutions. The state prison camplex should be reserved for those who
have camitted seriocus crimes of violence and use deadly weapons. We
must move toward a county-based corrections system.

The Legislature should further provide that in all third and fourtls

degree cases where a custodial sentence is imposed to a county institution
there shall be a presumption that the time should be served on weekends

or in a work-release program in order to minimize the disruption of

family, employment, educational and other positive social factors. Such

a plan must be coupled with adequate funding of half-way houses, drug,
glchohol, family and psychiatric treatment programs to address the problems
of adjustment and personality development which accompany these offenders.
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A County-based corrections system can best be coordinated with the
County educational, vocational, health and social service institutions
and agencies.

w We also wish to make clear that we endorse the emerqency
overcrowding statute, similar to that enacted in Michigyan, as urged
by the Governor's Task Force on Prison Overcrowding. Its feasibility
and necessity are so clear that action on this at least should be
imrediate.
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Criminal Victimization in the U.S.
Summary Findings of 1978-79 Changes in Crime

and of Trends Since 1973

Natignal Crime Survey Report SD-NCS-N-18, NCJ-62993

Comiaon housenold thefts were relatively more
numerous in 1979 than a year earlier, but stability
generally characterized both the incidence of crime
and the rates at which offenses were reported to the
police, According to latest results from the Wational
Grime, Survey (NCS), significant victimization rate
changes were evident for the two most prevalent kinds
of measured crime--houschold larceny and personal
larceny without victim-offender contact--between 1978
and 1979. The changes were in opposite directions.
An increase of 1.3 million residential larcenies
brought about a 12-percent rise in the rate for that
crime, while 630,000 fewer noncontact personal lar-
cenies caused a 5-percent drop in the rate for that
offense.' Rates for rape, personal robbery, assault,
personal larceny with contact, household burglary,
and motor vehicle theft did not change significantly
hetween the 2 years (Table 1).

Detailed NCS results in a forthcoming report will
show that the 1979 increase in household larceny was
fairly widespread, significantly affecting homeowners

and renters alike, ‘as well as households at all income

levels.*  The rise in the rate for that crime also was
significant among white households and those headed
by persons between the ages of 20 and 64. Although
seeming to move upward, the larceny rates for black
and for Hispanic households did not change signifi-
cantly.

The reduced incidence -of personal larceny with-
uut contact was also found among a number of sub~
groups. Thus, whites and males had lower 1979 rates
for that crime, and there was some indication that fe-
males also had a lower larceny rate; the rate among
blacks did not change significantly. "Although the
iownward direction in rates for noncontact personal
iarcenies seemed to apply to all of the age and income

!All changes or differences discussed in this report
are statistically significant at a confidence level of 95
‘ercent, uniess qualified by the phrase ''some indica~
tion, ' which denotes significance at a 90-percent lev~
el.  According 1o NCS classification, the two crimes
tur which there was significant change in 1979 differ
irom ohe another solely on the basis of their place of
ugcurrenge.

"The larceny rate was significantly higher tur
wuseholds with annual incomes ranging from $7,500 °
- 8145999, as well as for those in the $15,000 and
~ver bracket; there was some indication that it was
:so higher among those with incomes of less than
. 7,500. ' :

-

September 1980

groups examined, the declines were only significant
among persons age 25-34 and those earning $15,000
or more annually. Hispanics and non-Hispanics
alike experienced the crime at a lower rate.

Changes between 1976 and 1979 in the incjdence
of personal and household larcenies were nol attended
by variations in the rates at which those crimes were’
reported to the police. As in 1978, only about ] in
every 4 of each of those types of crime was made
known to the authorities during 1979. For other
crimes mecasured by the NCS, there also were no sig-
nificant changes in the police repoi:ing rates between
1978 and 1979 {Table 2). :

Household larceny reached a peak in 1979--134
per 1,000--a figure that was 25-percent higher than
that recorded in 1973, when NCS annual estimates
first became available {see chart). With respect to
personal larceny without contact, the 1979 drop placed
the figure at a level not significantly different from its
1973 low.

Turning to post-1973 trends for other NCS-
measured crimes, the 1979 rate for simple assault was
higher than those for 1976 and earlier years, but the
apparent increase in the 1979 rate over the 1977 and
1978 figures was not statistically significant; parallel
results held for the overall assault rate, but no direc~
tion emerged for aggravated assault (Table 3). Sim-
ilarly, no trends were evident in the rates for rape or
personal larceny with victim-offender contact. The

Trends in victimization rates for selected crimes, 1973-79
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rate for personal robbery, which had dropped 18 per-
cent between 1974 and 197+, appeared to have halied
ifs decline, although the moat recent cHange was not

£tatistically significant,

Although the 1978-79 change in the rate for res-
idential burglary was not statistically significant, the
latest figure—~-84 per 1,000 houscholds--suggested a’
continuation of an overall decline thai has taken place
since 1974, when the rate was 93 per 1,000,
molor vehicle theft rate dropped sharply between 1975
and 1976, but there has been no other measurable
year—to-year change in the incidence of that crime.

The

The 1979 101¢, huwever, was significantly lower than
that for 1975,
NCS data are collected by means of interviews
with persons age 12 and over in a representative sam-
ple of approximately 60,000 households across the

Nation.

The survey is designed and ca:ried out for

the Bureau of Justice Statistics by the U.S. Bureau

of the Census.,

and subject to revision.

Data in this report, anothcr in a
series to examine trends in crime, are preliminary

Future reports will contain

a description of the survey methodology, including a
discussion of sampling error, as well as definitions
and other technical information. '

Table 1. Personal and household crimes: Number of victimizations
and victimization rates, by type of crime, 1973-79

(Rate per 1,000)

Sector and type of crime 1973 s 1974 1975 1976 1977 1978 197\9
Personal sector -
Crimes of violence
g::x;ber 5,3513;)02 5,510,000 5,573,000 5,599,000 5,902,000 5,941,000 6,159,000
. 33.0 32.8 . :
Rape & 32.6 33.9 33.7 34.?
g::ber 156,?00 163,000 154,000 145,000 154,000 171,000 192,000
.0 1.0 0. . .
Robbory 1 9 0.8 0.9 1.0 ].l_
:u:r;ber 1.108,200 1,199,000 1,147,000 1,111,000 1,083,000 1,038,000 1,116,000
a 3o T 7.2 6.8 . .
Assaut P , 6.5 6.2 5.9 . 6.3
g::r;ber 4, 0872003 4,148,000 4,272,000 4,344,000 4,664,000 4,732,000 4,851,000
4.9 24.8 . 25.2 25.3 26.8 .
Aggravated assault ! 26-9 2“7.2
g::r;ber ~l.655].g():) l.735i000 1,631,060. 1,695,000 1,738,000 1,708,000 1,769.060
. 0.4 .6 . .
Simple assault . ? ’3 10-0 > ?.9
g:;nber 2,4321, 003 2,413,000 2,641,000 2,648,000 2,926,000 3,024,000 °3,082.000
e 4. 14.4 15.6 .
Crimes of et 15.4 16.8 17.2 17.3
g::z;ber 14,971(.]?0;) 15,889,000 16,294,0C0 16,519,000 16,933,000 17,050,000 16,382,000
; . 95.1 96.0 . .
Personal larceny with %61 7.3 %8 313
contact v
Number 504, 000 520,000 524,000 497,000 461,000 ‘549,000 511,000
Rate ‘ 3.1 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.7 3.1 2.9
Personal larceny without - )
contact : W
- Number 14,466,000 15,369,000 15,770,000 16,022,000 16,472,000 16,501,000 15,871,000
Rate 88.0 92.0 92.9 93.2 94.6 93.6 89.0

Total population agé 12
and over

tHlousehold-sector
Household burglary
Number
Rate
Household larceny
‘ Number
; Rate
Motor vehicle theft
Number -
Rate -

- Total number of households

164,363,000 167,058,000 169,671,000 171,901,000 174,093,000 176,215,000 178,284‘,000

6,458,700 6,743,700 6,663,400 6,764,900
- 917 +93.1 91.7 88.9 - 88.5
7.537.300 8,933,100 9,223,000 9,300,906 9,418,300
107.0 123.8 125.4 124.1 123.3

. o .
1,343,900 - 1,358,400 - 1,433,000 1,234,600 1,296,800
“19.1 1848 19.5 16.5 17.0

6,720,600

6,704,000
86.0

9,351,900
119.9

1,365,100
17.5.

70,442,400 72,162,900 73,559,600 74,956,100 76,412,300 77,980,400

6,685,400
B4.1

10,630,100
¢« 133.7

1,392,800
17.5

'NOTE: - Detail may rot add to total shown because of réundihg.
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T-;“xblc 7. Personal and houschold o
by type-of crime, 1978-7Y

Chanye in police reporting rates,
5

Percent of victimizations

Percent
) ‘ 1978“ ported to the police 1575 Y rchange"

Sector and type of crime

Personal sector. 4.2 45.1 ) ::152 B
Crimes of violence * 50.5 Lo

48.8 255 +9.8

Raﬁﬁ ' 502 42.4 ~0.5

Aesault 4z.7 51.3 -2.8

Aggravated assault %(7) 37.4 :;.;

Simple assault 24.6 24.0 .,5.6

Crimes of theft 33'7 35.6 2.9 ,

Personal larceny with contact 24‘3 o 23.6 ~Cs
Personal larceny without contact .

Household sector 47.1 47.6 s :;.g
Household burglary 24.5 25.1 = +3',3
Household larceny 661 68.2 3.
Motor vehicle theft 7

- : t.
!None of the changes was statistically significant at minimum confidence level of 99 percen
-~ /
1 : €S
Table 3. Personal and household crimes: Compganson of chang
.in victimization rates, by type of crime, 1973-7
Percent change in v:cnmxzatqlon rate TR 1978-79"
- Sector and type of crime 1973-79 1974-79 1975-79 1976-7
: / . 1.9 +2.4 -
Personal sector ) w447 #4452 #46.0 + ge 3
Crimés of violence :;g'ly ‘ +10.2 +18.7 +ZB.§> +ﬂ)2 3
Rob <713 *-12.8 e o +1.6 +1.3
iobbe;'y %1G.4 %49.6 *18.1 +b‘6 0.6 V2.4
Assault A _ . +3.2 +0. =L
Aggravated assault : Gﬁ% % *+l;.§ *+-lhl .1 *412.2 **;iz *:gg
Crines of (:haes}fauu 40,9 *-5.4 e "o 5 ~-8.0
- .Crimes o ) ~. S ~0. A N
Personal larceny with contact -6.5 . ;; g2 4.5 *-5.9 » ‘4.9
Personal larceny wnhout contact +1.1 Bl : A |
’ ) ; *.5,0 -2.2
Household sector L R * *.8.3 #.5,4 5.1 :
-8.3"7 -9.7 i : 8. *411.5
eaicma i T B S S R
Jouseho 2 e 10, 46,
" Motpr vehicle the(t 7 "3:- ‘?'9 ; - -
" he 95 percent confldf‘nce level. > ‘

*Statxshcally significant at't
**Stahsncally sxgmﬁcam at the 90 percem co
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Glossary

Age—The approprlalc age category is
determined by each respondent’s age as of
the fast day of the month preceding the
interview,

Apgravated ~assault—Attack with - a
‘weapon, irrespective of whether or not there
was injury, and attack without a weapon
resulting either in serious ’injury (c.g., broken
bones, loss of teeth, internal mjuncs. loss of
conscnousncss) or in undetermined injury re-
quiring 2 or more days of hospitalization,
Also inclides attempted assault with a
‘weapon,
< Annual family income—Includes the
“income of the houscr?ld head and aii other
related persons residi >g in the same house-
hold unit. Covers thie 12 months preceding
the interview and includes wages, salaries,
net income from business or farm, pensions,
interest, dividends, rent, and any other
form of monetary income. The income of
persons unrelated to the head of household
is excluded.

Assault—An unlawful physical attack,
whether aggravated or simple, upon a per-
son. Includes artemptéd assaults with or
without a weapon. Excludes rape and at-
tempted rape, as well as attacks involving
theft or attempted theft, which are classified
8s robbery. Severity of crimes in this gen-
eral category range from minor threats to
incidents that bring the victim near death.

burglary in which force is used in an at-
tempt to gain entry.

Burglary—Unlawful or forcible entry of
& residericé, usually, but not necessarily, at-
tended by theft. Includes attempted forcible
‘entry. The cntry may be by force, such as
picking a lock, breaking’a window, or slash-
ing a screen, or it may be through an un-
locked door or'an open window. As long
as'the person cntering had no legal right to
be present in the structure, a burglary has
occuired. Furthérmore, the structure need
not be the house itself for a houschold bur-
glary to take place. lllegal entry of a ga-
tage, shed, or any other structure on the

E, 3* . premises also constitutes household burglary.

In fact, busglary doss not necessarily have
to occur on the premlses. If the brcakmg
- and cntcrmg occurred in a hotel or in a
~ vacation residence, it would still be classi-

member or members ‘were slaymg lhcrc at
the time.

Central city—The largest clly (or “twin
cilies™) of a standard metropolitan statisti-

¥ cnl arca (SMSA), defined below.

Eihnlclty——A distinction between Hﬁ-
pamc and non-Hlspamc rcspondcnts. ncgard- :

%, Jest of race,

‘Forcible entry—A form of burglary in

‘which force is used 1o gain entry (c.g. by

3. breaking & window or slashing a screen).

,' Head of household—For classification
purposes, only one individual per houschold

¢ be the head pcrson. In husband~wxfc

Attempted forcible entry—A form of .

fied as.a burglary for the houschold whose -

households, the hushand arbitrarily is consid-
éred 1o be the head. In other households,
the head person is the individual so regarded
by its members; generally that person is the
chief breadwinner.

Hispanic—Persons who report them-
selves as Mexican-American, Chicanos,
Mexicans, Mexicanos, Puerto Ricans,
Cubans, Central or South Americans, or
other Spanish culture or origin, regardless
of race,

Household—Consists of the occupants
of separate living quarters meeting cither of
the following criteria: (1) Persons, whether

: present or temporarily absent, whose usual
place of residence is the housing unit in
question, or (2) Persons staying in the hous-
ing unit who have no usual place of resi-
dence clsewhere.

Household critnes—Burglary or larceny
of a residence, or motor vehicle theft, crimes
that do not involve personal confrontation,
Includes both completed and attempted acts.

" Household larceriy—Theft or. attempted
theft of property or cash from a residence
or its immediate vicinity. For a houschold
larceny to occur within the home itself, the
thief must be someone with a right to be
there, such as a maid, a delivery person, or
a guest. Forcible entry, attempted forcible
entry, or unlawful entry are not involved.

Incident—A specific criminal act involv-
ing one or more victims and offenders. In
situations where a personal crime occurred
during the course of a commercial crime, it
‘is assumed that the incident was primarily
directed against the business, and, therefore,
it is not counted as an incident of personal
crime. However, details of the outcome of
the event as they relate to the victimized
individual are reflected in data on personal
victimizations.

Larceny—Theft or attempted theft of
property or cash without force. A basic dis-
tinction is made between personal larceny
and houschold larceny.

Marital status—Ezch houschold member
is assigned to one of the following categor-
ies: (1) Married, which includes persons in
commorn-law unions.and those parted tem-
porarily for reasons other than marital dis-
cord (employment, military service, elc.);
(2) Separated and divorced. Scparatcd in-
cludes married persons who "have a lcgal
separation or have parted because of mari-
tal discord; (3) Widowed; and (4) Never
'married, which includes those whose only
marriagc hits becn annulled and those liv-
ing together (cxc!udmg common-law
unions). ‘

Metropolitan -rn—Abbrcvmuon for
“Standard mclropohmn statistical area
(SMSA)," defined below, .

Motor vehicle—Includes automoblles.
trucks, molortycles and-any other motor-

Jized vehicles legally allowcd on public roads:
“and highways.

Motor vehicle theft—St;almg of unaus
thorized taking of ‘a motor vehicle;: mclud-
ing mtcmpts at. such acts:

C e
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Nonmetropolitan area—A locality not
situated within an SMSA. The category
covers a variety of localities, ranging from
sparsely inhabited rural areas to cities of
fewer than 50,000 population.

Non-Hispanic—Persons who rcport
their culture or origin as other than “His-
panic,” defined above, The distinction is
made regardless of race.

Noustranger—With respect to crimes
entailing direct contact between victim and
offender, victimizations (or incidents) are
classified as having involved nonstrangers if
victim and offender either are related, well
known to, or casually acquainted ‘with one
another. In crimes involving a mix of stran-
ger and nonstranger offenders, the events
are classified-under nonstranger. The distinc-
tion between stranger and nonstranger
crimes is not made for personal larccny with-
out contact, an offense in wh:ch victims
rarely see the offender.

Offender—The pcrpctrator of a crime;
the term generally is applied in relation to
crimes entailing contact between victim and
“offender. —

Offense—A crime; with respect to per-
sonal crimés, the two terms can be used
interchangeably irrespective of whether the
applicable urit of meéasure is a victimization
or an incident.

Outside centrai cms—Sec “Surburban
area,” below.

Personal crimes—Rape, robbery of
persons, assault, personal larceny with con-
tact, or personal larceny without contact.
Includes both compieted and attempted acts.

Personal crimes of theft—Theft or at-
tempted theft of property or cash by steaith,
either with contict (but without force or
threat of force) or without direct contact
between victim and offender. Equivalent to
personal larceny

Personal
robbery of persons, or assault. Includes both

. completed and attempted acts, Always in-

volves ‘contact between the victim and
offender.

Personnl larceny———Equwalent to per-
sonal crimes of theft. A distinction is made
between personal larceny with contact and
personal larceny without contact. :

Personal larceny with contsct—Theft of

~purse, wallet, or cash by stealth dircetly

from the person of the victim, but without
force or the threat of force. Also mcludes
attempted purse snatching. i
“Personal larceny without contact-—-’lheft
or attempted theft, without direct contact’
between victim and offender, of property or

cashi from any placc other than the victim's

homie or its immediate Vvicinity. The prop-
erty need not be strictly personal in nature;

“the act is distinguished from houschold lar-

ceny sclely by place of occurrencée. Exam-~
ples of personal-larceny without ‘cantact

~include the theft of a briclcase or umbrella
“from a restaurant, a poriable radio from the
beach, clothing from an automobile parked
‘in a shopping center, a bicycle from ‘a
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_schoolground, food from a shopping cart
in front of a supermarket, eic. In rare cases,
the victim sees the offender during the
commission of the act.

Physical injury—The term is applicable
to each of the three personal crimes of vio-
lence, although data on the proportion of
rapes resulting in victim injury were not
available during the preparation of this
report. For personal robbery and aticmpted
robbery with injury, a distinction is made
between injuries from “serious™ and “minor”
assault. Examples of injuries from serious
assault include broken bones, loss of teeth,
internal injuries, and loss of consciousness,
or undetermined injuries requiring 2 or
more days of hospitalization; injuries from
minor assault include bruises, black eyes,
cuts, scratches, and swelling, or undeter-
mined injuries requiring less than 2 days of
hospitalization. For assaults resulting in vic-
tim injury, the degree of harm governs clas-
sification of the event. The same efements
of injury applicable to robbery with injury
from serious assault also pertain to aggra-
vated assault with injury; similarly, the same
types of injurics applicable to robbery with
injury from minor assault are relevant to
simple assault with injury.

Race—Determined by the interviewer
upon observation, and asked only about
persons not related to the head of house-
hold who were not present at the time of
interview. The racial categories distinguished
are white, black, and other. The category
“other™ consists mainly of American Indians
and persons of Asian ancestry.

Rape—Carnal knowledge through the
use of force or the threat of force, including
attempts. Statutory rape (without force) is
excluded. Includes both heterosexual and
homosexual rape. )

Rate of victimization—See “Victimiza-
tion rate,” below.

Robbery—Completed or atiempted theft,
directly from a person, of property or cash
by force or threat of force, with or without
a weapon.

Robbery with injury—Completed or at-
tempted theft from 2 person, accompanied
by an attack, either with or without a wea-
pon, resulting in injury. An injury is classi-
fied as resulting from a serious assault,
irrespective of the extent of injury, if a
weapon-was used in the commission of the
crime or, if not, when the extent of the
injury was cither serious (c.g., broken
bones, loss of tecth, internal injuries, loss of

_consciousness) or undetermined but requir-
‘ing 2 or more days of hospitalization. An
injury is classified as resulting from a minor
assault when the extent of the injury was
minor (c.g., bruises, black eyes, cuts,

" scratches, swelling) or undetermined but re-

quiring less than 2 days of hospitilization.
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Robbery without injury—Theft or at-
tempted theft from a person, accompanied
by force or the threat of force, either with
or without a weapon, but not resulting in
injury.

Simple assanlt—Atiack without a weapon
resulting either in minor injury (¢.g., bruises,
black eyes, cuts, scratches, swelling) or in
undetermined injury requiring less than 2
days of hospitalization, Also includes at-
tempted assault without a weapon,

Standard metropolitan statistical area
(SMSA)—Except in the New England
States, a standard metropolitan statistical
area is a county or group of contiguous
countics that contains at least one city of
50,000 inhabitants or more, or “twin cities™
with a combined population of at least
50,000. In addition to the county, or coun-
ties, containing such a city or cities, contig-
uous counties arc included in an SMSA if,
according to certain criteria, they are
socially and economically integrated with
the central city. In the New England States,
SMSAs consist of towns and citics instead
of counties. Each SMSA must include at
least one central city, and the complete title
of an SMSA identifies the central city or
cities.

Stranger—With respect to crimes entail-
ing direct contact between victim and of-
fender, victimizations (or incidents) are
classified as involving strangers if the victim
so stated, or did not see or recognize the
offender, or knew the offender only by sight.
In crimes involving a mix of stranger and
nonstranger offenders, the events are classi-
fied under nonstranger. The distinction
between stranger and nonstranger crimes is
not made for personal larceny without con-
tact, an offense in which victims rarely see
the offender, :

Suburban area —The county, or coun
ties, containing a central city, plus any con-
tiguous countics that are linked socially and
ccanomically to the central city. On data
tables, suburban areas are categorized as
those portions of metropolitan areas situated
“outside central cities.”

Tenure—Two forms of household ten-

ancy are distinguished: (1) Owned, which
includes dwellings being bought through
mortgage, and (2) Rented, whith also in-
cludes rent-free quarters belonging to a
party other than the occupant and situations
where rental payments are in kind or in
services.
_ Unlawful entry—A form of burglary com-
mitted by someone having no legal right {o
be on the premises even though force is riot
used.

Victim—The recipient of a criminal act;.

usually used in relation to personal crimes,
but aiso applicabie to houscholds.
Victimization—A specific criminal act as
it affects a single victim, whether a person
or houschold. In criminal acts against per-
sons, the number of victimizations is deter-

mined by the number of victims of such
acts; ordinarily, the number of victimiza-
tions is somewhat higher than the number
of incidents because more than one individ-
ual is victimized during certain incidents, as
well as because personal victimizations that
occurred in conjunction with commercial
crimes are not counted as incidents of per-
sonal crime. Each criminal act against a
houschold is assumed 1o involve a single
victim, the affected houschold,

Victimization rate—For crimes against
persons, the victimization rate, a measure
of occurrence among population groups at
risk, is computed -on the basis of the number
of victimizations per 1,000 resident popula-
tion age 12 and over. For crimes against
households, victimization ratés are calcula-
ted on the basis of the number of incidents
per 1,000 houscholds.

Victimize—To perpetrate a crime against
a person or household.
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ioibnce’ 19.7

sbbery 5.9

ssault 13.8

jgravated :
wasauls oo 4.2

imple

Swnault oo 79.4

(33.0)

( 7.2)

“(24.8)

(14.4)

0.5, rates1in parenhhéSQs

‘Source: Rohert Tenarl, U.S. Census Bureau
| (202) 763-1735
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victimization rate per 1,000 for persons

“age 12 and over, New Jersey compared with United States*

N.J. N.J. NI e - N.J.
1975 1976 '

20.1 (32.8)  23.0 (32.6]  19.3 (33.9) 23.2

6.3 (6.8) 6.3 (6.5 55 (6.2 6.0

13.4 (25.2) 6.2 (25.3) - 12.9  (26.8) 16.7
4.0 (9.6 6.0 (9.9) 4.8 (10.0) . 5.4

9.4 (15.6) 10.2 (15.4) 8.1 (16.8) - 11.3

(,h

21977 1978

(33.7)

(26.9)

{9.7)

(17.2)

5.9

16.2

(34.5)

{ 6.3)

(27.23
{ 9.9)

(17.3)
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TESTIMONY OF JOHN M. FARRELL, NEW JERSEY
EXECUTIVES' COMMITTEE, BEFORE THE SENATE
INSTITUTIONS, HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE

ON THE "CRISIS OF OVERCROWDING IN TEE

STATE PRISONS AND LOCAL JAILS" - FEB. 18, 1982

My name is John M. Farrell, and I am Senior Vice-
president of Beneficial Management Corporation. I am
speaking today as the Chairman of the New Jersey Exec-
utives' Committee of the National Council on Crime and
Delinguency. The Executives' Committee represents a
broad array of New Jersey corporations, which seek toO
improve the effectiveness of the state's criminal justice
system.

The primary program objectives of the Executives' Com=-
mittee are two-fold:

1) to encourage the use of cdst—effective alternatives
to incarceration foxr non-dangerous offenders, thereby low~-
ering the continuing budget burden of the state's correc-
tions system to the taxpayer; ahd

2) +to encourage the development of community-based
crime prevention programs to reduce the incidence of
criminal and delingquent activity that creaté enormous
losses to the state's residéhts éndkbusinesses.

The crisis of dvercrowding in ourgstate prisons and
county jails is clearly one of the‘most pressinglprobleﬁS‘

with which our state officials must deal. The bulging

prisohs) and the predictions that the problem will con-

v
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tinue to escalate into the foreseeable future, makes other problems

in the criminal Jjustice area pale by comparison.

Even the most cursory review of the numbers involved leads to the
inescapable conclusion that dramatic steps must be taken in very
short order.-- this is not a problem which will disappear if we ig-
nore it long enough! I would like to review some of those numbers
at this time:

. According to the December 3 report of Governor Byrne's official
Task Force on Prison Overcrowdiﬁg, chaired by former State Attorney
General George F. Kugler, Jr.} the number of persons sentenced to the

state prison complex since the passage of 2-C has increased by 70%,

with the additional impact of a 61% increase in actual length of stay.

. A report in last Sunday's New York Times indicated that, while

the state prisons can accommodate perhaps 7500 inmates, the prison

population right now is 8920. Of that figure, 7794 are actually being

housed in the state prisons,‘while another 1108 are backed up in the

county jdils, as the result of the Governor's Emergency Proclamation.
. The number of state~ready prisoners backed up in the county

jails has risen by more than 160 over the past month alone. The re-

'sult of this enforced ove;crowding on the county level has been the

temporary :
shutting down of the Essex and Passaic jails, refusing to accept any

further prisoners from the municipal courts. (In Essex, one further
result has been a lawsuit by the City of Newark, naming both the

county and state as defendants.)

. According to the official projections of the Administrativeyof;

fice of the Courts, the state prison population could double by 1983,

and triple by 1990!

it

While it is almost*impossible to grasp the signifiéance of these
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figures, the immediate problem was well expressed in ‘the report of
the Task Force on Prison Overcrowding, when they noted that: "THE

MORE URGENT MESSAGE IS THAT DURING 1982 THE PRISON POPULATION WILL

INCREASE BY APPROXIMATELY 635 INMATES EVERY THREE MONTHS." (emphasis

added.)

In practical terms,:what do those figures mean? The bottom line
is: it is absolutely imggssible for the State of New Jersey to build
its way out of the curfent overcrowding crisis. At present there
are plans on the drawing board for a new 400-bed prison to be con-
structed in Camden -- from funds voted in the bond referendum of
November 1980. That prison cannot be ready until at least 1985,vand
it will obviously open overcrowded. With the kinds of numbers that
we are seeing now, and with the projections of the AOC and the Task
Force, we estimate that we would have to be able to build 10 new 400-

bed prisons by the end of this year if we are only to alleviate the

curreht population cfunch, and what can be expected by the end of 1982.
(That figure is derived from adding the 635 increase every three
months, plus the current population over capacity, with the addition
of state prisoners held ih the evercrowded-countyljails = a.total of
a@proximately 4000.)

It is of course perfectly obvious that it is impossible to con-
struct one prison by the end of the year, much less ten -~ even were
we to determine that course of actiogjwould be the most desirable,
and affordable. And we of the Executives' Committee believe that
course, if possible, would be neither desirable nor affordable.

In view of the oGerwhelming evidence that indicates that heavy

reliance on incarceration and lengthy sentences.have no discernible
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positive effect either on the incidence of crime or the rate of
recidivism, we believe the policy of responsibly limiting the use
of institutions should become paramount in justice planning by the
state. While it is clear that there will continue to be a need for
institutionalization of dsngerous and particularly violent offenders,
every effort must be made to develop non-incarcerative sanctions and
programs for the many offenders who do not fall within that category.
This conclusion is reinforced when we examine the costs of con-
tinually expandihg the state corrections system. Construction costs

for each new prison cell run anywhere from $60,000 to $80,000 per cell,

and operating costs per prisoner are estimated (probably conservatively)

to be more than $14,000 every single year. Utilizing the current

population figures and projections through the end of this decade,
the Task Force on Prison Overciowding conservatively estimated (since
they eonsidered the low construction figure of $60,000) that capital
needs for buildings could amount to $480 million by 1990, and annual
operating costs for the Deparment of Corrections would amount to more
than $150 million per‘year.
¢ continued

As businessmen and women, we cannot countenance the/expenditure
of these kinds of sums, to expand a demonstrably ineffective system --
and especielly in light of current economic realities. Money is

among our scarcest resources at present. 1In light of massive cutbacks

in social service program funding, it would be unconscionable to grant

‘ever increasing slices of the budget pie to the correctional apparatus.

‘The members of the New Jersey Executives' Committee would there-
fore recommend that several proposals made by Governor Byrne's Task

Force be acted upon immediately:
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1) The legislature should pass a statute similar to one which
has been utilized by Michigan to successfully defuse their prison
overcrowding crisis -- without enormous financial outlays, and

without endangering public safety. Such an emergency overcrowding

statute would accelerate parole eligibility by three months, allow-
ing the reduction of the incarcerated population in an orderly fashion
while selecting for release those inmates who would shortly be re-
leased in any event. As businesspeople, we support the concept of a
planned reduction of the overcrowded population. Given the magni-
tude of the problem currently facing the state, such a mechanism ap-
pears to be the only rational immediate response to the problem at
hand, and there seem to be no grounds for the often expressed fear
that releasing those who are near release anyway will présent any
increased danger to the public. |

2) Within the state's prison system right now, there apparently A
are an estimated 500 individuals who have been’denied,parole release,
for the sole reason that” "no suitable residential or non-residen-
tial mental health and substance abuse programs are available. Fund-
ing of these kin?s of community programs should be accomplished,
to eliminate this problem in the future, therkby elimimating the need
for one entire new prison.

3) We further recommend that the legislature appropriate funds
where applicable for the purpose ofvesﬁablishing viable’alternatives "
to incarceration for those who do not require imprisonment, and who
are currently eligible_ﬁnder the criminal code for non—incarcerative
sanctions. We unaerstand the AOC is now investigating the féasibility‘
of instituting IntensiVe’Probation Supervision programé in this state,

as well as a statewide program of community service sentencing. If
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these practical alternative programs are created, and adequately
funded, the state will have gone a long way towards a planned re-
sponse to its correctional needs.

4) While we understand the legislature's reluctance to consider
the possibility of revising the mandatory sentencing clauses of
the criminal code (although we would contend such a re-examination
is essential, given the criminal code's disastrous impact on the
prison population), we urge you, most emphatically, not to give any
credence to any further call for increased senténce lengths or addi-
tional mandatory sentences. The impact of 2-C's harsher provisions
is all too evident in the current crisis of overcrowding; to in-
creasé the severity of those provisions in the light of current ex-
perience would only exacerbate disastrously an already impossible

situation. #
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February 16, 1982

Senator Richard J. Codey

Chairman, Committee On

Institutions, Health and Welfare

CN-042

State House

Trenton, New Jersey 08625 ' .

~ Dear Senator Codey:

The crisis of overcrowding in our county and the state
correctional institutions continues to escalate. The pressures
of overcrowded conditions and unabated, crisis management has
strained many of our institutions beyond the breaking point.
Thesé conditions are an undeniable receipt for a major disaster.
It is critical that definitive leadership be exerted in order to
contain and manage the crisis. It is widely hoped that the present
hearings will lead to action which will effectively address the
emergency conditions.

o order to assist the committee's investigation of the
correctional population crisis, I attach herein two documents which
had previously been prepared.

~ The first addresses the issue of crisis management itself.
The separate state and county correctional administration have
failed to work together in addressing the crisis. Together the
result has been an adversarial relationship with each jurisdiction
pitted against the other. The adversarial positions taken and in-
; creasingly engaged establish onlykshort—term.relief'énd cannot form
(/ lasting solutions. Further, and more importantly, the bitterness .

impede the correctional community for years to come.
No one element of the correctional system can act unilat-
erally to maintain its own best interest without dire consequences.
The state must not continuve its policy of pre~determing capacity and
closing its doors while inmates backup incounty institutions. The
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counties cannot close their doors without dramatic disruption to the
local criminal justice systems, however, in the present adversial
atmosphere more counties may engage in such action on the same un-
ilaterally self~-serving basis presently exercised by the state.

This problem will not go away by itself. The extremity of
the problem necessitates new working rapport between the state and
the counties. As the second document indicates, the state could make
a greater contribution to crisis response by short-term use of selective
double bunking. S ' ,

The state could take greater direct responsibility for their
inmates and also provide decisive leadership for a cooperative crisis
response management coalition to establish comprehensive use of
existing space in all institutions. This would minimize adversarial
leadership and create a cooperative atmosphere which will be a necessary
aspect of any potentially successful approach to relieving the present
crisis. '

, It is our sincere hope that the positions established in
these documents will be of assistance to the work of the committee.

Very truly yours,

/ﬁM

OSEPH”A. FECONDA, DIRECTOR
Adult Corrections Department .

JAF: jmm
Enclosures

cc: Freeholder Donald J. Wernik
John J. Hoagland, Esq., County Counsel
John T. McHugh, County Administrator

alx

NN
R




A B i

IMPROVING RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN
STATE AND COUNTY CORRECIIONAL OPERATIONS

Our criminal justice system is facing L’mprea-nu.:-d ;.,rdo‘leuts. A
The jails and prisons are filled beyond capacity. ‘The new (.‘rimivn,al o
voade, pattems of\strictcr sentencing, and changes in our m_)r‘xtal health
systems have all resulted in a dramatic duztcz;inrat'ion in inetituti (.).l;ieiﬁxl'
coxuditiogs’ and severe overcrowding. At the same time, new standards |
and regulatiohs have been promulgated and a continui ng wave of prisoners'
rights litigation all serve to overwhelm the institutional administrators.
This orisis of conbined probloems, however, docs not oxcuse our absolute
icoponsibility to operate effective mrruétional zi._ns;‘titutior'xs;; ‘The:
potontial oriminal must know that pl.mi'sﬁm.mt will 1v,,11m the: c:rim:. |

iy ouvicted eriminal must be dealt with firmly within a systom o

Cwhich s able to propard him to retum to seciety.  The citizens ho

thee righit to betiowe that our jaids cad prisons will acoonplishe Cheas
tasks so that we can all feel nore secwe inour homes and comuni tic
In order to ensure that these basic conditions arce upheld, thoe state

st take a new and dynamic leadorship rale.

In the past, the tasks of county and state correctimed
yhnbatad b were separate and disktinet.  The state dnstitu cons belo ; n
Soriear otfenders who had beens sentenced to major teme of dreosceead

vhide the ammnties held detaineos and minor offencoas serving chert

forTn. o In more recent years, thoe degrea of disparily betseen ctar e

cod ccanty institutions has narmowed considerably. fary mdre vicdor L
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such as public intoxication have been decriminalized and in other
cases, alternatives to incarceration have been established. These
trends, in combination with the incarceration of greater numbers of
serious offenders, have produced dramatic shifts in sentencing patterns.
Now the counties hold inmates sentenced on far more serious charges,
and in this, the county institutions are now significantly more

similar to the state institutions. Although this developing similarity
might have produced closer working rapport between state and county
institgtions, in fact, there has been a serious deterioration of mutual

cooperation.

.

“‘The impact of the multiple f)roblcms which face the corrcctional
institutions has been to stretch the administrators' resources above
and beyond tﬁe breaking point. Overcrmding strains e\)ery clement of
facility and staff resources; and many insti tutions aré literally
opcrating wder emergency conditions. Un‘forthately tl}ough_, all too
‘oftén the institutions have pursued self-serving responses to their
individual_cri_ses. ‘The kmsult of such narrow leadership has been
increased friction and facﬁionzilization. The state institutions have
attompted td relieve their overcrowding problens at the expense of the
county institutions by allowing inmates sentenced to state institutinns
to ‘lahguish in-the ‘)oountk:y Jails.  Morcover, the state has started
p]’aci‘ng their fimétes in a county jail. For Heir part, the counties
have ‘r(:syx.)nck-cl in equally confrontational and self&:orvinq actions.

)\ nuber of counties have ‘tm?n;zd to the courtsv to s the state. The
‘x'c‘ﬂo;znt press dahferenCe‘hélﬂ on thi State lousc stups:whefein Lx:)Lz:ity
officials condenmed the state for itsr self-serving practicus maoars

for itself.
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There is an atmosphere of desperation in. the j&il and prison g’ More vinportant than even the improved use of physical resources,

administrations. There is a sense that the current problems and z the establishment of such a partnership would :.‘Lnstill a dramatic impact
trends will continue to escalate and that nothing will be done to .v upon the administrators themselves. No longer would the individual
reverse the oconstant escalation of 'chvssc’.dunqumu’s conditions. 'Mhore . - instituf:ions feel isolated and helpless. New directions and major

is a feeling that no change in the narrow policies and the solf- decisions would be made on the basis of mutual support and common goals

|
serving practices will occur until sone disaster focuses the public's ’ | rather than through self-serving unilateral action. The state could
attention on these dangerous conditions‘. ' | ‘ provide the catalytic leadership for such a coalition and could either
» ‘ | | v work through existing groups such as the Wardens'and Sheriffs' Associations
, There 1s no real need, however, for New Jersey to cxlpr icnou :: “‘j} or through same new vehicle created expressedly for this purpose.

an 1}tt1ca or a New Mexico State Prison rehcllion. : Thore is po real Within the context of’such state leadership and a new coalition, each

need to feel that conditions are irrevocably pointed towards disaster. , administrator would acknowledge the role that they could best play and

Hhaover, In order o mvm‘:sqti‘]‘oso conditions, a now xelationship ’ exporionce the support that they, in tum, could cxpect. Such a positive

between the state and county in,;%ti.tutions must- be established.  The : ' ‘ . . .

’ o : E - Catposphere would-alleviate the sense of despair which prescently exists.
state must move decisively in an c¢ffort to establish a working coaliti. . { '

Cihrough muatual effort, we can idontity the available bod spaoe throwjleat A . ‘ ‘ Such a-plan wgu]d require inmediate action in the establishment
the institutions and develop a full utilization plan which wics those of a new leadership role for the State Department of Corrections. This
resources to their besteadvantage. The local jails may remain at é plan is not, however, a distant utopian possibility. ‘Ihe enabling
‘ca’paci ty levels in order to reduce the presstre throughout the éyf.“t.\élx\. lugislation for transfers from county to state institutions already
However, the jails would be more able to cope with capacity housing J exists (NJSA 30:4~85.1). Under a priority mandate, the next administration

' ; because the state institutions would ta_ké the most troublesome insitos. § could have such a mutually cooperative venture initiated within thro:

? '}‘ho hard-core troublemakers, the medically incapaci tated, and 1n¢ wor g | : mmths’and _firmly established wi.thin’six Lc? nine nonths.  Thiz wiald
seriously cootionally di'svturbod inmatos moy t"&?{xi‘(::.f:u-n(' a fractica . | _?n S ‘: o - b a crisis rosponse WhiC‘l would be offective Jn meoting the sontens .o
‘ the total mmber of inmates in the jails, bat m,uy Crante v 1 B requivements of the courts, in maximizing the utdCization of cxierin o
‘ Srsparoper Coonate draih on.;;talii and physival plant resourecs. i e - Crosourees s angd .in’ allovial:iﬁng the curront sense of .‘nq:t-k.'ulir,n conoten.
ctrge Sl xfiz:lyituti’()ns are far ‘!lh’ll“«lt"h‘}qxldll‘lg" Prcpaares) Lo deos) Lt I ‘-":\"”‘i l‘f a n‘Spoxmo which "‘"””l‘l il isty “"“ S R 't”‘;fﬂ
Cwach naates and with the state taking them, the jarls would baoaboe ’ ‘ | by edicing the eurrent. potential for disuster a?“" by getiine

to cope with _capaci£Y hOusingklovels». ¢ S , ‘ | | adressing the ’c:’urront‘crisns in the c*‘orruc*t:i on ir::fl'iktut‘.iv'ans»é. o




SELECTIVE USE OF DOUBLE BUNKING
AS A SHORT-TERM RESPONSE TO THE OVERCROWDING CRISIS

Overcrowding in the jails and prisons of New Jersey has
rcached crisis proportions. Thougif not a popular issue with the
public, overcrowdipg has long been recognized as a foundational
cé’use in virtually every major prison disaster. We must acknowledge
the seriousness of the issue and the urgent need for‘.meaningful and
effective response. The state institutions are so overérowded that
they are unable to accept new inmates in a timely manner. The same
forass which create the overcrowding in the state institutions have
worked to fill the county jails and in additio‘n, .the counties must
contimy: to hold the state's inmates until their tmasfers can
" eventually be arranged. Fourtecn of the county institutions have bcen
| op’b.rating above theit legitimate maximm capacity and in one -case5;‘> a
jail has had to operate at 160 percent of capacity. In order to
respond to this crisis, the state must take dramatic steps and consider

extrome alternatives such as thc use of double bunking.

The need for addltlonal bed space - throughout the oounty jails
and ‘state prlsons has been vthoroughly docunnnted'. Mllllons of dollars
will be rcquxred for the constructxon and subsequem_ opcraty.)n of th
e dod o011 spaca. Bond issues hnvo alrc".uly bwn u[)pn)vvd fon stnh

~'~'t‘mrt ion but the opomnq of any new ins ULutmn romaing SONC ".ow
Shorhe 1:1t\,1rfe. We are, thereforo, prusscd to dcvclop mterm plmxs

which can respond immediately to this urgent problam. The COYT(.‘G?.](J;.RI
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institutions must be able to remain responsive to the needs of the
courts for the sentencing of serious offenders. At no time can we
allow violent offenders to avoid incarceration due to the lack of
available cells. On the other hand, however, we must maintain the
safety of the public and the security of the institutions in a
manner which is consistent with both the overall goals of effective

oormgtional programuing and with cost-effective fiscal considerations.

New Jersey's state institutions operate under standards
which generally maintain single occupancy in cells. This is a proper
standard and should be supported under mormal circumstances. However,
woe misst recognize the seriousness of the present crisis, and we must
implement provisions which alleviate the potential for major disruptions.
To fail to act .in a responsible manner, in these conditions would Le
a breach of the public trust. In the recent Rhoades vs. Chapman ruling,
the United States Supreme Court established that: where an inmate has
acoess to proper institutional programming and servioeé,' there is no
constitutional quarantee of single oocupancy cells. Thus, though single
c){;cqaancy conditions would be preferable, New Jersey could explore a
ljmiitcd and strictly controlled use of double bunking which could servé
a8 an interim provision which would alleviate the current pobulation

m*x:sis. If the state institutions oould identify even as few as one

out nf overy fifteen cells as being appropriate for double bunkin,

and additional 450 cells (the equivalent of a new institution) ccild

o nade available thhm a mattm of four to ught wee ts.  Such an
exXpunsion of capacn;ty’ would make a mijor contribution st the relicf

of prosant ¢l reunstances.
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Since the selection of appropriate inmates would be
absolutely g:ritical to the success of such a plan, a specialized
classification process would be required. The prime candldates would
be those inmates who already demonstrate their responsibility through
regular participation in institutional programming and jab assignments.,
Such inmates regularly spend little time in their cells beyond |
sleeping hours. Additionally, responsive grievance procedures would
be maintained in order to account for the additional tensions which

arc incumbent with such a procedure.

Identifying appropriate inmates and cells, however, is only an
initial aspect of such a plan. A careful review of institutibnal
provisions would be necessary and where any element of the institution
is already strained, additional staff or physical resources would have
to be cstablished. The security staff may need to be strengthened and

the program staff would necessarily have to beéxpanded. The adecpuacy of

- social and educational programs, medical services, recreation and food

services are all critical to the adequacy of the implementation of

this crisis response provision. Double bunking must not be viewed as

a panacea or @ "quick-fix." 1If this were to be the case, the leadership
would be designing a time bamb rather than defusing one. Staff and

resources unquestionably mist be added and the budgetary ramifications

st be addressed in order to adequately deal with the increased

workload and the additional tensions' introduced by double bunking.

mublélbmking is not in itself desirable » but properly

implemented as a short-term practice, it may serve as an effectivi:
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crisis response by providing manageable relief from overcrowding
within a cost effective context. 1In this way, New Jersey's need

for correctional incaroeration of offenders can be met on an interim
basis with respect to the security of the institutions and the effective-
ness of correctional programming. .Failure to move in the direction
of such a planned implementation would result in the continuation of
overcrowding, the inefficient use of available resources, and the
escalation of tensions; in short, a formula for major disturbances.
Thus, in light of this grim altemative, the selective implementation
of double bunking in New Jersey's corref:tional institutions on a
short-term basis is a provision which is worthy of consideration as

a means of addressing the present crisis.
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